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In the opinion of K&L Gates LLP, Bond Counsel, assuming compliance with certain covenants of the City, interest on the Bondsis
excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes under existing law. Interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax
preference for purposes of either individual or corporate alternative minimum tax. Interest on the Bonds may be indirectly subject
to corporate alternative minimum tax and certain other taxes imposed on certain corporations. See“ TAX MATTERS' herein for a
discussion of the opinion of Bond Counsel.

CITY OF VANCOUVER, WASHINGTON
$1,500,000°
LIMITED TAX GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 2015A
(VANCOUVER HERITAGE BONDS)

DATED: June15, 2015* DUE: December 1, as shown in the Maturity Schedule

Local Investor Offering. The City of Vancouver, Washington (the “City”), is offering its Limited Tax General Obligation
Bonds, 2015A (Vancouver Heritage Bonds) (the “Bonds’) only to individual investors residing in Clark County, Washington.
The Bonds will not be offered or sold to institutional investors or brokers or dealers. Employees of the City may purchase
Bonds. No household may purchase more than $10,000 of the Bonds.

Purpose. The Bonds are being issued to (i) finance renovations and capital improvements to City buildings, and (ii) pay
costs of issuance of the Bonds. See“USE OF PROCEEDS.”

Source and Security for Repayment. The Bonds are limited tax general obligations of the City. The City has irrevocably
covenanted and agreed for as long as any of the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, that each year it will include in its budget
and levy an ad valorem tax on al property within the City subject to taxation in an amount that will be sufficient, together
with al other revenues and money of the City legally available for such purposes, to pay the principal of and interest on the
Bonds as the same become due. The City hasirrevocably pledged that this annual tax will be within and a part of the tax levy
permitted to cities without a vote of the people, and that a sufficient portion of each annua levy to be levied and collected by
the City prior to the full payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds will be irrevocably set aside, pledged and
appropriated for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds. The full faith, credit and resources of the City
have been irrevocably pledged for the annual levy and collection of such taxes and the prompt payment of the principal of
and interest on the Bonds as the same become due. The Bonds do not constitute a debt or indebtedness of the State of
Washington (the “ State”) or any political subdivision thereof other than the City.

No Redemption. The Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity.

Bond Form. The Bondswill be issued as registered securities, which means that each investor will receive a Bond, executed
by the City and authenticated by U.S. Bank National Association, as registrar, authenticating agent and paying agent (the
“Registrar”). Bond pur chasers should retain the Bondsreceived from the Registrar in a safe place. The Bonds must be
delivered to the Registrar in order to receive payment at maturity. A Bondowner who loses his’/her Bond will be required to
pay costs and fees for the replacement of alost Bond.

Purchase Price and Interest. The Bonds are issued as deferred interest Bonds which means that the value at maturity will
be higher than the purchase price. Interest on the Bonds will accumulate from the date of issue (June 15, 2015*) to maturity
as described in the Maturity Schedule on page 1. Each $500 of Bonds will be purchased at a price of $500, with ayield to
maturity described in the Value at Maturity table on page 2.

Prospective investors are requested to read this entire Preliminary Official Statement for a more detailed description
of thetermsof the Bonds and the City before making an investment decision.

The Bonds are offered when, as, and if executed and delivered, and are subject to receipt of the legal opinion of K&L Gates
LLP, Seattle, Washington, Bond Counsel to the City, and certain other conditions. It is expected that the Bonds in definitive
formwill be available for delivery in Vancouver, Washington, on or about June 15, 2015*.

*Preliminary, subject to change.

Dated



No quotations from or summaries or explanations of the provisions of laws or documents herein purport to be
complete, and reference is made to such laws and documents for full and complete statements of their provisions.
This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement between the City and the purchasers or
owners of any of the Bonds. The cover page hereof and appendices attached hereto are part of this Official
Statement.

No dealer, broker, sales representative or other person has been authorized by the City to give any information or to
make any representations with respect to the Bonds other than those contained herein and, if given or made, such
other information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by any of the foregoing.
This Officia Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor will there be any
sale of the Bonds by any person, in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer,
solicitation or sale.

The information set forth herein has been obtained from the City and other sources that the City believes to be
reliable. The information herein is subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this Official
Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no
change in the affairs of the City since the date hereof.

This Official Statement is submitted by the City in connection with the sale of the Bonds referred to herein and may
not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose.

In the preparation of the projectionsin this Official Statement, the City has made certain assumptions with respect to
conditions that may occur in the future. While the City believes these assumptions are reasonable for the purpose of
the projections, they depend upon future events, and actua conditions may differ from those assumed. The City
does not represent or guarantee that actual results will replicate the projections in the various tables set forth in this
Official Statement. Potential purchasers of the Bonds should not rely on the projections in this Official Statement as
statements of fact. Such projections are subject to change, and will change, from time to time. The City has not
committed itself to provide investors with updated forecasts or projections.

NEITHER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR THE SECURITIES REGULATORY
AUTHORITY OF ANY STATE HAS APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED THE BONDS OR THIS OFFICIAL
STATEMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY ISUNLAWFUL.
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PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT

CITY OF VANCOUVER, WASHINGTON
$1,500,000*
LIMITED TAX GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 2015A
(VANCOUVER HERITAGE BONDYS)

INTRODUCTION

The City of Vancouver, Washington (the “City”), amunicipal corporation duly organized and existing under and by
virtue of the laws of the State of Washington (the “ State”), furnishes this Official Statement in connection with the
offering of $1,500,000* principal amount of the City’s Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds, 2015A (Vancouver
Heritage Bonds) (the “Bonds’), dated the date of their initial delivery. This Official Statement, which includes the
cover page and the appendices, contains certain information related to the City and the Bonds.

The Bonds are being issued to (i) finance renovations and capital improvements to City buildings, and (ii) pay costs
of issuance of the Bonds, as described under “USE OF PROCEEDS.” The Bonds are issued by the City pursuant to
the authority of chapters 35.22 and 39.46 of the Revised Code of Washington (“RCW") and as authorized by
Ordinance No. M-4120 of the City passed by the City Council on April 27, 2015 (the “Bond Ordinance’).
Capitalized terms that are not defined herein have the meanings set forth in the Bond Ordinance.

APPENDIX A includes the form of legal opinion of K&L Gates LLP of Seattle, Washington (“Bond Counsel”).
APPENDIX B to this Official Statement contains the City’s 2013 Audited Financial Statements.

DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS
General
The Bonds will be issued in an amount of not to exceed $1,500,000. The purchase price for each $500 of Bonds will
be equal to $500. The Bonds will be dated June 15, 2015* and interest will start to accrete on June 15, 2015*.
Interest on the Bonds will not be paid prior to maturity. Instead, interest will be compounded on June 1 and
December 1 of each year, commencing with December 1, 2015 at the rates indicated on the Maturity Schedule table
below. Interest and principal will be paid only at final maturity. Interest on the Bonds will be calculated on the
basis of ayear of 360 days consisting of twelve 30-day months.
Maturity Schedule

The below table shows the estimated maturity and interest rates of the Bonds.

Maturity Date Principal Interest Compounded Total

(December 1) Amount* Rate* I nterest* Debt Service*
2021 $ 200,000.00 3.64% $ 52,496.56 $ 252,496.56
2022 220,000.00 3.85 72,409.32 292,409.32
2023 205,000.00 4.03 82,324.10 287,324.10
2024 195,000.00 4.18 93,414.61 288,414.61
2025 185,000.00 4.37 105,789.06 290,789.06
2026 175,000.00 4,50 116,438.37 291,438.37
2027 165,000.00 4.60 125,810.39 290,810.39
2028 155,000.00 4,70 134,681.72 289,681.72

* Preliminary, subject to change.



Valueat Maturity

The Vaue at Maturity of each $500 principal amount of Bonds on the 1st day of December in each of the years set
forth below shall be:

Vaue at Maturity for each

Maturity Date $500 Bond*
12/01/2021 $ 631.24
12/01/2022 664.57
12/01/2023 700.79
12/01/2024 739.52
12/01/2025 785.92
12/01/2026 832.68
12/01/2027 881.24
12/01/2028 934.46

The Value at Maturity of aBond will not necessarily equal the market value of that Bond at maturity.
Prior Redemption
The Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity.

TRANSFER OF BONDS

The Bonds are registered Bonds which means that the person whose name appears on a Bond is considered to be the
owner. If an owner wishes to transfer ownership to another person, the owner must comply with the transfer
procedures of the Registrar.

The current address for contacting the Registrar is asfollows:

U.S. Bank National Association
Attn: Corporate Trust Services
P.O. Box 64111

St. Paul, MN 55164-0111
1-800-934-6802

If a Bondowner wishes to transfer hissher Bond to another person, contact the Registrar and follow the procedures
specified by the Registrar.

THE BONDS ARE ISSUED AS PHYSICAL INSTRUMENTS. It will be imperative for a Bond Owner who
wishes to transfer or redeem a bond to deliver his’her Bond to the Registrar prior to:

€) having it transferred to another person; or
(b) receiving the amount at maturity.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Proceeds of the Bonds will be used to (i) renovate four buildings in the West Barracks, which is part of the
Vancouver National Historic Reserve, including the Infantry Barracks, the Artillery Barracks, the Quartermaster
Storehouse, and the Dental Surgeons Building, for the purpose of developing space for offices, housing, hospitality,
and/or retail, and (ii) pay costs of issuance of the Bonds.

* Preliminary, subject to change.



Sour ces and Uses of Funds

The table below sets forth the expected sources and uses of proceeds of the Bonds and other funds and resources in
connection with the issuance of the Bonds, refunding the Refunded Bonds, and financing capital improvements to
the above-described City buildings.

Sour ces of Funds

Principal Amount of the Bonds $
Total Sources: $
Uses of Funds
Project Fund $
Costs of Issuance
Total Uses: $

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS

The Bonds are limited tax general obligation bonds of the City. As authorized by law and the Bond Ordinance, the
City has irrevocably covenanted and agreed for as long as any of the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, that each
year it will include in its budget and levy an ad valorem tax on all property within the City subject to taxation in an
amount that will be sufficient, together with all other revenues and money of the City legally available for such
purposes, to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same become due. The City has irrevocably
pledged that this annual tax will be within and a part of the tax levy permitted to cities without a vote of the people,
and that a sufficient portion of each annual levy to be levied and collected by the City prior to the full payment of
the principal of and interest on the Bonds will be irrevocably set aside, pledged and appropriated for the payment of
the principal of and interest on the Bonds. The full faith, credit and resources of the City have been irrevocably
pledged for the annual levy and collection of such taxes and the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on
the Bonds as the same become due.

The City’'s imposition of regular property taxes is subject to various limitations. See “TAXING POWERS AND
LIMITATIONS’ herein. The Bonds are expected to be paid from the City’ s available resources.

Subject to applicable laws, the City may apply other funds available to make payments with respect to the Bonds
and thereby reduce the amount of future tax levies for such purpose.

The Bonds do not constitute a debt or indebtedness of the State or any political subdivision thereof other than the
City.

The rights and remedies of anyone seeking enforcement of the Bonds are subject to applicable bankruptcy or
insolvency laws or other similar laws generally affecting creditors rights and principles of equity if equitable
remedies are sought.

The Bonds are not subject to acceleration upon the occurrence of a default. The City is liable for payments of the
principal and purchase price of and interest on the Bonds only as they become due. In the event of multiple payment
defaults, the Registered Owner of each Bond would be required to bring a separate action for each such payment not
made when due.

State law provides that the payment of general obligation indebtedness such as the Bonds is enforceable in
mandamus (an order by a court requiring the City to do its legal duty) against the issuer. There is no express
provision in State law concerning the priority of payment of general obligation indebtedness such asthe Bonds. The
proceeds of certain taxes and other money deposited in the City’s governmental funds may be restricted by State law
to specific purposes and may not be available to pay the principal or purchase price of or interest on the Bonds. See
“TAX COLLECTION.”



In the event that the City, in order to effect the payment, retirement, or redemption of any Bond, sets aside in the
Bond Fund or in another special account, cash or noncallable Government Obligations, or any combination of cash
and/or noncallable Government Obligations, in amounts and maturities which, together with the known earned
income therefrom, are sufficient to redeem or pay and retire such Bond in accordance with its terms and to pay when
due the interest and redemption premium, if any, thereon, and such cash and/or noncallable Government Obligations
are irrevocably set aside and pledged for such purpose, then no further payments need be made into the Bond Fund
for the payment of the principal of and interest on such Bond. The owner of a Bond so provided for will cease to be
entitled to any lien, benefit or security of the Bond Ordinance except the right to receive payment of principal,
premium, if any, and interest from the Bond Fund or such special account, and such Bond will be deemed to be not
outstanding under the Bond Ordinance.

As currently defined in chapter 39.53 RCW, “Government Obligations’ means (1) direct obligations of, or
obligations the principal and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America, and
bank certificates of deposit secured by such obligations; (2) bonds, debentures, notes, participation certificates or
other obligations issued by the Banks for Cooperatives, the Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, the Federa Home
Loan Bank System, the Export-Import Bank of the United States, federal land banks or the Federal National
Mortgage Association; (3) public housing bonds and project notes fully secured by contracts with the United States;
and (4) obligations of financia ingtitutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the Federal
Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation, to the extent insured or to the extent guaranteed as permitted under any
other provision of State law.

TAXING POWERSAND LIMITATIONS

The following provides a general description of the City’s taxing authority and limitations, the method of
determining the assessed value of real and personal property, tax collection procedures, and tax collection
information. Neither the State nor any municipalities in the State collect a tax on net income.

Authorized Property Taxes. The City is authorized to levy both “regular” property taxes and “excess’ property
taxes. The City'sregular levy for the 2015 collection year is $2.7996 per $1,000 of assessed value.

Regular property taxes, such as the taxes pledged to the payment of the Bonds, are subject to constitutional and
statutory limitations as to rates and amounts and commonly are imposed by taxing districts for general municipal
purposes, including the payment of debt service on limited tax general obligation indebtedness, such as the Bonds.
Regular property taxes do not require voter approval except as described below.

Excess property taxes are not subject to limitation as to rates or amounts but must be authorized by a 60 percent
approving popular vote, as provided in Article VII, Section 2, of the State Constitution and RCW 84.52.052, at
which certain minimum voter turnout requirements are met. Excess levies may be imposed without a popular vote
when ordered by a court to prevent impairment of the obligations of contracts.

Regular Property Tax Limitations

The authority of a city to levy taxes without a vote of the people for general city purposes, including the payment of
debt service on limited tax general obligation indebtedness, such as the Bonds, is subject to the limitations described
below. Information relating to regular property tax limitations is based on existing statutes and constitutional
provisions. Changesin such laws could alter the impact of other interrelated tax limitations on the City.

Maximum Rate Limitation. Title 84 RCW authorizes the imposition of regular tax levies with various statutory
maximum levy rates (see “Overlapping Taxing Districts’ herein).

The One Percent Aggregate Regular Levy Limitation. Article VII, Section 2 of the Washington Constitution, as
amended in 1973, limits aggregate regular property tax levies by the State and all overlapping taxing districts, except
port districts and public utility districts, to one percent of the true and fair value of property. RCW 84.52.050
provides the same limitation by statute.



$5.90/$1,000 Aggregate Regular Levy Limitation. Within the one percent limitation described above,
RCW 84.52.043(2) imposes an aggregate limitation on regular tax levies by all overlapping taxing districts, other
than the State, of $5.90 per $1,000 of assessed value, except levies for any port or public utility district; excess
levies authorized in Article VII, Section 2 of the State Constitution; and levies for acquiring conservation futures,
levies for emergency medical care or emergency medical services; leviesto finance affordable housing for very low-
income housing; certain portions of levies by metropolitan park districts; certain levies by ferry districts; levies for
criminal justice purposes; certain portions of levies by fire protection districts; levies by counties for transit-related
purposes; and portions of certain levies by certain flood control zone districts.

Uniformity Requirement. Article VII, Section 1 of the Washington Constitution requires that property taxes be
levied at a uniform rate upon the same class of property within the territorial limits of ataxing district levying such
taxes. The Constitution also provides that, with certain limited exceptions, al real estate constitutes a single class.
It is possible because of different overlapping taxing districts in different areas of the City that the maximum
permissible levy under the aggregate levy limit (described above) might vary within the City. In that event, to
comply with the constitutional requirement for uniformity of taxation, the lowest maximum permissible rate for any
part of the City would be applied to the entire City.

Prioritization of Levies. RCW 84.52.010 provides that if aggregate levies certified by all taxing districts exceed the
aggregate levy limitations described above, levies certified by junior taxing districts are reduced or eliminated in
order to bring the aggregate levy into compliance with the statutory maximum prescribed by RCW 84.52.050 and
84.52.043. RCW 84.52.043 defines “junior taxing districts’ as all taxing districts other than the State, counties, road
districts, cities, towns, port districts, and public utility districts.

The Levy Increase Limitation. The regular property tax increase limitation, chapter 84.55 RCW, limits the total
dollar amount of regular property taxes levied by an individual local taxing district such as the City to the amount of
such taxes levied in the highest of the three most recent years multiplied by a limit factor, plus an adjustment to
account for taxes on new construction, annexations, improvements and certain other property at the previous year's
rate. The limit factor is the lesser of 101 percent of the highest levy in the three previous years (excluding new
construction, improvements, and certain other property) or 100 percent plus inflation, unless a greater increase
amount is approved by a simple majority of the voters. If approved by a majority plus one vote of the City Council
upon afinding of substantial need, the limit factor is 101%.

RCW 84.55.092 allows the property tax levy to be set at the amount that would be allowed if the tax levy for taxes
due in each year since 1986 had been set at the full amount allowed under chapter 84.55 RCW. Thisis sometimes
referred to as “banked” levy capacity. With a majority vote of its electors, ataxing district may levy, within the rate
limitations described above, more than what otherwise would be allowed by the tax increase limitation indefinitely
or for alimited period or to satisfy a limited purpose, as allowed by RCW 84.55.050. Thisis known as a“levy lid
lift.”

Since the regular property tax increase limitation applies to the total dollar amount levied rather than to levy rates,
increases in the assessed value of all property in the taxing district (excluding new construction, improvements and
State-assessed property) which exceed the rate of growth in taxes allowed by the limit factor result in decreased
regular tax levy rates, unless voters authorize a higher levy or the taxing district uses banked levy capacity.
Decreases in the assessed value of all property in the taxing district (including new construction, improvements and
State-assessed property) or increases in such assessed value that are less than the rate of growth in taxes imposed,
among other events, may result in increased regular tax levy rates.

Thetax levy for unlimited tax general obligation bondsis a special excess levy approved by a 60 percent majority of
the voters, and as such, is not subject to the rate or amount limitations on regular levies described above.

Assessed Value
The Clark County Assessor (the “Assessor”), determines the value of al real and personal property throughout Clark

County (the “County”) that is subject to ad valorem taxation, except certain utility properties which are valued by
the State Department of Revenue. The Assessor is an elected official whose duties and methods of determining



value are prescribed and controlled by statute and by detailed regulations promulgated by the State Department of
Revenue.

For tax purposes, the assessed value of property is 100 percent of its market value. Three approaches may be used
to determine real property value: market data, replacement cost and income generating capacity. In the County, al
property is subject to revaluation every year based on market value. In addition, at least one-sixth of the real
property parcels are visited for an on-site appraisal on an annual basis. The property characteristics and assessed
values are listed by the Assessor on the property roll which is maintained in the Assessor’s office. The Assessor’s
determinations are subject to revisions by the County Board of Equalization and, for certain property, subject to
further revisions by the State Board of Tax Appeals. After all administrative procedures are complete, the values are
certified and passed on to the Clark County Treasurer and the County Board of Equalization.

[REMAINDER OF THE PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



Overlapping Taxing Districts

The overlapping taxing districts within the City have the statutory power to levy regular property taxes at the
following rates subject to the limitations provided by chapter 84.55 RCW and to levy excess voter approved
property taxes. Representative levy ratesfor levy code 37000 of the County, located entirely within the City, as well
as the statutory levy authority of each type of potential overlapping district, are listed below. Levy code 37000 does
not include all the property within the City; as aresult, additional taxing districts, not listed below, levy taxes within
the City.

Collection Year 2015
Representative L evy Rates Statutory Levy Authority

(Per $1,000 of Assessed (Per $1,000 of Assessed

Value) Value)
Clark County $1.401 $1.800 @
County (Road Levy) na @ 2.250
Ft. Vancouver Library District o707 © 0.500
Port of Vancouver 0361 @ 0.450
Fire Protection District na © 1.500
City of Vancouver 2.799 3600 ©
Hospital District na @ 0.750
State Levy for Support of Schools 2.224 3600 ©
School District No. 37 5121 na @
Tota rate for Clark County levy code 37000: $12.613

(1) Pursuant to RCW 84.52.043(1), a county may increase its levy from $1.80 per $1,000 of assessed valueto arate
not to exceed $2.475 per $1,000 of assessed value for general county purposes if (i) the total levies for both the
county and any road district within the county do not exceed $4.05 per $1,000 of assessed value and (ii) no
other taxing district hasits levy reduced as a result of the increased county tax levy.

(2) Clark County levy code 37000 is included within the City and therefore does not have a County Road levy.
Likewise, it does not contain afire protection district or a hospital district.

(3) Includes avoter-approved levy of $0.23805 per $1,000 of assessed value for alibrary capital facility area.

(4) Includes avoter-approved levy of $0.20615 per $1,000 of assessed value.

(5) The City’s levy authority is $3.375 per $1,000 of assessed value. RCW 41.16.060 authorizes an additional
firefighters' pension fund levy of up to $0.225 per $1,000 of assessed value to be used for pension funding
purposes, if required. However, if a report by a qualified actuary on the condition of the fund establishes that
such dollar rate is not necessary to maintain the soundness of the fund, the levy may be omitted in whole or in
part, or such levy may be used for any other municipal purposein whole or in part. The City’s levy authority is
reduced by the actual rate levied by the Fort VVancouver Library District. The library district has the authority to
levy up to $0.50 per $1,000 of assessed value, thereby reducing the City’s levy amount to $3.10 per $1,000 of
assessed value.

(6) RCW 84.52.043(1). The levy by the State may not exceed $3.60 per $1,000 of assessed value adjusted to the
State equalized value in accordance with the indicated ratio fixed by the State Department of Revenue to be
used exclusively for the support of the common schools.

(7) Washington school districts do not have non-voted regular levy authority.

Source: Clark County Assessor’ s Office.

TAX COLLECTION
Property Tax Collection Procedures
Property taxes are levied in specific amounts, and the rate for all taxes levied for al taxing districts in the County

(including the City) are determined, calculated and fixed by the Assessor based upon the assessed valuation of the
property within the various taxing districts. The Assessor extends the taxes to be levied within each taxing district



upon a tax roll which contains the total amount of taxes to be so levied and collected and assigns a tax account
number to each tax lot.

The tax roll is delivered by January 15 to the County Treasurer, who bills and collects the taxes as certified. All
such taxes are due and payable on April 30 of each year, but if the amount due from a taxpayer exceeds fifty dollars,
one-half may be paid then and the balance paid no later than October 31 of that year. Delinquent taxes are subject to
interest at the rate of one percent per month until paid. In addition, a penalty of three percent will be assessed on
June 1 of the year in which the tax was due; and eight percent on December 1 of the year the tax are due.

The method of giving notice of payment of taxes due, accounting for the money collected, the division of the taxes
among the various taxing districts, giving notice of delinquency, and collection procedure are all covered by detailed
statutes.

A federa lien on personal property that is filed before the personal property tax is levied is senior to the local
personal property tax lien. In addition, a federal civil judgment lien (but not a federal tax lien) is senior to real
property taxes that are levied after the judgment lien has been recorded. In al other respects, subject to the possible
“Homestead Exemption,” the lien for delinquent property taxes is prior to all other liens or encumbrances of any
kind on real or personal property subject to taxation. By law, the taxing district may commence foreclosure of atax
lien on real property after three (3) years have passed since the first delinquency. Washington State’' s courts have not
decided whether the Homestead Law (chapter 6.13 RCW) may give the occupying home owner aright in the forced
sale of the family residence for delinquent general property taxes to retain the first $125,000 of proceeds of the sale.
The State Court of Appeals has held that the homestead exemption applies to the lien for improvement district
assessments. The United States Bankruptcy Court for the Western District of Washington has held that the
homestead exemption applies to the lien for property taxes, while the State Attorney General has taken the position
that it does not.

Largest Taxpayers

Thefollowing isalist of the largest property taxpayers in the City.

2015 Per cent
Collection Year of Total
Taxpayer Type of Business Assessed Value Assessed Value

Columbia Tech Center LLC Property Investment $ 193,106,615 1.22%
SEH America Microelectronics 180,446,745 114
Vancouver Mall Retail 74,274,053 0.47
Frito Lay Inc. Food Processing 63,719,620 0.40
United Grain Corporation Grain Export 55,752,845 0.35
The Vancouver Clinic Medical Buildings 53,833,566 0.34
Mission HillsLLC Apartment rentals 53,818,630 0.34
Holland Acquisition Co LLC Property Investment 47,608,479 0.30
Angelo Prop Company LP Property Investment 47,406,538 0.30
Wal-Mart Retail 46,508,546 0.29

$ 816,475,637 5.15%

Source: Clark County Assessor’ s Office.



Ad Valorem Tax Collection Record
Thefollowing is afive-year history of ad valorem tax collections for the City.

Per cent Collected

Collection Regular Ad Valorem Ad Valorem Y ear Asof
Year Assessed Value ® Levy Rate Tax Levy of Levy 03/31/15
2015 $15,812,154,819 2.79960 $44,267,755 2 7.844%
2014 14,326,177,779 3.02211 43,295,235 98.5% 99.992
2013 13,222,265,791 3.17221 41,943,790 98.9 99.995
2012 13,704,224,212 2.98867 40,950,240 98.1 99.998
2011 13,884,845,470 2.89624 40,205,637 98.1 100.000

(1) Assessed valueis based upon 100 percent of true and fair value.
(2) Inprocessof collection.
Source: Clark County Treasurer’s and Assessor’ s Offices and the City of Vancouver.

Collection of Other Taxes

In addition to its regular property tax levy, the City also collects various other taxes, including aretail salestax (also
known as a“local sales and use tax”), real estate excise tax, hotel/motel tax and utility taxes, among others. A table
showing historical revenue from these sources isincluded at the end of this section.

Local Salesand Use Tax. In addition to the State, the City imposes a sales and use tax on the selling price for value
on the retail sale or use of certain tangible personal property within the City. The City’s sales and use tax is
collected by the State Department of Revenue (the “Department”). The Department receives one percent of the tax
collected within the City for the Department’s administration costs. The general sales and use tax rate within the
City is8.4%. The salestax rateisdistributed asfollows: 6.5% to the State; 0.85% to the City; 0.15% to the County;
0.2% to the City for public safety; 0.1% to the County for criminal justice; 0.1% to the County for chemical
dependency, mental health treatment services and therapeutic court programs and 0.5% to C-TRAN (the Clark
County Public Transportation Benefit Area). The amount of revenue generated by sales tax fluctuates from year to
year due to changes in the economy, buying habits of consumers, and the level of construction taking place in the
City.

Sreamlined Sales and Use. The State Legidature approved legislation authorizing the State’' s membership in, and
conforming to the requirements of, the Streamlined Sales and Use Tax Agreement (the “SSUTA"), in an effort to
make sales and use taxes in the State more uniform with other states. Sales taxes on goods delivered to customersin
the State are credited to the taxing jurisdiction where the goods are delivered (as opposed to the point of sale) and
therate of the tax is determined by the local rate in the destination taxing jurisdiction.

The State L egislature enacted certain provisions to mitigate net losses in sales and use tax collections of local taxing
jurisdictions resulting from the change to a destination-based system under the above-referenced legislation. To
qualify, the local taxing jurisdiction must be negatively impacted by the legislation and the local sales tax must bein
effect before July 1, 2008, among other requirements. Money for mitigation is subject to appropriation by the State
Legidature. Under the mitigation legislation, on each July 1, the State Treasurer is required to transfer an amount
determined by the Department to fully mitigate negatively impacted local jurisdictions. Mitigation for the first year
was determined by the Department from tax reporting data to determine actual losses less gains from voluntarily
registered sellers. Beginning December 31, 2008, distributions from the account are required to be made quarterly.
After the first year, the Department is required to determine each local jurisdiction's annual losses, and distributions
are required to be made quarterly representing one-fourth of a jurisdiction's annual loss less voluntary compliance
revenue from the previous quarter. Losses in sales tax revenues are based on a business by business comparison of
sales patterns in each jurisdiction before and after the change to destination-based salestax. “Voluntary compliance
revenue’ isthe local sales tax revenue gain to each local taxing jurisdiction reported to the Department by sellersin
other states voluntarily registered through the SSUTA. The City has not received a distribution for this since 2010.



Hotel/Motel Tax. The hotel/motel tax distributions are for a local option tax of 4% on sales of hotel/motel rooms
within the City. The basic 2% hotel/motel tax is not paid in addition to other state and local salestaxes. Instead, it
is credited against the State’s 6.5% retail sales tax. The remaining 2% of the hotel/motel tax is additional to the
retail salestax.

Utility Taxes. Ultility taxes are taxes applied to utilities providing services in the City including City-owned and
privately-owned utilities. The City levies a tax of six percent on telephone, electric and natural gas utilities. In
addition, the City levies atax of 20% on all water, sewer and storm drainage utilities.

Historical and Projected Tax Collections

The following table shows the historical and projected revenues from these taxes.

Budget Preliminary Actual
General Fund Taxes 2015 2014 ® 2013 2012 2011 2010
Property $ 43,862,543 $ 43,344,457 $ 41,957,792 $ 40,947,711 $ 40,334,028 $39,366,289
Saes& Use 30,489,436 30,500,677 28,001,647 26,165,994 24,701,044 24,504,701
Utility 30,904,061 31,014,615 30,612,706 29,422,926 31,155,847 27,817,174
Other @ 6,281,801 6,631,335 6,257,678 6,058,173 5,092,747 5,989,956
Total Taxes® $111,537,841 $111,491,085 $106,919,822 $102,594,804 $102,183,667 $97,678,120

(1) Includesthe cable franchise fee; the solid waste utility tax/franchise fee/leasehold tax; and punch board and pull
tab revenues.

(2) Real estate excise taxes are not deposited into the General Fund.

(3) Unaudited.

(4) 2011 utility taxes includes $2.6 million in a settlement for brokered natural gas distribution.

Source: City of Vancouver.

BONDED INDEBTEDNESS AND STATUTORY DEBT LIMITATIONS

As prescribed by State statutes, the unlimited tax general obligation indebtedness permitted for cities, subject to a 60
percent majority vote of registered voters, is limited to 2.5 percent of assessed value for general purposes, 2.5
percent for certain utility purposes and 2.5 percent for open space, park facilities and capital facilities associated
with economic development. Within the 2.5 percent of assessed value for general purposes, the City may, without a
vote of the electors, incur general obligation indebtedness (such as the Bonds) in an amount not to exceed 1.5
percent of assessed value. Additionally, within the 2.5 percent of assessed value for general purposes, the City may,
also without a vote of the electors, enter into leases or conditional sales contracts if the total principal component of
the lease payments, together with the other nonvoted general obligation indebtedness of the City, does not exceed
1.5 percent of assessed value. The combination of unlimited tax and limited tax general obligation debt for general
purposes, including leases and conditional sales contracts, cannot exceed 2.5 percent of assessed value and for all
purposes cannot exceed 7.5 percent of assessed value.

Without a vote of the electorate, the City may incur debt as follows:
Q) Pursuant to an ordinance specifying the amount and object of the expenditure of the proceeds, the
City may borrow money for corporate purposes and issue bonds and notes within the
congtitutional and statutory limitations on indebtedness.

2 The City may execute conditional sales contracts for the purchase of real or personal property.

3 The City may execute leases with or without an option to purchase.
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Debt Capacity
The following table provides the calculation of the City’s general obligation debt capacity as of May 1, 2015.
Assessed Valuation for 2015 Tax Collections $15,812,154,819

General Purposes

Non-Voted Debt Capacity (1% % of Assessed Value) $ 237,182,322

Less: Non-Voted Bonds Outstanding (1) (97,195,000)
Less: the Bonds (2) (1,500,000)
Remaining Non-Voted General Purpose Debt Capacity (2) 138,487,322
Voted and Non-Voted Debt Capacity: (2%/5% of Assessed Value) 395,303,870
Less: Voted Bonds Outstanding (3) 0
Less: Non-Voted Bonds Outstanding (1) (97,195,000)
Less: the Bonds (2) (1,500,000)
Remaining Voted and Non-Voted General Purpose Debt Capacity (2) 296,608,870
Utility Purposes

Voted Debt Capacity: (2¥2% of Assessed Value) 395,303,870
Less: Voted Bonds Outstanding 0
Remaining Voted Utility Debt Capacity 395,303,870

Parks & Open Space and Economic Development Purposes
Voted Debt Capacity: (24/2% of Assessed Value) 395,303,870
Less: Voted Bonds Outstanding 0
Remaining Voted Parks Debt Capacity 395,303,870

(1) Includesall outstanding limited tax general obligation bonds.

(2) Preliminary, subject to change.

(3) Includesall outstanding unlimited tax general obligation bonds for general municipal purposes.
Source: City of Vancouver.

Payment Agreement with the Downtown Redevelopment Authority

In 1997, the City created a public corporation, the Downtown Redevelopment Authority (the “DRA”). The DRA,
the City and the Vancouver Public Facilities District (the “ City PFD”) entered into an Interlocal Agreement, dated as
of December 1, 2003 (subsequently amended in 2013) (the “City Interlocal Agreement”) providing for the financing,
construction and operation of a conference center project by the DRA in the City (the “Conference Center Project”).
Under the City Interlocal Agreement, the City agreed to contribute lodging taxes it collects within the City. To
finance the design, acquisition and construction of the Conference Center Project, the DRA issued the City of
Vancouver, Washington Downtown Redevelopment Authority Conference Center Project Senior Revenue Bonds,
Series 2003A in the initia principal amount of $65,855,000 (the “2003A DRA Bonds’) and City of Vancouver,
Washington Downtown Redevelopment Authority Conference Center Project Subordinate Revenue Bonds, Series
2003B in theinitia principal amount of $1,751,988.60 (the “2003B DRA Bonds’ and together with the 2003A DRA
Bonds, the “2003 DRA Bonds’). As an inducement to the issuance of the 2003 DRA Bonds by the DRA and as an
inducement to the purchase of the 2003 DRA Bonds by the 2003 DRA Bondholders, the City entered into a Payment
Agreement, dated December 1, 2003 (the “Payment Agreement”) with the DRA under the terms of which the City
remitted lodging taxes to the DRA and contingently agreed to pay certain guaranteed revenue amounts and reserve
amounts. In June 2013, the remaining outstanding balance of the 2003A DRA Bonds were refunded by issuing two
series of revenue refunding bonds, the City of Vancouver, Washington Downtown Redevelopment Authority
Conference Center Project Refunding Revenue Bonds (City Debt Service Guaranty), Series 2013 in the principal
amount of $41,185,000 (the “2013 Project Revenue Bonds') and the City of Vancouver, Washington Downtown
Redevelopment Authority Conference Center Project Sales and Lodging Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
2013 in the principal amount of $18,045,000. In connection with the refunding, the Payment Agreement was
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amended and restated as of June 1, 2013 (the “Amended and Restated Payment Agreement”). Pursuant to the
Amended and Restated Payment Agreement, the City agreed to make payments to the trustee for the 2013 Project
Revenue Bonds from any available funds if and to the extent necessary to pay debt service on the 2013 Project
Revenue Bonds. On June 27, 2013, the DRA purchased the 2003B Bonds and they are no longer outstanding. On
October 25, 2012, the Washington Supreme Court delivered its Opinion No. 86552-3 In the Matter of the Bond
Issuance of Greater Wenatchee Regional Events Center Public Facilities District ruling (the “Wenatchee Ruling”)
that a proposed “contingent loan agreement” by the City of Wenatchee with respect to bonds to be issued by the
Greater Wenatchee Regiona Events Center Public Facilities District would constitute an indebtedness of the City of
Wenatchee within the meaning of the state constitution. Since the issuance of the 2003 DRA Bonds and since the
Wenatchee Ruling, there has been no assertion by any public or private entity that either the original Payment
Agreement or the Amended and Restated Payment Agreement would constitute an indebtedness of the City.

In connection with the Amended and Restated Payment Agreement, the City has budgeted and available an amount
equal to each year’s debt service to support the 2013 Project Revenue Bonds. These funds are fully funded in the
City’s Tourism Fund and reserved for this contingent payment.

Bonded Debt And Other Outstanding Obligations

Amount
Outstanding
Dated Maturity Amount as of
Date Date | ssued 05/01/15
SECURED BY THE FULL FAITH AND
CREDIT OF THE CITY
Non-Voted L TGO Bonds
LTGO & Ref., 2002 10/01/02  12/01/18 $ 39,365,000 $11,520,000
LTGO, 2005 Series A 07/15/05  12/01/26 4,530,000 3,600,000
LTGO Ref., 2005 Series B 07/15/05  12/01/18 13,560,000 6,675,000
LTGO, 2006 10/11/06  12/01/25 14,785,000 10,545,000
LTGO, 2008 06/30/08  12/01/27 14,570,000 10,020,000
LTGO, 2009 06/01/09  12/01/28 12,970,000 10,195,000
LTGO & Ref., 2010 12/0/10  12/01/35 13,410,000 10,340,000
LTGO, 2011A 06/22/11  12/01/35 9,600,000 9,600,000
LTGO, 2011B 06/22/11  12/0115 915,000 25,000
LTGO, 2012 0V12/12  12/01/29 15,945,000 15,255,000
LTGO Ref., 2012B 12/12/12  12/01/20 2,175,000 2,175,000
LTGO Ref., 2012C 12/12/12  12/01/25 7,340,000 7,245,000
LTGO, 2015A 06/15/15%  12/01/28 1,500,000 1,500,000
Total LTGO Bonds®? $150,665,000 $98,695,000
TOTAL DIRECT DEBT @ $150,665,000 $98,695,000

(1) Preliminary, subject to change.
Source: City of Vancouver.

Operating L eases
The City has 18 operating leases outstanding payable from the Governmental Funds in the total amount of

$2,919,678 as of December 31, 2014 with a final maturity through 2056. Operating leases do not count against the
City’ s debt capacity.
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Schedule of Limited Tax General Obligation Bond Debt Service

Outstanding Bonds The Bonds @ Total
Y ear Principal I nterest Principal Interest® Debt Service®®
2015 $ 9,005,000 $ 4,214,906 -- -- $ 13,219,906
2016 8,500,000 3,794,966 -- -- 12,294,966
2017 7,585,000 3,381,211 -- -- 10,966,211
2018 7,845,000 3,027,616 -- -- 10,872,616
2019 6,400,000 2,658,690 -- -- 9,058,690
2020 5,815,000 2,456,769 -- -- 8,271,769
2021 5,565,000 2,226,729 $ 200,000 $ 52,497 8,044,226
2022 5,790,000 1,997,050 220,000 72,409 8,079,459
2023 6,035,000 1,749,847 205,000 82,324 8,072,171
2024 6,295,000 1,498,030 195,000 93,415 8,081,445
2025 6,555,000 1,240,438 185,000 105,789 8,086,227
2026 4,420,000 966,213 175,000 116,438 5,677,651
2027 4,145,000 775,875 165,000 125,810 5,211,685
2028 3,335,000 598,488 155,000 134,682 4,223,170
2029 2,510,000 457,513 -- -- 2,967,513
2030 1,095,000 354,200 -- -- 1,449,200
2031 1,145,000 303,531 -- -- 1,448,531
2032 1,200,000 248,381 -- -- 1,448,381
2033 1,260,000 190,569 -- -- 1,450,569
2034 1,315,000 129,869 -- -- 1,444,869
2035 1,380,000 66,506 -- -- 1,446,506
Total:@ $97,195,000 $32,337,398 $ 1,500,000 $ 783,364 $ 131,815,762

(1) Interest projected at assumed rates of 3.64 to 4.70%.

(2) Preliminary, subject to change.

(3) Compounded interest.
(4) Totals may not foot due to rounding.
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Direct And Overlapping Debt

Direct Debt (as of May 1, 2015)

Non-Voted General Obligation Bonds Outstanding $ 98,695,000 @
Voted General Obligation Bonds Outstanding 0
Direct Debt $ 98,695,000
Overlapping Debt (March 31, 2015) $266,954,909
G.0. Estimated
2015 Percent of Debt Overlapping
Assessed Value Overlap Outstanding Debt
Vancouver Library Capital Facility
Area® $15,111,471,670  100.00% $ 35985000 $ 35,985,000
Evergreen School District No. 114 12,418,499,463 73.71 158,713,113 116,989,912
Port of Vancouver 27,682,045,907 57.12 53,915,000 30,796,579
Vancouver School District No. 37 13,745,563,541 4741 68,629,526 32,534,949
Clark County 43,282,896,530 36.53 129,747,009 47,399,318
Camas School District No. 117 4,124,497,005 3.44 94,390,000 3,249,151
Total Overlapping Debt $ 266,954,909
Total Direct and Overlapping $ 365,649,909 @
Debt

(1) Created by the Fort Vancouver Regional Library District.
(2) Preliminary, subject to change.
Source: Clark County Assessor’s and Treasurer’ s Offices and individual government units.

Bonded Debt Ratios*

2014 Assessed Valuation for 2015 Collection $15,812,154,819
2014 City Population 167,400
Direct Debt as a Percentage of Assessed Valuation 0.62%
Direct & Overlapping Debt as a Percentage of Assessed Valuation 2.31%
Per Capita Assessed Valuation $ 94,457
Per Capita Direct Debt $ 590
Per Capita Direct & Overlapping Debt $ 2,184

Debt Payment Record

The City has promptly met all debt service payments on outstanding obligations. No refunding bonds have been
issued to prevent an impending default.

Future Financings

Other than the Bonds, the City plans to issue its Limited Tax General Obligation and Refunding Bonds, 2015B in
the estimated amount of $23,000,000 in July of 2015. The City has no other authorized but unissued general
obligation bonds outstanding, nor does it anticipate issuing any other additional long-term general obligation debt
within the next 12 months.

" Preliminary, subject to change.
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AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS

Chapter 35.39 RCW limits the investment by a city of its inactive funds or other funds in excess of current needs to
the following authorized investments: United States bonds; United States certificates of indebtedness; bonds or
warrants of the State and any local government in the State; its own bonds or warrants of a local improvement
district which are within the protection of the local improvement guaranty fund law; and any other investment
authorized by law for any other taxing district or the State Treasurer. Under chapter 43.84 RCW, the State Treasurer
may invest in non-negotiable certificates of deposit in designated qualified public depositories; in obligations of the
U.S. government, its agencies and wholly owned corporations; in bankers' acceptances; in commercial paper; in the
obligations of the federal home loan bank, federal national mortgage association and other government corporations
subject to statutory provisions and may enter into repurchase agreements. Utility revenue bonds and warrants of any
city and bonds or warrants of alocal improvement district are also eligible investments (RCW 35.39.030).

Money available for investment may be invested on an individual fund basis or may, unless otherwise restricted by
law, be commingled within one common investment portfolio. All income derived from such investment may be
either apportioned to and used by the various participating funds or for the benefit of the general government in
accordance with city ordinances or resolutions. Funds derived from the sale of bonds or other instruments of
indebtedness will be invested or used in such manner as the authorizing ordinances, resolutions or bond covenants
may lawfully prescribe.

L ocal Government | nvestment Pool

The Office of the State Treasurer administers the Local Government Investment Pool (“LGIP"), a fund that invests
money on behalf of more than 450 cities, counties, specia taxing districts and State agencies. The LGIP typically
has $7 billion - $11 billion under investment as of March of 2015. The LGIP' sinvestment objectives are, in priority
order: (i) the safety of principal; (ii) maintaining adequate liquidity to meet cash flow demands; and (iii) to provide a
competitive interest rate relative to the first two goals. Historicaly, the LGIP has had sufficient liquidity to meet all
cash flow demands. The LGIP, authorized by chapter 43.250 RCW, is a voluntary pool which provides its
participants the opportunity to benefit from the economies of scale inherent in pooling. It is also intended to offer
participants increased safety of principal and the ability to achieve a higher investment yield than would otherwise
be available to them. The LGIP is invested in securities with a maximum final maturity of 397 days except for
floating-rate and variable-rate securities and securities that are used for repurchase agreements, which will not
exceed 762 days. Investments permitted under the LGIP’ s guidelines generally include repurchase agreements, U.S.
Treasury bills and notes, U.S. agency discount notes, coupons, floating-rate and variable-rate notes, reverse
repurchase agreements and bank deposits.

See “CITY PROFILE—Investment Policy” herein for a discussion of the City’s investment portfolio.
Authorized Investmentsfor Bond Proceeds

In addition to the eligible investments discussed above, bond proceeds may also be invested in mutual funds with
portfolios consisting of U.S. government and guaranteed agency securities with average maturities of less than four
years, municipal securities rated in one of the four highest categories, and money market funds consisting of the
same, so long as municipa securities held in the fund(s) are in one of the two highest rating categories of a
nationally recognized rating agency. Bond proceeds may also be invested in shares of money market funds with
portfolios of securities otherwise authorized by law for investment by local governments (RCW 39.59.030).
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COMPARATIVE GENERAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES

(Years Ending December 31)

Preliminary Actual
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
REVENUES
Taxes $111,491,085 $106,919,822 $102,594,804 $102,183,667 $97,678,120
Licenses and permits 862,142 887,569 899,275 850,921 834,780
I ntergovernmental 4,489,989 5,114,039 6,374,695 6,583,687 7,099,836
Charges for services 13,488,685 14,462,351 13,208,740 12,715,732 17,489,374
Fines and forfeitures 1,661,362 1,365,112 1,539,961 1,494,368 1,531,046
Investment earnings 439,219 320,021 337,788 383,922 405,564
Rents and royalties 3,245,652 3,063,080 1,352,038 1,239,377 913,144
Contributions/donations 256,585 253,446 172,803 229,142 209,143
Miscellaneous 136,307 134,127 1,744,116 1,227,858 1,494,832
Total Revenues 136,071,026 132,519,567 128,224,220 126,908,674 127,655,839
EXPENDITURES
General Government 25,918,244 23,960,585 23,940,429 24,134,836 24,329,698
Judicial @ 0 0 1,662,015 1,742,800 1,784,645
Security of persons and property 41,691,126 40,359,614 35,858,489 35,939,090 35,809,894
Physical environment 523,486 484,338 465,754 295,271 526,751
Transportation 703,331 744,262 1,378,618 1,704,684 2,760,040
Economic environment 4,352,508 4,313,792 4,280,736 4,992,059 6,151,551
Mental and physical health 369,408 338,591 385,797 264,823 383,666
Culture and recreation 6,895,250 7,487,962 7,525,446 8,852,862 9,327,961
Capital outlay 464,820 238,353 156,376 39,314 196,635
Total Expenditures 80,918,173 77,927,497 75,653,660 77,965,739 81,270,841
Excess Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 55,152,853 54,592,070 52,570,560 48,942,935 46,384,998
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of fixed assets 560 52 89,299 14,439 410,167
Transfer in 550,353 332,722 324,834 223,442 725,116
Transfer out (52,301,011)  (49,851,716)  (40,020,520)  (45,898,599)  (41,960,602)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (51,750,098)  (49,518,942)  (39,606,387)  (45,660,718)  (40,825,319)
Net Changein Fund Balance 3,402,755 5,073,128 12,964,173 3,282,217 5,559,679
Beginning Fund Balance @ 58,501,825 50,936,758 36,862,005 33,351,281 28,187,519
Prior period adjustment (279,978) 2,491,939 1,110,580 228,400 (395,918)
ENDING FUND BALANCE $61,624,602 $58501,825 $50,936,758 $36,861,898  $33,351,280

(1) In 2013, the State of Washington changed their Budgeting, Accounting, and Reporting System and “Judicial” is
now part of Security of persons and property.

(2) The 2012 beginning fund balance was restated from the 2011 ending fund balance due to the adoption of
GASB 54.

Source: City of Vancouver.
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COMPARATIVE GENERAL FUND STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

(Years Ending December 31)

Preliminary Actual
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
ASSETS
Cash and investments $56,463,992 $53,828,227 $48,729,732 $35,661,817 $ 32,654,567
Receivables 11,025,763 11,002,837 6,980,177 7,089,600 7,463,537
Due from other funds/governments 1,638,957 657,550 828,139 951,962 774,144
Interfund loan receivable 0 875,675 338,947 0 0
Prepaid items 8,195 0 0 0 0
Capital assets held for resale 228,400 228,400 228,400 228,400 0
Advances to other funds 0 0 685,000 800,000 910,000
Total Assets $69,365,307 $66,592,689 $57,790,395 $44,731,779 $41,802,248
LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 4,389,272 $ 3,030911 $ 2675440 $ 3,765344 $ 3,400,352
Due to other funds/government 593,976 472,938 564,476 545,756 475,049
Accrued ligbilities 1,951,132 2,816,975 1,630,345 1,169,682 1,983,247
Revenues collected in advance 289,747 325,602 332,032 164,326 165,453
Custodial accounts 155,952 159,745 149,550 118,208 145,450
Deferred revenues 912,083 1,284,693 1,501,794 2,106,565 2,281,417
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 228,400 228,400 913,400 -- --
Restricted 141,000 241,331 1,064,707 -- -
Committed 40,000,000 41,095,993 40,276,519 -- --
Assigned 4,000,000 4,148,166 3,893,165 -- -
Unassigned 16,703,745 12,787,935 4,788,967 -- --
Reserved -- -- -- 2,332,975 955,735
Unreserved -- -- - 34,528,923 32,395,545
Total Liabilitiesand Fund Balance $69,365,307 $66,592,689 $57,790,395 $44,731,779 $41,802,248

Source: City of Vancouver.
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GENERAL FUND BUDGET

The following table provides a comparative summary of the City’s 2014, 2015 and 2016 General Fund budgets.

(Years Ending December 31)

Adopted Adopted Actual
2016 2015 2014
REVENUES
Taxes $114,395,782 $111,537,841 $111,684,427
Business Licenses 913,138 912,464 851,489
Grants and entitlements 150,000 577,925 1,701,229
State shared revenues 3,013,534 2,961,392 2,883,948
Parks contract with Clark County 0 0 59,845
Charges for services 9,098,672 8,853,928 13,142,288
District court 1,675,240 1,659,372 1,841,392
Miscellaneous 3,740,496 4,839,611 4,114,054
Operating transfers 601,761 596,335 550,353
Total Revenues $133,588,623 $131,938,868 $136,829,025
EXPENDITURES
Salaries and benefits $ 38,263,809 $ 36,918,454 $ 39,437,385
Medical benefits 5,602,056 5,497,656 6,006,639
Worker's comp 555,140 555,140 615,389
Supplies and services 10,469,094 12,082,755 13,857,745
Intergovernmental services 3,639,697 3,618,506 3,679,334
Capital outlays 1,400 73,801 464,820
Interfund transfers and payments 58,584,268 61,006,953 59,604,726
Internal Service Payments 11,815,080 11,027,465 6,903,943
General Fund support of cable 460,596 460,596 460,596
L EOFF pension payment 2,836,000 2,836,000 2,835,996
Total Expenditures $132,227,139 $134,077,326 $133,866,573
Excess revenues over (under) $ 1,361,484 ($ 2,138,449) $ 3,016,346
expenditures
Source: City of Vancouver.
CITY PROFILE

Government Organization

The City, which was incorporated in 1857, adopted the Council-Manager form of government in 1952 with a mayor
and six member council (the “Council”) elected by popular vote. The Mayor appoints the City Manager (with
majority approval of the Council) to provide administrative direction for the City. The City provides services per its
charter. The City operates its own Police, Fire, Park and Recreation, and Public Works Departments. The City lies
on the north bank of the Columbia River, directly across from Portland, Oregon on Interstate 5, 100 miles inland
from the Pacific Ocean. The City has a commercia seaport and is the County seat.
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Principal City Officers

Current members of the Council are:

Members Position Term Expires
Timothy Leavitt Mayor December 31, 2017
Jack Burkman Council Member December 31, 2017
Bart Hansen Council Member December 31, 2015
Anne McEnerny-Ogle Council Member December 31, 2017
Larry Smith Council Member December 31, 2015
Alishia Topper Council Member December 31, 2017
Bill Turlay Council Member December 31, 2015

Timothy D. Leavitt, Mayor. Mayor Leavitt was appointed to the Council in January 2003 to fill a vacancy, later
elected to a full Council term in November 2003, and then re-elected to the Council in 2007. In November 2009,
Mayor Leavitt was elected to a four-year term as Mayor beginning January 1, 2010, and was re-elected as Mayor in
November 2013. Mayor Leavitt also serves on the C-TRAN Board of Directors, the Columbia River Crossing
Project Sponsors Council, and the Regiona Partners Economic Development Council. He is a graduate of
Washington State University, where he earned both a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering and a master’s in
environmental engineering. Mayor Leavitt holds a professiona position as Senior Civil Engineer with PBS
Engineering + Environmental. In 2000, he assisted with the opening of a Vancouver branch of the company. His
responsibilities at PBS Engineering + Environmental include business development, client relations, project
management and technical oversight of staff engineers.

Eric Holmes, City Manager. The Council unanimously voted to hire Assistant City Manager Eric Holmes to fill the
position of City Manager, successfully negotiating an employment agreement on November 1, 2010. Mr. Holmes
has spent 17 years in public administration and was Planning Director for the City of Washougal from 1996 to 1997.
He was appointed City Manager of Battle Ground in 1997 where he served until 2006. Following his tenure in
Battle Ground, Mr. Holmes acted as Chief Operating Officer for MacKay & Sposito, Inc. until 2007 when he
accepted the position of Economic Development Director for the City of Vancouver. Mr. Holmes assumed the role
of Deputy City Manager in June 2010. Mr. Holmes holds both a bachelor of arts in planning, public policy and
management from the University of Oregon and a master’s of public administration from Lewis & Clark College.
He is an executive board member of the Columbia River Economic Development Council (CREDC), a member of
the Association of Washington Cities (AWC) Legisative Committee and Washington State University Vancouver
Advisory Council.

R. Lloyd Tyler, Chief Financial Officer, City Clerk. Lloyd Tyler joined the City in January 2005. He has been
working with state and local governments for over 30 years, most recently as Chief Financial Officer of the North
American Development Bank, an international organization created under the guidance of the North American Free
Trade Agreement to finance environmental infrastructure along the US-Mexico border. Prior to that, Mr. Tyler
served as Vice President of Public Finance in a regional investment banking and financial advisory firm serving
state and local governments throughout the Northwest and Alaska. He has a bachelor of arts degree in business
administration and a bachelor of arts degree in Spanish literature and language from the University of Washington,
and a masters of business administration in international management and finance from the Thunderbird School of
Globa Management in Glendale, Arizona.

Carrie Lewellen, Treasurer/Deputy Clerk. Carrie Lewellen was appointed by the City as Treasurer in March 2002.
Prior to the appointment, she worked for Clark County in the Treasurer’s Office for 14 years. She has a bachelors of
arts degree in business management from the Evergreen State College in the State of Washington, and has held the
Certified Cash Manager/Certified Treasury Professional designation from the Association for Financia
Professionals since 1996. Sheisamember of the Vancouver Fire and Police Pension Board, and has been a member
of the Washington State L ocal Government Investment Pool Advisory Committee since 2005.

Bronson Potter, City Attorney. Bronson Potter became the city attorney on August 1, 2014. He became the City’s
Chief Assistant City Attorney on July 2, 2013. Prior to that time, he was the chief civil deputy for the Clark County
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Prosecuting Attorney’s Office, which he joined in 1991. He earned a bachelor of arts degree from the University of
Cdlifornia, Berkeley and received his juris doctorate from the Lewis and Clark School of Law. While in private
practice from 1979 to 1991, he was a partner in the Vancouver, Washington law firm of Whitlock, Potter and
Saunders. Mr. Potter has served on the board of directors of several nonprofit organizations including the
Washington Defense Trial Lawyers, the Columbia Land Trust and the Mazamas.

Accounting and Budgeting Policies

The City prepares budgets in accordance with chapter 35.34 RCW. As background to the process, the City prepares
afive year financia forecast of general operations. Biennial calendar year budgets are adopted by the Council for
funds providing customary government services. Long-term, project-oriented budgets are adopted as required and
amended as additional appropriations are needed. Specia assessment and certain custodial agency funds are not
budgeted. Within the constraint of the total budget, a change in appropriations within a fund may be authorized by
the City Manager. All budgets are accounted for on aline-item basis with control at the object summary total level.
Estimated purchase order amounts are encumbered prior to the release of the order to the vendor. Open
encumbrances lapse at year-end and must be re-appropriated or absorbed in the next year’ s operating budget.

Cities and counties of the State must comply with the Budgeting, Accounting, and Reporting System (“BARS”)
prescribed by the Office of the State Auditor as authorized under RCW 43.09.230. State laws also provide for
annual independent audits by the Office of the State Auditor and require timely submission of annual financial
reports to the State for review. The financial system of the City incorporates a system of financial administrative
controls that ensure the safeguarding of assets and the reliability of financial reports and consequently are designed
to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are executed in accordance with management authorization,
recorded in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP") as applicable to governmental
entities, that there exists accountability of and control over assets and obligations, and that sufficient reporting and
review exists to provide adequate information for analysis and comparability of data. Internal control is an area of
audit by the State Auditor, as well, and City management receives and takes action upon recommendations made by
the State Auditor. The City’s financial statements are subject to annual audit by the State Auditor. The audited
2013 financial statements are attached hereto as Appendix B.

I nvestment Policy

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. In general, interest earned from
the pooled investments is allocated to each fund based on the average earnings and daily cash balance of each fund.

Deposits. As of March 31, 2015, the City’s carrying amount of deposits was $2,803,679 and bank balance was
$3,179,743. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC") insures the City’s deposit up to $250,000
insurance on interest bearing deposit and investments through December 31, 2015. All deposits not covered by
FDIC are covered under the State of Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission Act of 1969. As of
June 30, 2009, the State of Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission Act of 1969 was amended to require
all public depositories within the State of Washington to fully collateralize their uninsured public deposits at 100%.

Investments. The City maintains an Internal Investment Pool (“l1IP’). The IIP has an average maturity of
approximately eleven months. Some funds are invested for the benefit of the respective fund. Remaining monies
are aggregated in aresidual account, and invested in the I1P for the benefit of all funds. Asrequired by State law, all
investments of the City funds are obligations of the U.S. Government, U.S. agency issues, the LGIP, or the Clark
County Investment Pool. Regulatory oversight is performed by the Chief Financial Officer, the Treasurer, and the
Treasury accountant.

As of March 31, 2015 the fair value of the City's investment portfolio was $273,049,206 of which $2,628,528 was

invested on behalf of the Firemen's Pension Fund, and $270,420,678 was invested in the IIP for the benefit of all
funds. Investments of pension funds are not subject to the preceding limitations under State law.
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Labor Relations

The City currently has approximately 976.45 full and part-time employees, the majority of whom are eligible under
State law to be represented by a labor organization under provisions of negotiated contracts with 10 bargaining
units. The City considersits relationship with the bargaining units to be good.

No. of Employees

Union Repr esented Agreement Expires
OPEIU, Local 11 127 December 31, 2016
Vancouver Police Officer’s Guild 171 December 31, 2014(1)
IAFF, Local 452 160 December 31, 2016
AFSCME, Local 307vVC 163 December 31, 2014(1)
Teamsters, Local 58 13 December 31, 2014(1)
Plumbers & Steamfitters, Local 290 18 December 31, 2014(1)
IAM District Lodge 17 December 31, 2014(1)
OPEIU Law & Justice Division 11 December 31, 2014(1)
IAFF, Local 452 (Fire Marshal’s Office) 9 December 31, 2016
Fire Command Officers Guild 9 December 31, 2016

(1) Contract currently in negotiation.
Pension System

All permanent City employees, including part-time employees who work 70 hours per month during five
consecutive months, must participate in one of the following statewide local government retirement systems
administered by the State Department of Retirement Systems as cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee
retirement systems.

Substantialy all the City employees are enrolled in the State Public Employees’ Retirement System (“PERS’) or the
Law Enforcement Officers and Fire Fighters' Retirement System (“LEOFF"). PERS and LEOFF participants who
joined the system by September 30, 1977 are Plan 1 members. Those participants who joined on or after October 1,
1977 are Plan 2 members. In addition, PERS participants joining on or after September 1, 2002 have the option of
making an irrevocabl e selection of membership in either PERS Plan 2 or PERS Plan 3. Thereisno LEOFF Plan 3.

Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans, and Plan 3 is a combination defined benefit/defined contribution plan.
Fluctuations in the financial markets do not affect defined benefit plan retirement benefits, but may affect benefits
expected to be received from the defined contribution portion of PERS Plan 3.

Each biennium, the State Pension Funding Council adopts employer and employee contribution rates. Employee
contribution rates for PERS Plan 1 are established by statute at six percent and do not vary from year to year.
LEOFF employer contributions are partially subsidized by the State. The following table outlines the currently
effective contribution rates of employees and employers under PERS and L EOFF.

The following tables outline the contribution rates of employees and employers under PERS and LEOFF.

PERS Contribution Ratesas of July 1, 2014

PERSPlan 1 PERSPlan 2 PERSPlan 3
Employer® 9.21% 9.21% 9.21%
Employee 6.00% 4.92% Variable (5% to 15%)

(1) Includes a0.18% administration fee.
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L EOFF Contribution Ratesas of July 1, 2014

Plan 1 Plan 2
Employer ) 0.18% 5.23%
Employee 0.00% 8.41%
State 0.00% 3.36%

(1) Includesa0.18% administration fee.

The City contributed $3,308,202 to PERS and $1,949,128 to LEOFF in 2014 for all of the City’s employees that are
covered under PERS and LEOFF. However, future contribution rates are expected to be adjusted to meet system
needs. Recent market conditions have had an impact on the funding levels of the both LEOFF and PERS, and it is
expected that the contribution rates for employees and employers in the PERS Plans 2 and 3 will increase in the
coming years. The website of the Office of the State Actuary (“OSA™) (which is not incorporated into this Official
Statement by reference) includes information regarding the values and funding levels of these retirement plans.
Additional information and historical trend information is presented in Washington State’'s Department of
Retirement Systems’ annual financial report. A copy of this report and additional information about these programs
may be obtained from the Department of Retirement Systems, Point Plaza West, 1025 East Union Street, P.O. Box
48380, Olympia, WA 98504-8380, Phone: (800) 547-6657, Internet Address. www.drs.wa.gov.*

According to OSA, as of June 30, 2013, PERS Plans 2 and 3 and LEOFF Plans 1 and 2 had no unfunded actuaria
accrued liability. However, during the years 2001 through 2010 the rates adopted by the Legislature were lower
than those that would have been required to produce actuarially required contributions to PERS Plan 1, a closed plan
with alarge proportion of the retirees. According to areport issued by OSA in September 2014, and subject to the
assumptions therein, the total unfunded actuarial accrued liability of PERS Plan 1 was $4,831 hillion (63% funded
on an actuarial basis) as of June 30, 2013. The assumptions used by OSA in calculating the unfunded liability as of
June 30, 2013 of PERS and LEOFF are 7.8 percent annual rate of investment return (7.5% for LEOFF Plan 2), 3.75
percent salary increases, 3.0 percent inflation and 0.95 percent growth in membership (1.25% for LEOFF). To
report funded status, liabilities were valued using the “Projected Unit Credit” cost method and assets valued using
the actuarial vaue of assets.

In July 2014, the Pension Funding Council (the “PFC") adopted contribution rate increases to be phased in over
three biennia, beginning with the 2015-17 biennium. For the 2015-17 biennium, employer rates will be 11 percent
for PERS Plans 1, 2 and 3 (net of administrative fees) and employee rates for PERS Plan 2 will be 6.12 percent.
PERS Plan 1 and 3 remain unchanged from the table above. The LEOFF 2 Board did not adopt a rate increase for
the 2015-17 biennium. The rates adopted by the PFC and LEOFF 2 Board are subject to revision by the State
legislature.

Other than PERS Plans 2 and 3, which are combined for reporting purposes, assets for one plan may not be used to
fund benefits for another plan; however, all employers in PERS are required to make contributions at rates
(percentage of payroll) determined by the OSA every two years for the purpose of amortizing within arolling 10-
year period the unfunded actuarial accrued liability in PERS Plan 1. The State Legidature in 2009 established
certain maximum contribution rates that began in 2009 and continue until 2015 and certain minimum contribution
rates that are to become effective in 2015 and remain in effect until the actuarial value of assets in PERS Plan 1
equal 100 percent of actuarial accrued liability of PERS Plan 1. These rates are subject to change by future
legidation enacted by the State Legislature to address future changes in actuarial and economic assumptions and
investment performance.

" The website of the Department of Retirement Systems is not part of this Official Statement and investors should
not rely on information that is presented in its website in determining whether to purchase Bonds. This inactive
textual reference to the website is not a hyperlink and does not incorporate the website by reference.
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Other Post Employment Benefits

In addition to pensions, many State and local governmental employers provide other post-employment benefits
(“OPEB") as a part of total compensation to attract and retain the services of qualified employees. OPEB includes
post-employment health care as well as other forms of post-employment benefits when provided separately from a
pension plan.

The City’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer
(“ARC"), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 45. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and to amortize any
unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (“UAAL") over a period not to exceed 30 years. The City’s annual OPEB cost
and net OPEB obligation for 2013 were as follows:

Annual Required Contribution $ 2,866,245
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 180,653
Adjustment to annual required contribution (296,795)

Annual OPEB Cost 2,750,103
Contributions Made (1,576,597)

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 1,173,506
Net OPEB Obligation — Beginning of Year 4,817,425

Net OPEB Obligation — End of Year $ 5,990,931

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for the years ending December 31 were as follows:

Fiscal Contribution asa
Year Annual Per centage of Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Annual OPEB Cost Obligation
2013 $2,750,103 57% $5,990,931
2012 2,658,748 62 4,817,425
2011 2,685,552 60 3,841,696

Risk M anagement

The City has established a Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund (the “Self-Insurance Fund”) to account for and
finance its insured and uninsured risks of loss. The Self-Insurance Fund addresses claims in four areas of risk
including general liability, worker's compensation, property, and unemployment. Commercia insurance is
purchased to handle risk of loss. In the past three years, no settlements have exceeded the City’s insurance limits.
Potential investors should note that the following information is unaudited and is subject to audit adjustments.

General Liability and Property. The self-insurance cost for liability claims and claims administration through
December 31, 2014, was $705,489 with 79 new claims filed for 2014. The fund pays the mgjority of claims
involving general liability, but has other liability coverage through specific policies. Currently, specific policies
include airpark liability at an annual cost of $4,691. Coverage totals $5,000,000 for liability and $5,000,000 for
hangar keepers legal. In addition, the City purchases excess liability insurance for all City operations including
auto, for alimit of $10,000,000 plus $10,000,000 excess at an annual cost of $302,014. The excess policy provides
$1,000,000 for self-insured retention. The City also purchases liability on specific vehicles up to $1,000,000 at an
annua cost of $8,961 and inland marine coverage for the equipment fleet at an annual cost of $43,603. The
deductible for fleet physical damage is 5% subject to $10,000 minimum.

Property claim costs in 2014 were $132,285, with 47 new first party property and vehicle claims reported in 2014.

The City carries fire damage insurance (buildings and business personal property), earth movement, equipment
breakdown, valuable papers, computer virus, accounts receivable and flood insurance coverage at an annual cost of
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$387,658 for all City buildings and contents. Policy coverage for property damage is up to $400 million with
adjustable deductibles based on specific event types. This represents replacement cost for City buildings and
contents.

Worker’s Compensation. The cost for Workers' Compensation claims and claims administration was $2,193,284 in
2014, with 94 new claims processed. Reportable claims costs for 2014 are $625,347 with 44 open claims. The City
is self-insured through the fund for workers' compensation; however, an excess coverage policy is carried a an
annual premium cost of $87,483. The policy has a $750,000 deductible.

Contributions and Reserves. City fund contributions to the Self-Insurance Fund are determined using information
from the contributing funds past claims experience and loss exposures. The claims liability reported in the Self-
Insurance Fund totaled $4,323,000 as of December 31, 2014.

GENERAL AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

The City is located in southwest Clark County, approximately 15 miles north of Portland, Oregon. It is the largest
city in the County with a 2014 estimated population of 167,400. The Vancouver PMSA (Clark County) has a
diversified industrial base which includes the following types of industry: computer, steel fabrication, electronics,
airplane repair, electric heat equipment, machine shops, fruit packing, furniture manufacturing, paper bags, brick
and tile, ice manufacturing, grain elevator, malt plant, chemicals, clothing manufacturing, twine and ropes, concrete
pipes and blocks, golf carts, fertilizer, industrial ceramics, disposable diapers, plastic bottles, cabinet manufacturing,
luxury motor yachts, VCRs, plastic manufacturing, and snack food manufacturing.

Population

Historical populations for the City and Clark County are asfollows:

City of Clark
Y ear Vancouver County
2014 167,400 442,800
2013 164,500 435,500
2012 163,200 431,250
2011 162,300 428,000
2010 161,791 425,363

Source: Washington Sate Office of Financial Management estimates.
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Largest Employers
The table below shows alist of the major employersin Clark County ranked by number of employees.

Clark County Area Major Employers 2014

Employer Service/Product Employees
Bonneville Power Administration Energy services 2,723
PeaceHealth SW Washington Med. Center Hospital 2,500
Evergreen Public Schools K-12 education 2,473
Vancouver Public Schools K-12 education 2,341
Clark County Local county government 1,650
Fred Meyer Stores, Inc. Grocery, apparel, general merch. 1,601
Battle Ground Public Schools K-12 education 1,342
Legacy Salmon Creek Medical Center Hospital 1,050
WaferTech, LLC Silicon wafer fabrication 1,040
Clark College Higher education 1,031
The Vancouver Clinic Medical offices 994
VA Medical Clinic Medical offices 927
City of Vancouver Local city government 913
SEH Americalnc. Silicon wafer fabrication 865
BNSF Railway Rail services 825
Camas School District No. 117 K-12 education 750
Kaiser Permanente Northwest Hospital 707
Fisher Investments Financial Services 690
Dick Hannah Deal erships Automotive 640
Educational Service District No. 112 Education services 600
Charter Communications Cable, internet & phone services 566

Source: Columbia River Economic Development Council .
Economic Data
Following are additional economic indicators for the City and Clark County.

City of Vancouver
Building Permits

Commercial Construction Residential Construction®
Number of Number of
Y ear Permits Valuation Permits Valuation
2014 704 $ 88,273,072 832 $ 31,599,470
2013 747 105,543,043 841 36,651,890
2012 846 72,323,940 753 35,254,080
2011 664 186,830,735 703 18,336,099
2010 704 72,392,029 632 19,829,751
2009 582 57,508,910 690 21,766,323

(1) Includes mabile homes, residential (additions/garages/remodel), single-family residence and duplex permits.
Source: City of Vancouver.
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Taxable Retail Sales

City of Clark

Y ear Vancouver County

2014® $2,195,409,467 $3,860,021,559
2013 2,768,847,022 4,870,333,373
2012 2,547,094,884 4,456,683,103
2011 2,406,546,642 4,197,332,776
2010 2,276,978,353 4,036,327,779
2009 2,257,127,731 3,893,050,313

(1) 2014 dataincludes only first through third quarters.
Source: Washington Sate Department of Revenue.

Personal and Per Capita Income

Clark County

State of Washington

Total Personal Total Personal
Income Per Capita Income Per Capita
Y ear (000's) Personal Income (000's) Per sonal Income
2014 () Q) $350,130,036 $49,583
2013 $18,004,341 $40,567 332,654,857 47,717
2012 17,381,450 39,695 324,458,394 47,055
2011 16,204,607 37,433 303,999,485 44,565
2010 15,393,101 36,056 286,862,463 42,547
2009 15,188,176 36,056 280,943,954 42,137

(1) 2014 Clark County datais currently not available.

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis.

M edian Household | ncome

(1) Figuresfor 2013 are preliminary estimate, 2014 are projected.

Clark Washington
Year County State
2014 @ $59,341 $58,686
2013 @ 57,674 57,554
2012 56,054 56,444
2011 54,951 55,500
2010 54,581 54,888

Source: Washington State Office of Financial Management.
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Clark County
Nonagricultural Wage & Salary Workers®
and Labor Force and Employment Data
Annual Average

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Civilian Labor Force 212,940 206,360 206,090 209,180 212,380
Total Employment 196,240 188,860 186,300 187,160 186,100
Total Unemployment 16,700 15,550 19,790 22,020 26,280
Percent of Labor Force 7.8 7.6 9.6 105 12.4
NAICS INDUSTRY ©® 20151 2014 2013 2012 2011
Total Nonfarm 146,900 140,000 138,400 134,300 131,500
Construction, Mining, and Logging 9,800 9,300 9,300 8,600 8,200
Construction and Mining 9,700 9,200 9,200 8,500 8,100
Logging 100 100 100 100 100
Manufacturing 13,300 12,900 12,900 12,400 11,700
Durable Goods 8,900 8,500 8,400 7,900 7,400
Nondurable Goods 4,400 4,400 4,500 4,500 4,300
Trade, Transportation, and Utilities 27,100 25,500 25,400 24,700 24,200
Wholesale Trade 6,500 6,000 5,800 5,600 5,300
Retail Trade 16,800 15,800 15,800 15,400 15,100
Transportation, Warehousing, and Utilities 3,800 3,700 3,800 3,700 3,800
Information 3,100 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,700
Financial Activities 7,200 7,000 6,900 6,600 6,300
Finance and Insurance 4,900 4,700 4,600 4,300 4,000

Real Estate and Rental and Leasing 2,300 2,300 2,300 2,300 2,300
Professional and Business Services 17,900 16,500 16,300 15,500 15,000
Professional, Scientific, and Technical Serv. 8,200 7,500 7,200 6,900 6,800
Management of Companies 2,400 2,200 2,100 1,700 1,500
Admin., Support, Waste Mgmt., and Remed. 7,300 6,800 6,900 6,900 6,700
Education and Health Services 25,300 24,300 23,200 23,100 22,800
Education Services 1,800 1,700 1,500 1,400 1,400
Health Care and Social Assistance 23,500 22,600 21,700 21,700 21,400
Leisure and Hospitality 13,000 12,700 13,100 12,500 12,300
Arts, Entertainment and Recreation 2,000 2,100 2,400 2,300 2,300
Accommodation and Food Services 11,000 10,600 10,700 10,200 10,000
Other Services 5,600 5,100 5,100 4,900 4,700
Government 24,600 24,100 23,700 23,500 23,800
Federal Government 3,100 3,100 3,100 3,100 3,100
State Government 3,800 3,900 3,900 3,900 4,000
Local Government 17,700 17,100 16,700 16,500 16,800
Workers in Labor/Management Disputes 0 0 0 0 0

(1) Excludes proprietors, self-employed, members of the armed services, workers in private households, and
agriculture. Includes all full- and part-time wage and salary workers receiving pay during the pay period
including the 12th of the month.

(2) Preliminary Datathrough February, 2015.

(3) North American Industry Classification System.

Source:  Washington Sate Employment Security Department.
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INITIATIVE AND REFERENDUM

Under the State Constitution, the voters of the State have the ability to initiate legislation and modify existing
legidlation through the powers of initiative and referendum, respectively. The initiative power in Washington may
not be used to amend the State Constitution. Initiatives and referenda are submitted to the voters upon receipt of a
petition signed by at least 8% (initiatives) and 4% (referenda) of the number of voters registered and voting for the
office of Governor at the preceding regular gubernatorial election. Any law approved in this manner by a majority
of the voters may not be amended or repealed by the Legislature within a period of two years following enactment,
except by avote of two-thirds of all the members elected to each house of the Legislature. After two years, the law
is subject to amendment or repeal by the Legislature in the same manner as other laws.

TAX MATTERS

In the opinion of Bond Counsdl, interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax
purposes and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federa aternative minimum tax imposed on
individuals and corporations; however, interest on the Bonds is taken into account in determining adjusted current
earnings for the purpose of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on certain corporations.

Federal income tax law contains a number of requirements that apply to the Bonds, including investment
restrictions, periodic payments of arbitrage profits to the United States, requirements regarding the use of proceeds
of the Bonds and the facilities financed with proceeds of the Bonds and certain other matters. The City has
covenanted to comply with all applicable requirements.

Bond Counsel’ s opinion is subject to the condition that the City comply with the above-referenced covenants and, in
addition, will rely on representations by the City and its advisors with respect to matters solely within the knowledge
of the City and its advisors, respectively, which Bond Counsel has not independently verified. If the City failsto
comply with such covenants or if the foregoing representations are determined to be inaccurate or incomplete,
interest on the Bonds could be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactively to the date of
issuance of the Bonds, regardless of the date on which the event causing taxability occurs.

Except as expressly stated above, Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other federal or state income
tax conseguences of acquiring, carrying, owning or disposing of the Bonds. Owners of the Bonds should consult
their tax advisors regarding the applicability of any collateral tax consequences of owning the Bonds, which may
include tax issues associated with original issue discount, original issue premium, purchase at a market discount or
at a premium, taxation upon sale, redemption or other disposition, and various withholding requirements.

Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should be aware that ownership of the Bonds may result in collateral federal
income tax consequences to certain taxpayers, including, without limitation, financia institutions, property and
casualty insurance companies, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, certain S
corporations with “excess net passive income,” foreign corporations subject to the branch profits tax, life insurance
companies and taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry or
have paid or incurred certain expenses alocable to the Bonds. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any
collateral tax consegquences. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their tax advisors regarding
collateral federal income tax conseguences.

Payments of interest on tax-exempt obligations, such as the Bonds, are in many cases required to be reported to the
Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS"). Additionally, backup withholding may apply to any such payments made to
any owner who is not an “exempt recipient” and who fails to provide certain identifying information. Individuals
generally are not exempt recipients, whereas corporations and certain other entities generally are exempt recipients.

Bond Counsel gives no assurance that any future legislation or clarifications or amendments to the Code, if enacted
into law, will not cause the interest on the Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, to federal income taxation.
From time to time, legislation is proposed that, if enacted, could alter the federal income tax consegquences described
herein or otherwise prevent owners of the Bonds from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of the
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interest on the Bonds. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding any
pending or proposed federal legislation, as to which Bond Counsel expresses no view.

Bond Counsel’s opinion is not a guarantee of result and is not binding on the IRS; rather, the opinion represents
Bond Counsdl’s legal judgment based on its review of existing law and in reliance on the representations made to
Bond Counsel and the City’s compliance with its covenants. The IRS has established an ongoing program to audit
tax-exempt obligations to determine whether interest on such obligations is includable in gross income for federa
income tax purposes. Bond Counsel cannot predict whether the IRS will commence an audit of the Bonds. Owners
of the Bonds are advised that, if the IRS does audit the Bonds, under current IRS procedures, at least during the
early stages of an audit, the IRS will treat the City as the taxpayer, and the owners of the Bonds may have limited
rights to participate in the audit. The commencement of an audit could adversely affect the market value and
liquidity of the Bonds until the audit is concluded, regardless of the ultimate outcome.

Original |ssue Discount

The initial public offering price of certain Bonds (the “Origina Issue Discount Bonds’), is less than the stated
redemption price at maturity. In such case, the difference between (i) the stated amount payable at the maturity of
an Original Issue Discount Bond and (ii) the initial public offering price of that Original Issue Discount Bond
congtitutes original issue discount with respect to that Original 1ssue Discount Bond in the hands of the owner who
purchased that Original Issue Discount Bond at the initial public offering price in the initial public offering of the
Bonds. Theinitial owner is entitled to exclude from gross income (as defined in Section 61 of the Code) an amount
of income with respect to an Original Issue Discount Bond equal to that portion of the amount of the original issue
discount allocable to the period that such Original Issue Discount Bond continues to be owned by the initial owner.

In the event of the redemption, sale or other taxable disposition of an Original Issue Discount Bond prior to its stated
maturity, however, the amount realized by the initial owner in excess of the basis of the Original Issue Discount
Bond in the hands of itsinitial owner (adjusted upward by the portion of the original issue discount allocable to the
period for which such Bond was held by the initial owner) is includable in gross income. Purchasers of Original
Issue Discount Bonds should consult their tax advisors regarding the determination and treatment of original issue
discount for federal income tax purposes and the state and local tax consequences of owning Original I1ssue Discount
Bonds.

ABSENCE OF MATERIAL LITIGATION

There is no litigation of any kind now pending or, to the knowledge of the City, threatened to restrain or enjoin the
issuance or delivery of the Bonds or in any manner questioning the proceedings and authority under which the
Bonds areissued or affecting the ability of the City to pay the principal of or the interest on the Bonds.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

The Bonds are not being sold through an underwriter or broker and, therefore, are not subject to Section (b)(5) of
Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The City has voluntarily agreed for the
benefit of the Bondowners to provide or cause to be provided to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board
(“MSRB"), the following annual financial information and operating data for the prior fiscal year (commencing in
2016 for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2015): (i) annual financial statements, which statements may or may
not be audited, showing ending fund balances, prepared in accordance with regulations prescribed by the State
Auditor pursuant to RCW 43.09.200 (or any successor statutes) and generally of the type included in this Official
Statement under the heading “Comparative General Fund Statement Of Revenues, Expenditures And Changes In
Fund Balances’; (ii) the assessed valuation of taxable property in the City; (iii) ad valorem taxes due and percentage
of taxes collected; (iv) property tax levy rate per $1,000 of assessed valuation; and (v) outstanding general
obligation debt of the City.

Such annual information and operating data described above will be so provided on or before the end of nine months

after the end of the City’s fiscal year. The City may adjust such date if the City changesits fiscal year by providing
written notice of the change of fiscal year to the MSRB. The City’s current fiscal year ends on December 31. In lieu
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of providing such annual financial information and operating data, the City may cross-reference to other documents
available to the public on the MSRB’s internet website.

If not provided as part of the annual financial information discussed above, the City will provide to the MSRB its
audited annual financial statements prepared in accordance with regulations prescribed by the State Auditor pursuant
to the statutes cited above (or any successor statutes) when and if available.

Material Events. The City agreesto provide or cause to be provided, in atimely manner, to the MSRB notice of the
occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds not in excess of ten business days after the
occurrence of the event:

e Principal and interest payment delinquencies,

e Non payment related defaults, if material;

e Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;

e Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

e Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

e Adversetax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations
of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or
determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or other material or events affecting the tax
exempt status of the Bonds;

e Modificationsto the rights of Bond owners, if material;

e Optional, contingent or unscheduled Bond calls other than scheduled sinking fund redemptions for
which notice is given pursuant to Exchange Act Release 34 23856, if material, and tender offers;

o Defeasances,
o Release, substitution or sale of property securing the repayment of the Bonds, if material;
e Rating changes,

e Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the City or any obligated person (as that term
is defined in the Rule);

e The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition of the City or any obligated person or the
sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the City or any obligated person, other thanin the
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the
termination of a definitive agreement to undertake such an action, other than pursuant to itsterms, if
material; and

e Appointment of asuccessor or additional trustee or the change of name of the trustee, if material.

Solely for purposes of information, and not intending to modify this undertaking, the City advises that no property
secures payment of the Bonds. The City shall promptly determine whether the events described above are material.

Notification Upon Failure to Provide Financial Data. The City has agreed to provide or cause to be provided, in a

timely manner, to the MSRB notice of its failure to provide the annual financial information described above on or
prior to the date set forth above.
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EMMA; Format for Filings with the MSRB. Until otherwise designated by the MSRB or the Securities and
Exchange Commission, any information or notices submitted to the MSRB in compliance with the Rule are to be
submitted through the MSRB'’s Electronic Municipa Market Access system (“EMMA?”), currently located at
www.emma.msrb.org (which is not incorporated into this Official Statement by reference). All notices, financial
information and operating data required by this undertaking to be provided to the MSRB must be in an electronic
format as prescribed by the MSRB. All documents provided to the MSRB pursuant to this undertaking must be
accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB.

Termination/Modification. The City’s obligations to provide notices of the events described above shall terminate
upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds. Any provision of the City’'s
undertaking shall be null and void if the City (1) obtains an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the
effect that the portions of the Rule that requires the City’s undertaking or any such provision are invalid, have been
repealed retroactively or otherwise not apply to the Bonds, and (2) notifies the MSRB of such opinion and the
cancellation of the City’ s undertaking. The City may amend its undertaking with an approving opinion of nationally
recognized bond counsel in accordance with the Rule.

In the event of any amendment of or waiver of a provision of the City’s undertaking, the City will describe such
amendment in the next annua report, and will include, as applicable, a narrative explanation of the reason for the
amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the case of a change of accounting principles, on the
presentation) of financial information or operating data being presented by the City. In addition, if the amendment
relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial statements, (1) notice of such change will
be given in the same manner as notice for an event described above, and (2) the annual report for the year in which
the change is made will present a comparison (in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between
the financial statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of
the former accounting principles.

Bondowner’s Remedies Related to Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. A Bondowner’s or a Beneficial Owner’s
right to enforce the City’ s continuing disclosure undertaking will be limited to aright to obtain specific enforcement
of the City’s obligations related thereto, and any failure by the City to comply with the provisions of this
undertaking will not be a default with respect to the Bonds under the Bond Ordinance. For purposes of the City’'s
undertaking, “Beneficial Owner” means any person who has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or consent
with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds, including persons holding Bonds through nominees or
depositories.

Compliance with Continuing Disclosure Undertakings. The City has entered into undertakings to provide annual
information and the notice of the occurrence of certain events with respect to bonds issued by the City and other
City obligations and isin material compliance with all such undertakings.

LEGAL MATTERS

Legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of Bonds by the City are subject to the approving legal
opinion of K&L Gates LLP, Seattle, Washington, Bond Counsal. The form of the opinion of Bond Counsel with
respect to the Bonds is attached hereto as APPENDIX A.

The opinion of Bond Counsel is given based on factual representations made to Bond Counsel, and under existing
law, as of the date of initial delivery of the Bonds, and Bond Counsel assumes no obligation to revise or supplement
its opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may thereafter come to its attention, or any changes in law that
may thereafter occur. The opinion of Bond Counsel is an expression of its professional judgment on the matters
expressly addressed in its opinion and does not constitute a guarantee of result. Bond Counsel will be compensated
only upon the issuance and sale of Bonds.

-31-



CONFLICTSOF INTEREST

Some or all of the fees of Bond Counsel are contingent upon the issuance and sale of the Bonds. None of the
council members or other officers of the City have interests in the issuance of the Bonds that are prohibited by
applicable law.

CONCLUDING STATEMENT
All estimates, assumptions, statistical information and other statements contained herein, while taken from sources
considered reliable, are not guaranteed by the City. So far as any statement herein includes matters of opinion, or
estimates of future expenses and income, whether or not expressly so stated, they are intended merely as such and
not as representations of fact.

The information contained herein should not be construed as representing all conditions affecting the City or the
Bonds. Additional information may be obtained directly from the City.

The foregoing statements relating to the Bond Ordinance and other documents are in all respects subject to and
qualified in their entirety by provisions of such documents.

This Official Statement, starting with the cover page and all subsequent pages, including any appendices, comprise
the entire Official Statement, which has been approved by the City.

CITY OF VANCOUVER, WASHINGTON

By:

Carrie Lewellen, Treasurer
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K&L Gates we
K& L | GAT E S 925 Fourth Avenue

Suite 2900

Seattle, WA 98104-1158

1206.623.7580 www.kigates.com

APPENDIX A
FORM OF LEGAL OPINION
June__, 2015

City of Vancouver
Vancouver, Washington

Re: City of Vancouver, Washington
Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds, 2015A (Vancouver Heritage Bonds) - $

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as bond counsel to the City of Vancouver, Washington (the “City”), and have examined a
certified transcript of the proceedings taken in the matter of the issuance by the City of its Limited Tax General
Obligation Bonds, 2015A (Vancouver Heritage Bonds) (the “Bonds’), dated June __, 2015, in the aggregate
principal amount of $ , issued for the purpose of financing renovations and capital improvements to City
buildings and paying costs of issuance of the Bonds. The Bonds are issued pursuant to Ordinance No. M-4120
adopted by the City Council on April 27, 2015 (the “Bond Ordinance”). Capitalized terms used in this opinion
which are not otherwise defined shall have the meanings given to such terms in the Bond Ordinance.

The Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities.

Regarding questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied on representations of the City in the
Bond Ordinance and in the certified proceedings and on other certifications of public officials and others furnished
to us without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation.

Based on the foregoing, we are of the opinion that, under existing law:

1. The Bonds have been legally issued and congtitute valid and binding general obligations of the
City, except to the extent that the enforcement of the rights and remedies of the holders and owners of the Bonds
may be limited by laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, reorganization or other similar laws of
genera application affecting the rights of creditors, by the application of eguitable principles and the exercise of
judicial discretion.

2. Both principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable out of annual levies of ad valorem taxesto
be made upon al of the taxable property within the City within and as part of the tax levy permitted to cities without
a vote of the electorate and in amounts which, together with other available funds, will be sufficient to pay such
principal and interest as the same shall become due.

3. Interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not
an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and
corporations; however, interest on the Bonds is taken into account in determining adjusted current earnings for the
purpose of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on certain corporations. The opinion set forth in the
preceding sentence is subject to the condition that the City comply with al requirements of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “ Code”), that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that
the interest thereon be, and continue to be, excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The City
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has covenanted to comply with all applicable requirements. Failure to comply with certain of such covenants may
cause interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactively to the date
of issuance of the Bonds.

Except as expressly stated above, we express no opinion regarding any other federal or state income tax
consequences of acquiring, carrying, owning or disposing of the Bonds. Owners of the Bonds should consult their
tax advisors regarding the applicability of any collateral tax consequences of owning the Bonds, which may include
original issue discount, original issue premium, purchase at a market discount or at a premium, taxation upon sale,
redemption or other disposition, and various withholding requirements.

This opinion is given as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to update, revise or supplement
this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter come to our attention or any changesin law that
may heresfter occur.

Very truly yours,

K&L GATESLLP
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Sincerely,

Ty X Nalhy

TROY KELLEY
STATE AUDITOR

Insurance Building, P.O. Box 40021 « Olympia, Washington 98504-0021 « (360) 902-0370 « TDD Relay (800) 833-6388




Table of Contents

City of Vancouver
Clark County
January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013

Federal Summary

Schedule of Prior Federal Audit Findings .

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards..............cccocviiniiiiiisce s 4
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on

Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133...........cccocvviinnnnns 7
Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements...........ccccovvviiirvnierenesieieiecseeneseenns 10
FINANCIAL SECHION. ...t 1O

Federal Summary

City of Vancouver
Clark County
January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013

The results of our audit of the City of Vancouver are summarized below in accordance with U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An unmodified opinion was issued on the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and
the aggregate remaining fund information.

Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the
Vancouver Hotel and Convention Center Project, which is included as part of the Vancouver
Downtown Redevelopment Authority discretely presented component unit, as described in our
report on the City’s financial statements. The financial statements of the VVancouver Hotel and
Convention Center Project were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:

¢ Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

e Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the
City.

FEDERAL AWARDS
Internal Control Over Major Programs:
e Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant

deficiencies.

e Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

Washington State Auditor's Office
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We issued an unmodified opinion on the City’s compliance with requirements applicable to each
of its major federal programs.

We reported no findings that are required to be disclosed under section 510(a) of OMB
Circular A-133.

Identification of Major Programs:
The following were major programs during the period under audit:

CEDA No. Program Title

11.300 Investments for Public Works and Economic Development Facilities
14.239 HOME Investment Partnerships Program

14.248 CDBG/Section 108 Loan Guarantees

14.251 Congressional Grants / Neighborhood Initiative Grants

16.710 Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants

97.056 Port Security Grant Program

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed by
OMB Circular A-133, was $388,971.

The City qualified as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular A-133.

Washington State Auditor's Office
2

Schedule of Prior Federal Audit Findings

City of Vancouver
Clark County
January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013

This schedule presents the status of federal findings reported in prior audit periods. The status
listed below is the representation of the City of Vancouver. The State Auditor’s Office has
reviewed the status as presented by the City.

Audit Period: Report Reference Finding Reference CFDA Number(s):
January 1, 2012 — No: 1010510 No: 1 97.008

December 31, 2012

Federal Program Name and Granting Pass-Through Agency Name:

Agency: Clark County

Non-Profit Security Program

U.S. Department of Homeland Security

Finding Caption:
The City of Vancouver’s internal controls for monitoring equipment purchased with federal
money for its Non-Profit Security Program are inadequate.

Background:

The City’s fire department did not maintain adequate records to support that it had performed a
physical inventory as required. Further, the department did not have adequate internal controls
to ensure all equipment over $5,000 was being tracked in its asset records appropriately.

Status of Corrective Action: (check one)
O Fully Corrected

Partially Corrected [ No Corrective Action Taken O Finding is considered no longer valid

Corrective Action Taken:

The City of Vancouver Financial and Management Services Department has coordinated the
effort with the Vancouver Fire Department to do a complete inventory of all equipment,
including both federally and locally funded equipment items. That inventory is being
reconciled to the financial system of records.

Additionally, the City has hired an outside consultant to lead the efforts on enhancements to the
financial fixed assets system to ensure the system is fully in compliance with federal equipment
inventory tracking requirements. These enhancements are not complete as of the response to
this finding. They are anticipated to be complete by the end of the fourth quarter of the fiscal
year.

The City is also updating its Fixed Asset Policy to clearly define and document the
requirements for federally funded equipment assets. The policy is in draft form but will be

published as complete with the completion of the financial fixed asset system enhancements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

City of Vancouver
Clark County
January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013

Mayor and City Council
City of Vancouver
Vancouver, Washington

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Vancouver, Clark County, Washington, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 20, 2014. As discussed in Note 1 to
the financial statements, during the year ended December 31, 2013, the City implemented
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as
Assets and Liabilities.

Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the
Vancouver Hotel and Convention Center Project, which is included as part of the Vancouver
Downtown Redevelopment Authority discretely presented component unit, as described in our
report on the City’s financial statements. This report includes our consideration of the results of
the other auditor’s testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and other
matters that are reported on separately by those other auditors. However, this report, insofar as it
relates to the results of the other auditors, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
The financial statements of the VVancouver Hotel and Convention Center Project were not audited
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and accordingly this report does not include
reporting on internal control over financial reporting or instances of reportable noncompliance
associated with the VVancouver Hotel and Convention Center Project.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s

internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
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statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the City's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of the City’s compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However,
this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It also serves to

Washington State Auditor's Office
5




disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess government
operations.

TROY KELLEY
STATE AUDITOR

June 20, 2014

Washington State Auditor's Office
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each
Major Federal Program and on Internal Control over
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

City of Vancouver
Clark County
January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013

Mayor and City Council
City of Vancouver
Vancouver, Washington

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM

We have audited the compliance of the City of Vancouver, Clark County, Washington, with the
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2013. The City’s major
federal programs are identified in the accompanying Federal Summary.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s
compliance.

Washington State Auditor's Office
7




Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2013.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It
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also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess
government operations.

TROY KELLEY
STATE AUDITOR

June 20, 2014

Washington State Auditor's Office
9




Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements

City of Vancouver
Clark County
January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013

Mayor and City Council
City of Vancouver
Vancouver, Washington

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of VVancouver, Clark County, Washington,
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed on page 14.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
did not audit the financial statements of the Vancouver Hilton and Convention Center Project,
which is included in the City’s financial information as part of the Downtown Redevelopment
Authority component unit and which represents 1.6 percent, 2.0 percent, 100 percent and 84.4
percent respectively, of the assets and deferred outflows, net position, operating revenues and
operating expenses of the aggregate discretely presented component units. These financial
statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Vancouver Hotel and Convention
Center Project, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. The financial statements of the VVancouver Hotel and Convention Center
Project were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Vancouver, as of December 31, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the General and
Consolidated Fire funds, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

7]

Matters of Emphasis

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2013, the City adopted new accounting
guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 65, Items Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 14 through 21 and the information on pension
trust funds and postemployment benefits other than pensions on pages 77 through 79 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. This schedule is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
June 20, 2014 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

\\\«H&\ X/ mm\mlmrr\

TROY KELLEY
STATE AUDITOR

June 20, 2014
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Financial Section
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MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This discussion and analysis is a narrative overview of the City of Vancouver's (the City's) financial activities for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2013. The information presented here should be read in conjunction with the letter of transmittal, the financial
statements, and the related notes to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

*  City of Vancouver assets exceeded its liabilities at December 31, 2013 by $1 billion.

. Net investment in capital assets accounts for over 77.9% of this amount, with a value of $813.6 million.

e Of the remaining net position, $171.4 million may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors, without legal restriction.

. The City's total net position showed an increase of $39 n from current operations in 2013. This included a prior period
adjustment of $797,275 which is further explained in detail in Note V.I. The government’s net capital assets increased by $14.3
million during 2013.

. Total program revenues were $172 million in 2013, up by $25.7 million from 2012, due to increases in Charges for Services,
Fees, and Fines and Forfeitures and in Capital Grants and Contributions revenues. Program expenses were $234.3 million, up
by $3.2 million from 2012. General revenues and transfers were $121.4 million, up by $4.8 million from last year.

e As of December 31, 2013, the City of Vancouver's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $125.3
million, which was $8.2 million less than the prior year. About 57.4% of this total amount, or $71.9 million, is available for
spending at the government's discretion. The unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $13 million at December 31,
2013.

. The City of Vancouver’s total bonded debt at December 31, 2013 was $157.1 m

e The City implemented GASB Statement No 65 in the current fiscal year. The Bums to this includes a restatement of the
beginning net position. See Note I.E for further discussion.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis provides an introduction and overview to the City's ba:
assist users in interpreting the basic statements. We
projects and trends necessary for understanding the full context of the financial condition of the City.

| statements. ._.:_m information wi
of certain plans,

Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and, 3) notes to the financial statements. The financial section of this report also contains required supplementary
information, in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Vancouver's finances in a manner
similar to a private-sector business. Functions of the 0_2 of Vancouver that are principally m:uuo:mn by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (referred to as "governmental activities") are distinguished from functions that are intended to recover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (referred to as "business-type activities").

The governmental activities of the City of Vancouver provide a full range of local government services to the public. Programs
include law enforcement and public safety; fire protection; road construction and maintenance; community economic development;
parks and recreation; and the issuance of permits and licenses. In addition, other general government activities include
neighborhood support, a senior r | , and the revitalization of the downtown core area to name a few. The business-type
activities of the City of Vancouver include water, sewer, drainage management and control, downtown parking, an airpark, solid
waste, building inspection, and a tennis center.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all City of Vancouver's assets and liabilities, with the difference between
the two reported as net position. This statement serves a purpose similar to that of the balance sheet of a private-sector business.
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as one indicator of whether the financial position of the City is
improving or deteriorating. Some other indicators include the condition of the City's infrastructure systems (roads, dr:
systems, bridges, etc.), changes in property tax base, and general economic conditions within the City.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's revenues and expenses impacted net position
during 2013. This statement separates program revenue (revenue generated by specific programs through charges for services,
grants, and contributions) from general revenue (revenue provided by taxes and other sources not tied to a particular program). This
shows the extent to which each program relies on general revenue for funding. All changes in net position are reported using the
accrual basis of accounting which requires that revenues are reported when they are earned and expenses are reported as soon as
liabilities are incurred.

The City has identified certain entities as component units in the government-wide financial statements. These entities are the
Vancouver Downtown Redevelopment Authority (DRA) and the Vancouver Public Facilities District (PFD). These two entities are
shown in the government-wide financial statements as discretely presented component unit funds. For additional information, see
note V.A. The City has also reported its investment in one governmental joint venture: Clark Regional Emergency Services Agency
(CRESA); see note V.C.
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Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a self-balancing grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that are segregated for
es or objectives. The City of Vancouver, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting for compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Vancouver fall into one of three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds, or fiduciary funds. Governmental funds account for most, if not all, of a government's tax-supported
activities. Proprietary funds account for a government's business-type activities where all or part of the costs of activities are
supported by fees and charges paid directly by those who benefit from the activities. Fiduciary funds account for resources that are
held by the government as a trustee or agent for parties outside of the government. The resources of fiduciary funds cannot be
used to support the government's own programs.

Governmental Funds

The Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances present separate columns of financial data for the General Fund, the Consolidated Fire Fund m:a Transportation
Capital Fund. These are considered major funds. Data from the remaining governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. Governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources and on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information is useful in
evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements in comparison to near-term resources available.

To get a longer term perspective of financial balances and results of operations, the City presents full accrual information in the
government wide financial statements. This gives readers a better understanding of the long-term impact of the government's
near-term financing decisions. Both the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Governmental Funds Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between governmental
funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains budgetary controls over all city funds. Budgetary controls ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in
the biennial appropriated budget. Governmental fund budgets are established in accordance with state law, and most are adopted
on a fund level. The General Fund budget is adopted on a fund level. Personnel services are budgeted by ful
Budgetary variances are discussed later in this section.

Proprietary Funds

The City has two types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds
to account for its water/sewer/drainage utility, solid waste, airpark, building _:mvmozo: parking, and tennis center operations.
Internal service funds accumulate and allocate costs among the City's val
account for its computer repair and replacement, rolling stock repair and replacement, self-insurance, mailroom services, faci
replacement and insurance benefits.

Those revenues and expenses of internal service funds that are duplicated in other funds are eliminated in the government-wide
statements. The remaining balances are allocated and included in the governmental type activities columns. Proprietary fund
statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail, since both apply
the accrual basis of accounting.

In comparing the Proprietary Fund Statement of Net Position to the business-type column on the government-wide Statement of Net
Position, the total net position amounts agree, needing no reconciliation. In comparing the total assets and total liabilities between
the same two statements, you will notice slightly different amounts. This is because the "Internal balances" line on the government-
wide statement combines the "Due from other funds" (assets) and the "Due to other funds" (liabilities) from the proprietary fund
statement in a single line in the asset section of the government-wide statement.

The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water/Sewer Fund and Parking Services as these are
considered major funds. All other enterprise funds are aggregated into a single presentation. Internal Service Funds are also
aggregated into a single presentation, but are not included in the totals.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not
reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City of
Vancouver's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided, and are an integral part of the
government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also contains certain required supplementary
information concerning the City of Vancouver's funding of its Fire and Police employee pension obligation.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Statement of Net Position

As noted earlier, changes in net position may serve as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. The City of
Vancouver's net position totals $1,044,480,463 at December 31, 2013. The following is a condensed and comparative version of
the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position.

City of Vancouver's Net Position

Governmental Ac S Business-type A Total Activities
2012 Restated 2013 2012 Restated 2012 Restated 2013

Current and other assets $ 181,851,219 $ 196,088,216 $ 87,673,712 $ 95,415,295 $ 269,524,931 $ 291,503,511
Capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) 594,436,960 616,978,561 369,379,507 360,282,703 963,816,467 977,261,264

TOTAL ASSETS 776,288,179 813,066,777 457,053,219 455,697,998 1,233,341,398 1,268,764,775
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES 2,476,617 2,143,047 3,052,270 2,539,686 5,528,887 4,682,733
Long-term lial 137,917,170 131,734,870 80,365,766 67,887,425 218,282,936 199,622,295
Other lial S 13,097,051 24,204,026 3,754,185 5,140,724 16,851,236 29,344,750

TOTAL LIABILITIES 151,014,221 155,938,896 84,119,951 73,028,149 235,134,172 228,967,045
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 499,507,591 521,171,082 293,530,660 292,461,482 793,038,251 813,632,564
Restricted 65,339,206 53,828,026 7,745,715 5,574,691 73,084,921 59,402,717
Unrestricted 62,903,778 84,271,820 74,709,163 87,173,362 137,612,941 171,445,182

TOTAL NET POSITION  $ 627,750,575 $ 659,270,928 $ __ 375,985,538 $ 385,209,535 $ _ 1,003,736,113 $ _ 1,044,480,463

The 2012 values were restated for the adoption of GASB Statement No. 65 so that the prior year presentation conforms to the
current year. The largest portion of the City's net position, 77.9%, reflects its investment in capital, less any related debt sti
outstanding that was used to acquire those assets. The City's capital assets are used to provide services to citizens. Consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending.

Total assets increased in 2013 by $35.4 million, total deferred outflows decreased by $846 thousand and total liabilities decreased
by $6.2 million resulting in an increase in total net position of $40.7 million, or 4.1%.

Net position representing resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used are 5.7% of the total. There is
$171.4 million (unrestricted net position) which represents the amount that may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations.

At December 31, 2013, the City of Vancouver reports positive balances in all three categories of net position, for the government as
awhole.

Analysis of Changes in Net Position

The change in total net position increase in 2013, inclusive of the impact of Prior Period Adjustments, is $40.7 million. This is split
between governmental increase of $31.5 million and business-type activities increase of $9.2 million. A condensed version of the
Statement of Activities for the past two years is shown in the following table. The full statement is a tabular depiction of the
relationship of revenues and expenses for the City's governmental activities and proprietary funds. The graphs that follow illustrate
the sources of revenue and the balance of governmental vs. business type expenses for 2013.

The increase in net position is primarily due to decrease in bonded debt and increase in governmental infrastructure. The City of
Vancouver's total bonded debt decreased by $19.4 million during 2013, the result of scheduled principal payments made throughout
2013. There was a significant increase of $16.6 million related to infrastructure due to the donation of the 39" Street Bridge, donated
i gton, Department of Transportation. Net investment in capital asset growth totaled $20.6 million,
n; unrestricted net position increase of $33.8 million to equal $40.7 m

increase in government's net position.

Governmental activities revenue increased by 13.2% while governmental expenses increased by 0.8%. The major increase in
governmental activities revenue from Capital Grant and Contribution of $19.3 million was due in large part to donation of 39" Street
Bridge discussed above, as well as an increase in capital funding for new projects; increase in Utility and Other Taxes revenue by
5.8% and Sales and Use Taxes by 8.7%. In 2013, a total of $27.6 million in sales tax revenue was received through the end of the
year. This collection marks a return to the pre-recession period of 2007.

The Business-Type Activity revenue increased by 8.5% and expenses increased by 2.4%. The major increase in Business-Type
Activity revenue was from Charges for Services, Fees, and Fines and Forfeitures by 4.8% and Capital Grants and Contribution by
46.6%. Changes for Charges for Services and Fee are due to water/storm water and sewer rate increases of 5% and 2.5%,
respectively, as well as an increase in water pumped of 7%. Changes in Capital Grant and Contribution are mainly due to increases
in private development contributions resulting from the increasing development activity in the City.
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Revenues

City of Vancouver
Summary of Changes in Net Position
Comparative 2012-2013

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government

Program revenues: 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013
Charges for Services, Fees, and
Fines and Forfeitures $ 38331011 $ 38865033 $ 83893237 $ 87,897,100 $ 122224248 $ 126,762,142
Operating Grants and
Contributions 7,418,742 6,256,533 442,482 322,562 7,861,224 6,579,095
Capital Grants and Contributions 9,474,400 28,745,286 6,736,733 9,872,909 16,211,133 38,618,195
General Revenues -
Taxes: -
Property Taxes Levied for General
Purposes 40,685,824 41,990,733 - - 40,685,824 41,990,733
Sales and Use Taxes 26,735,128 29,059,542 - - 26,735,128 29,059,542
Utility and Other Taxes 45,394,634 48,025,064 - - 45,394,634 48,025,064
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 799,449 461,982 516,036 315,805 1,315,485 777,787
Miscellaneous 2,409,636 530,334 51,440 1,051,855 2,461,076 1,582,189
Total Revenues 171,248,824 193,934,507 91,639,928 99,460,240 262,888,752 293,394,747
Program Expenses
Governmental Activities:
General Government 29,380,303 25,184,616 - - 29,380,303 25,184,616
Security/Persons & Property 67,724,508 70,510,723 - - 67,724,508 70,510,723
Physical Environment 474,343 514,804 - - 474,343 514,804
Transportation 29,712,758 33,011,546 - - 29,712,758 33,011,546
Health and Human Services 385,797 338,591 - - 385,797 338,591
Economic Environment 8,388,707 7,132,322 - - 8,388,707 7,132,322
Culture and Recreation 10,924,436 11,795,705 - - 10,924,436 11,795,705
Interest on Long-Term Debt 4,746,812 4,505,618 - - 4,746,812 4,505,618
Business-Type Activities:
Water Sewer - - 73,305,642 75,592,296 73,305,642 75,592,296
- - 3,372,113 2,964,225 3,372,113 2,964,225
- - 696,973 586,198 696,973 586,198
- - 3,641,964 3,761,558 3,641,964 3,761,558
Sanitation - - 1,912,012 2,132,353 1,912,012 2,132,353
Tennis Center - - 1,124,302 1,036,368 1,124,302 1,036,368
Total Expenses 151,737,664 152,993,925 84,053,006 86,072,998 235,790,670 239,066,923
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenses 19,511,160 40,940,582 7,586,921 13,387,242 27,098,082 54,327,824
Transfers - Governmental (1,167,109) (1,098,756) - - (1,167,109) (1,098,756)
Transfers - Business-Type - - 1,167,109 1,098,756 1,167,109 1,098,756
Income (loss) before special & extraordinar 18,344,051 39,841,825 8,754,030 14,485,998 27,098,082 54,327,823
Extraordinary Items:
Contract termination - (10,698,996) (10,698,996)
Impairment of capital assets - - - (3,681,752) - (3,681,752)
Total Special ltems - (10,698,996) - (3,681,752) - (14,380,748)
Change in Net Position 18,344,051 29,142,829 8,754,030 10,804,246 27,098,082 39,947,075
Net Position- Beginning 609,779,542 627,750,575 368,781,147 375,985,538 978,560,689 1,003,736,113
Prior year adjustments 571,003 2,377,524 762,902 1,580,249, 191,899 797,275
Net Position - Ending $ 62869459 _$ 659270928 _$ 376,772,275 $ 385,209,535 _$ 1,005,466,871 $ 1,044,480,463

2013 Net Position - Beginning was restated due to the adoption of GASB Statement No. 65.

2013 Program Revenues by Source

Capital
Grants and
Contributions
Operating 2.5%
Grants and
Contributions
3.8%

Charges for
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Fees, and
Fines and

Forfeitures

73.7%

2013 Comparison of Total Expenses
Governmental vs. Business - Type

Total
Business -

Type
Activities,
36.00%

64.00%
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Governmental Activity Analysis

Governmental net position increased by $29.1 million in 2013 from operations and by $2.4 million from prior year adjustments. This
4.9% increase corresponds to a $38 million increase in total assets and deferred outflows with $7.4 million increase in total
During 2013, the City's cash balances increased by $8.3 million, capital assets increased by $22.5 million, and receivables msn
other assets increased by $4.9 million.

Governmental revenues increased from 2012 by $22.7 million or 13.3% due to moderate increase in program revenues by $18.6
million and increase in general revenues by $4 million.

mm:mqm_ Government expenses were down by $4.2 million ncm to the debt refinancing activity that occurred in 2012 that did not

approved funding pavement management to 100% of policy level to insure existing infrastructure is maintained and constrain future
maintenance cost. Security/Persons & Property expenses increased by $2.8 million due to the salary payments to Vancouver Police
Guild members as a result of contract settlement in 2013, with retro salary adjustments back to 2012. Culture and Recreation
expenses were $871,269 greater than prior year from the termination of the parks interlocal agreement with Clark County. In total,
expenses for Governmental act s increased by $1.3 million.

2013 Governmental Expenses by Program 2013 Governmental Revenues by Program
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conomic Long-Term conomic
Recreation it Environment 8.5%

2.7% 1% 2.9% 7:8%
General
Health and Government
16.5%
Senvices
0.2%

Transportation
21.6%

Transportation

Securitylperso Security/perso

Physical p

Environment ns & property 37.6% Physical ns & property
0.3% 46.1% Environment 24.6%

2.6%

Business-Type Activities Analysis

As depicted in the graphs below, the Water/Sewer activity is the largest business-type activity in the City. As a result, the financial
position of the City’s business-type activities is strongly influenced by the Water/Sewer activity. This year, Water/Sewer had a $3.4
n increase in Charges for Services, Fees, Fines and Forfeitures, a $3.1 million increase in Capital Contributions and a $2.9
n increase in operating expenses.

m

The other business-type activities had moderate gains and losses. Solid Waste activity had a $425,289 net operating income due to
lower market values for recyclable commodities and lower tons to market. Parking activity had a $288,184 net operating loss. The
General Fund support of the Parking activity remained at $1.2 million.
largely led by the multifamily component. A portion of the net position related to the Building activity is being utilized to replace the
Tidemark permitting system with a new Hansen system.

2013 Business - Type Activity Program 2013 Business - Type Activities Program
Expenses Revenues
All Other All Other
12.2% 11.5%

Water
Sewer
88.5%
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2013 Business - Type Activity Program 2013 Business - Type Activity Program
Revenues excluding Water-Sewer Expenses excluding Water-Sewer
i Parking, Tennis

Tennis
Center, 19.1% Solid Center Parking

7.8% ) Waste 9.9% 28.3%

Airpark, 20.3%
8.4% :

Waste, "
22.8% Inspection, Inspection
41.9% 35.9%

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

Governmental Funds Analysis

The City's governmental funds are categorized into four types consisting of General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital
Project Funds. Each fund type has a unique purpose. General Fund, Consolidated Fire Fund, and Transportation Capital Fund are
classified as major funds for the purposes of this report, based on criteria set forth by the Government Accounting Standards Board
(GASB).

The General Fund is the primary governmental fund. General Fund revenues were up 3.3% over 2012 due primarily to an increase
in Charges for Services and Rent and Royalties of $1.3 million and $1.7 million, respectively. Intergovernmental revenue went down
by $1.3 million. Comparing Property Tax and Sales and Use Tax collections from 2012, 2013 saw an increase of approximately
2.5% and 8.7%, respectively, in these revenue sources due to new construction and delinquency rates. By Council action, there was
a 1% property tax levy increase for 2013 taxes. The increase in Sales and Use Taxes in 2013 was driven by a robust real estate
market and new construction. General Fund expenditures accounted for 48.1% of total governmental fund expenditures for 2013.
General Fund expenditures increased by approximately 3% mainly due to an increase in expenditures for Security/persons &
property. The 2013 expenditures contain the retro payment for the salary payments to Vancouver Police Guild members as a result
of contract settlement in 2013, with retro salary adjustments back to 2012. The final decision on the contract was made by an
arbitrator in late 2013, with salary increases of 2% per year retroactive to 2012.

The Consolidated Fire Fund is a special revenue fund that encompasses both the operations and the equipment for the City's and
Fire District 5's fire department. Services provided by this fund include not only firefighting, but emergency medical services, rescue,
and public safety education. As reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Statement of Changes in Fund Balances,
major funding for the Consolidated Fire Fund is Intergovernmental revenues, Charges for Services, and a transfer from the City's
General Fund. The Consolidated Fire Fund in 2013 accounted for 20.4% of the governmental funds expenditures; it increased by
$3.8 million from 2012 and included expenses for purchasing Regional Response marine vessel with equipment in 2013, the
Consolidated Fire Fund fund balance increased by $1.2 million.

The Transportation Capital Fund is a capital projects fund. It was created in 1998 to account for all capital projects in the
Transportation Department. The funding for the projects is primarily from grants, bonds, and developer agreements as well as other
public and private funding sources. The Transportation Capital Fund in 2013 accounted for 11.3% of the governmental funds’
expenditures, an increase of $2.1 million from 2012 due to construction for Waterfront Access and NE 137/138" Ave projects. In
2013, the Transportation Capital Fund fund balance decreased by $2.6 million due to a large capital outlay for the Waterfront
Access Project.

All other non-major governmental operating, debt service and capital construction funds comprise the rem,
expenditures.

g governmental

Business-Type Funds Analysis

Proprietary, or business-type, funds are those funds that account for government operations where the intent is for the costs to be
primarily paid by user charges. Enterprise funds are those funds that provide services primarily to external users, and the internal
service funds provide their services primarily within the City. The City has twelve business-type funds: six are enterprise funds, and
six are internal service funds.

The Water/Sewer Fund is the largest business-type fund in the City, accounting for 94.5% of net position for the enterprise funds at
$364.0 million. Water/Sewer Fund net position increased by $7.2 million in 2013 mainly due to the increase in utility Charges for
Services, Capital contributions, and decreased bonded indebtedness and utility capital assets. This fund encompasses three legally
es: water, sewer, and stormwater operations.

Water/Sewer, the utility, reported operating income of $4.1 million in 2013, and its operating revenue increased 4.9% primarily due
to a water/storm water and sewer rates increase of 5% and 2.5%, respectively, as well as an increase in water pumped of 7%. U
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operating expenses increased by $2.9 million from 2012, mainly related to increased costs for Personnel and Sup
services and Intergovernmental payments. Additionally, accumulated depreciation of utility capital assets increased by $12.3 million
and its bonded indebtedness decreased by $9.1 million in 2013.

The Parking Services Fund reported an operating loss of $288,184 in 2013. Operating expenses decreased by $215,080 from 2012
due to a decrease in Supplies & contracted services and Interfund services. Parking Services changes in net position increased by
$1.4 million from 2012 due to retirement of Main Place parking garage. The General Fund support of the Parking Services Fund
remained at the $1.25 n level in 2013. Over time, the fund is anticipated to become self-supporting.

In the non-major business funds, the Airpark and Building Inspection Funds accounted for the majority of the increase in total net
position of the non-major business funds. The Building Inspection Fund reported $941,716 in operation income and accounted for
$531,520 of the increase in total net position of the non-major business funds. At the national level, housing is recovering at
moderate levels, led by starts for multi-family units, building owners are choosing to invest in making improvements to existing
buildings rather than constructing new ones. The Airpark Fund reported $117,552 in operating income and accounted for $353,785
of the increase in total net position of the non-major business funds. This increase can be attributed to increasing federal
grants revenue.

Internal Service funds operate like the enterprise funds, but perform services primarily for other funds within the City. Because of the
nature of these funds, they are charged with operating as close as possible to a breakeven point. City Internal Service funds net
position increased by $5 million from 2012. A new fund was created in 2013, Facility Replacement Fund, and received $7.8 million
transfer from the General Fund to support the depreciation and replacement of City facilities. Operating loss of all City Internal
Service funds totaled $374,630 due to an operating loss related to the Self-insurance Fund as a result of increased cl.
during 2013.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Initiative 747, which beginning in 2002 limited increases in property taxes to the lower of 1 percent or the implicit
price deflator; the complete elimination of the city's Business and Occupation Tax by 2002, and significantly greater City reliance on
revenues that fluctuate with the economy.

The 2013-14 biennial budget totals $752.4 million operating and capital expenditures, including 963.6 positions. The
recommended budget is balanced without the implementation of new taxes or tax increases other than the annual 1% authorized
increase to property taxes. Other fees and rates, including utility rates and fees for services are recommended to be adjusted for
anticipated inflation as reflected in the forecast.

Unlike the past two biennia, there were no forecast-based budget reductions in 2013-2014. Conversely, there were no new additional
FTE's included in the budget that were not accompanied by commensurate new funding. General Fund revenues during 2013 came
in within 2% of the forecast for the year. Expenditures came in under budget. Major new items included in the Supplemental Budget
Appropri ns during 2013 included grants in Police and CED, including Domestic lence Arrest Grant, Buffer Zone Grants, School
Resource Officer funding, the Brownfield Assessment and Area-wide Planning Grant for the Lower Grand Employment area on the
operating side and Tidewater Cove trail repair on the capital side.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The City of Vancouver's investment in capital assets, including construction in progress, for its governmental and business type
activities as of December 31, 2013, amounts to $977.3 million (net of accumulated depreciation).

The table below is a comparison of the summary information for year-end 2012 and 2013 capital assets. The balance of 2012
capital assets was restated to Prior Period Adjustments.

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Activities
2012 Restated 2013 2012 Restated 2013 2012 Restated 2013

Land $ 63,846,402 $ 65775933 $ 30,146,794 $ 30,520,801 $ 93,993,196 $ 96,296,734
Intangible - Easements 8,048,566 8,068,105 2,346,345 3,883,343 10,394,911 11,951,448
Buildings and systems 89,376,133 86,359,528 19,431,329 18,118,096 108,807,462 104,477,624
Machinery and equipment 14,074,750 13,714,962 3,668,213 2,887,909 17,742,963 16,602,871
Infrastructure 372,467,320 389,871,616 300,412,037 297,553,181 672,879,357 687,424,797
Intangible assets 620,366 1,487,457 298,164 1,084,766 918,530 2,572,223
Construction in progress 46,003,423 51,700,960 12,209,588 6,234,607 58,213,011 57,935,567

Total $ 594,436,960 $ 616,978,561 $ 368,512,470 $ 360,282,703 $ 962,949,430 $ 977,261,264

The major changes for assets were in construction in progress (CIP) and infrastructure for both Governmental and Business -Type
Activities categories, and changes in land and buildings and systems for Governmental Type Activities. The increase in CIP for
Governmental Activities relates to Vancouver Waterfront Access project, and 39" Street Bridge project; that was offset by a
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decrease in CIP for Business Activities due to an impairment loss of $3.7 mi
Operation facility; and finishing and capitalized ongoing projects.

n due to the construction stoppage of the East Side

Additional information on City of Vancouver's capital assets can be found in note IV.B of this report.

Long-Term Debt

At December 31, 2013, the City of Vancouver had total bonded debt outstanding of $157.1 million. Of this amount, $105.8 million is
General Obligation debt, which is backed by the full faith and credit of the government. The remainder of the City's debt of $50
million represents bonds secured solely by specific revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds). The below table is a comparison of the
summary information for year-end 2012 and 2013 bonded debt.

The City of Vancouver's total bonded debt decreased by $19.4 million, the result of scheduled principal payments made throughout
2013. There was no new bonded debt issued during the year. The City's remaining capacity for non-voted debt is approximately
$168.3 m

City of Vancouver Outstanding Bonded Debt
(in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Activities
2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013
General obligation bonds $ 100,725 $ 93,479 $ 13375 $ 12,346 $ 114,100 $ 105,825
Revenue bonds - - 61,140 49,990 61,140 49,990
Net Amounts for:
Issuance premiums (discounts) 3,735 3,325 3,244 2,688 6,979 6,013
Deferred Amount on Refunding (2,476) (2,143) (3,053) 2,540, 5,529 4,683
Total $ 101,984 $ 94,661 $ 74,706 $ 62,484 $ 176,690 $ 157,145

The City of Vancouver maintains an “Aa3"/"AA" rating from Moody's/Standard and Poor’s (S & P) rating services, respectively, for
general obligation debt. Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note IV.E of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

Projections for 2013-2018 show that revenues are anticipated to continue increasing at a slower pace than expenditures, but the
projected gap is significantly smaller than the gap addressed during 2009-2012.

The City's management continues its commitment to seeking out and implementing new cost containment and service delivery
options that will address aspects of the ongoing structural deficit beyond tl nnium. The City Manager has announced a
ing il ive called Legacy 2020 that would result in developing a long term solution for the City’s ongoing budget challenges.
Developing and implementing a balanced six year budget — the City of Vancouver's Legacy 2020 project, is anticipated to take the
City from a position of long term financial deficit to a position of long term financial sustainability.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of City of Vancouver's finances for all those with an interest in the
government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report, or requests for additional financial
information, should be addressed to Financial and Management Services, City of Vancouver, P.O. Box 1995, Vancouver, WA,
98668-1995.
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CITY OF VANCOUVER
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013
Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government Component Units
Charges for Vancouver Vancouver
Services, Fees, Operating Capital Grants Downtown Public
Indirect Expense Fines and Grants and and Governmental Business -type Redevelopment Facilities
Functions/Programs Expenses Allocation c Activities Activities Total Authority District
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 25,184,616 $ (4,737,113) $ 9,169,181 45,433 - $ (11,232,889) $ -8 (11,232,889) $ -8 -
Security/ persons & property 69,367,668 1,143,055 13,101,484 3,397,430 1,701,224 (52,310,584) - (52,310,584) - -
Physical Environment 495,078 19,726 1,943,909 1,429,105 - 1,429,105 - -
Transportation 32,630,407 381,139 3,791,507 270,059 23,601,195 (5,258,785) - (5.258,785) - -
Mental and Physical Health 338,591 - - (338,591) - (338,501) - -
Economic Environment 7,070,764 61,558 332,884 2,283,798 3,138,400 (1,377,240) - (1,377,240) - -
Culture and Recreation 11,763,241 32,464 5,788,955 259,812 214,467 (5,532,471) - (5,532,471) - -
Interest on Long-Term Debt 4,505,618 - - - - (4,505,618) - (4,505,618) - -
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 151,355,983 (3,099,171) 34,127,920 6,256,533 28,745,286 (79,127,074) - (79,127,074) - -
Business Type Activities:
Water/Sewer 73,132,524 2,459,772 76,983,177 3,450 9,872,909 - 11,267,240 11,267,240 - -
Parking 2,653,859 310,366 2,146,161 - - - (818,064) (818,064) - -
Airpark 549,632 36,566 628,289 319,112 - - 361,203 361,203 - -
g Building Inspection 3,656,584 104,974 4,703,274 - - - 941,716 941,716 - -
(g_ Solid Waste 2,009,786 122,567 2,558,303 - - - 425,950 425,950 - -
= Tennis Center 971,442 64,926 877,905 - - - (158.463) (158,463) - -
g TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 82,073,827 3,099,171 87,897,109 322,562 9,872,909 - 12,019,582 12,019,582 - -
=}
E
» Total Primary Government $ 234329810 S - $__ 122025029 $ 6579095 $__ 38618195 $ (79127074 $ 12019582 S (67,107,492) $ - s -
5§
NE Component Units
g Downtown Redevelopment Authority $ 16,940,896 $ -3 12,905,379 $ 1,800,795 $ - $ - % -8 -8 (2,234,722) $ -
a Public Facilities District 1,022,588 - 1,022,537 - - - - (51)
5% TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS $ 17,963,484 $ -8 12,905379 $ 2823332 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ (2,234,722) $ (51)
o —_—
o General Revenues:
= Taxes:
3 Property Taxes Levied for General Purposes $ 41990733 $ -8 41990733 $ - s -
Sales and Use Taxes 29,059,542 - 29,059,542 - -
Utility Taxes 36,321,569 - 36,321,569 - -
Excise, Lodging and Other Taxes 11,703,495 - 11,703,495 - -
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 461,982 315,805 777,787 8946 -
Miscellaneous 530334 1,051,855 1,582,189 - -
Special Items:
Gain on extinguishment of debt - - - 3,001,588
Contribution - - - 2,569,445
Claims settlement - - - 301,541
Impairment of capital assets (3,681,752) (3,681,752)
Extraordinary ltem
Contract termination (10,698,996) (10,698,996)
Transfers (1,098,756) 1,098,756 - - -
Total General Revenues, Special ltems, Extraordinary Item, and Transfers 108,269,903 (1,215,336) 107,054,567 5,881,520 -
Change in Net Position 29,142,829 10,804,246 39,047,075 3,646,798 1)
Net Position - Beginning, restated 627,750,575 375,985,538 1,003,736,113 (23,185,577) 3,643,197
Prior period adjustments 2377524 (1,580,249) 797,27 195,799)
Net Position - Ending $ 59.270,028_ $ 385.200535_$ 1.044,480.463_$ (19.734578) $ __ 3643146




CITY OF VANCOUVER
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2013

ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and pooled

investments
Cash with fiscal/escrow agent
Taxes/assessments
Accounts
Interest
Notes
Due from other funds
Interfund loan receivable

Due from other governmental units

Capital assets held for resale
Prepaid items
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Interfund loan payable
Due to other governmental units
Accrued interest payable
Accrued liabilities
Revenues collected in advance
Custodial accounts
Unearned revenue

Total liabiliti

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue-property taxes

P
Unavailable revenue-grant funding
L tal

1
Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

$

$

$

CITY OF VANCOUVER

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because (See Note Il also):
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the

funds

Capital Assets Held for Resale used in governmental activities that are not financial resources and therefore

are not reported in the funds

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore are deferred in
the funds, or other long-term assets of the City

Internal service funds are used to charge the costs of services to individual funds. The assets and liabi

the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position

Long-term lial

Net position of governmental activities

Major Funds Other
Non-Major Total
Consolidated Transportation Governmental Governmental
General Fund Capital Funds Funds

53,828,227 $ 15,812,053 $ 1,804,846 $ 50,951,250 $ 122,396,376
- - 2,203,474 204,335 2,407,809
9,812,639 - 114 807,101 10,619,854
1,096,007 86,535 - 1,054,890 2,237,432
94,191 26,969 3,062 86,887 211,109
- - 97,393 5,127,661 5,225,054
194,021 8,926 487,594 101,108 791,649
875,675 - - 19,328 895,003
463,529 962,673 745,744 664,741 2,836,687
228,400 - - 5,529,135 5,757,535
- - - 7,192 7,192
66,592,689 16,897,156 5,342,227 64,553,628 $ 153,385,700
3,030,911 $ 321,773 $ 662,555 $ 787,063 $ 4,802,302
472,188 566 20,000 691,859 1,184,613
- - 875,674 19,328 895,002
750 - - 165,557 166,307
- - - 41 41
2,816,975 1,020,440 25,031 150,696 4,013,142
325,602 874,724 - 5,511 1,205,837
159,745 3,871 949 12,409,169 12,573,734
110,577 - - 320 110,897
6,916,748 2,221,374 1,584,209 14,229,544 24,951,875
971,037 - - - 971,037
- - - 99,761 99,761
203,079 902,519 606,046 118,946 1,830,590
- - - 279,278 279,278
1,174,116 902,519 606,046 497,985 3,180,666
228,400 - 97,393 10,663,988 10,989,781
241,331 13,773,263 2,203,474 26,125,946 42,344,014
41,095,993 - 851,105 9,897,934 51,845,032
4,148,166 - 3,138,231 7,286,397
12,787,935 - - - 12,787,935
58,501,825 13,773,263 3,151,972 49,826,099 125,253,159

66,592,689 $ 16,897,156 $ 5,342,227 $ 64,553,628
611,271,015
44,000
13,530,721
35,635,410
ies that are not due and payable in the current period and are not reported in the funds (126,463,377)
$ 659,270,928
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REVENUES

Property taxes
Sales and use taxes
Other taxes
License and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Investment earnings
Rents and royalties
Contributions/donations
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Security/persons & property
Physical environment
Transportation

Mental and physical health
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest/fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Capital related debt issued
Sale of capital assets
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

EXTRAORDINARY ITEM
Contract termination
Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING
Prior period adjustments

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

Major Funds Other

Non-Major Total
Consolidated Transportation Governmental Governmental

General Fund Fire Capital Funds Funds
$ 41,957,792 $ 72,239 $ - $ 103,416 $ 42,133,447
29,059,542 - - - 29,059,542
35,902,488 - 130,429 5,786,121 41,819,038
887,569 493,646 - 2,472,094 3,853,309
5,114,039 3,518,911 3,264,229 8,445,722 20,342,901
14,462,351 7,810,450 425 2,482,719 24,755,945
1,365,112 3,000 100 118,299 1,486,511
320,021 28,017 15,459 151,785 515,282
3,063,080 54,194 - 919,397 4,036,671
253,446 86,788 749,772 120,153 1,210,159
134,127 312 - 210,140 344,579
132,519,567 12,067,557 4,160,414 20,809,846 169,557,384
23,960,585 - - 524,394 24,484,979
40,359,614 30,633,887 - 89,404 71,082,905
484,338 - - 19,913 504,251
744,262 - 2,844,650 9,536,025 13,124,937
4,313,792 - - 2,119,713 6,433,505
338,591 - - - 338,591
7,487,962 - - 2,183,586 9,671,548
238,353 2,472,394 15,436,306 6,416,674 24,563,727
- - - 7,365,941 7,365,941
- - 36,278 4,497,959 4,534,237
77,927,497 33,106,281 18,317,234 32,753,609 162,104,621
54,592,070 (21,038,724) (14,156,820) (11,943,763) 7,452,763
- N 1,496,000 - 1,496,000
52 17,433 82,285 - 99,770
332,722 22,581,482 10,065,150 24,540,595 57,519,949
(49,851,716) (359,256) (19,905) (16,187,829) (66,418,706)
(49,518,942) 22,239,659 11,623,530 8,352,766 (7,302,987)
- - - (10,698,996) (10,698,996)
5,073,128 1,200,935 (2,533,290) (14,289,993) (10,549,220)
50,936,758 12,571,553 5,745,649 64,223,385 133,477,345
2,491,939 775 (60,387) (107,293) 2,325,034
$ 58,501,825 $ 13,773,263 $ 3,151,972 $ 49,826,099 $ 125,253,159
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CITY OF VANCOUVER

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different becaus

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds: $ (10,549,220)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However in the statement of activities the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 4,707,537

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets ( i.e., sales, trade-ins,
and donations) not reported in governmental funds. 17,983,886

Revenues in the statement of ac s that do not provide current financial resources are not reported
as revenues in the funds. 2,660,261

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the

repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of

governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also governmental

funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first

issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This

amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 5,869,941

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 777,200

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of equipment, insurance and
printing to individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported
with governmental activities. 7,693,224

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 29,142,829

CITY OF VANCOUVER

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
COMPARED TO BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Budget Amounts
al Final
2013-14 2013-14 To- Date Variance
Biennium Biennium Thru 12/31/13 Thru 12/31/13
REVENUES
Property tax $ 83,036,027 $ 83,036,027 $ 41,957,792 $ 41,078,235
Sales and use taxes 55,326,783 55,326,783 29,059,542 26,267,241
Other taxes 70,586,038 70,586,038 35,902,488 34,683,550
License and permits 1,951,664 1,951,664 887,569 1,064,095
Intergovernmental 9,906,709 11,547,039 5,114,039 6,433,000
Charges for services 25,876,802 26,021,550 14,462,351 11,559,199
Fines and forfeitures 3,054,280 3,054,280 1,365,112 1,689,168
Investment earnings 933,282 933,282 320,021 613,261
Rents and royalties 2,048,008 2,048,008 3,063,080 (1,015,072)
Contributions/donations - 102,036 253,446 (151,410)
cellaneous 4,726,671 3,655,989 134,127 3,521,862
Total revenues 257,446,264 258,262,696 132,519,567 125,743,129
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 63,559,858 57,714,258 23,960,585 33,753,673
Judicial - - - -
Security/persons & property 76,930,036 81,266,614 40,359,614 40,907,000
Physical environment 1,651,120 1,525,578 484,338 1,041,240
Transportation 2,122,645 1,707,369 744,262 963,107
Economic environment 8,679,759 9,467,359 4,313,792 5,153,567
Mental and physical health 753,094 753,094 338,591 414,503
Culture and recreation 14,951,367 15,043,552 7,487,962 7,555,590
Capital outlay 30,000 722,742 238,353 484,389
Total expenditures 168,677,879 168,200,566 77,927,497 90,273,069
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 88,768,385 90,062,130 54,592,070 35,470,060
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets - 600,000 52 599,948
Transfers in 582,712 855,528 332,722 522,806
Transfers out (83,514,076) (94,032,100) (49,851,716) (44,180,384)
Total other financing sources (uses) (82,931,364) (92,576,572) (49,518,942) (43,057,630)
Net change in fund balance 5,837,021 (2,514,442) 5,073,128 (7,587,570)
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 50,936,650 50,936,650 50,936,650 -
Prior period adjustments - - 2,491,939 (2,491,939)
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 56,773,671 $ 48,422,208 $ 58,501,717 $ (10,079,509)
Adjustment to generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) basis:
Riverwest RDA Fund budgeted as separate fund 108
Fund Balance GAAP basis: $ 58,501,825
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CITY OF VANCOUVER
CONSOLIDATED FIRE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
COMPARED TO BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

REVENUES

Property taxes

License and permits

Intergovernmental

Charges for services
ines and forfeits
Investment earnings
Rents and royalties
Contributions/donations
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Security/persons & property
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING
Prior period adjustments

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

Budget Amounts Actual
Original inal Biennium

2013-14 2013-14 To- Date Variance
Biennium Biennium Thru 12/31/13 Thru 12/31/13
$ - $ - % 72,239 $ (72,239)
565,000 565,000 493,646 71,354
18,300,937 21,512,810 3,518,911 17,993,899
178,000 178,000 7,810,450 (7,632,450)
- - 3,000 (3,000)
160,000 160,000 28,017 131,983
B - 54,194 (54,194)
- 47,593 86,788 (39,195)
387,153 387,153 312 386,841
19,591,090 22,850,556 12,067,557 10,782,999
60,520,942 62,142,961 30,633,887 31,509,074
2,848,374 4,740,707 2,472,394 2,268,313
63,369,316 66,883,668 33,106,281 33,777,387
(43,778,226) (44,033,112) (21,038,724) (22,994,388)
- - 17,433 (17,433)
44,836,893 44,836,893 22,581,482 22,255,411
(707,492) (707,492) (359,256) (348,236)
44,129,401 44,129,401 22,239,659 21,889,742
351,175 96,289 1,200,935 (1,104,646)
12,571,553 12,571,553 12,571,553 -
- - 775 (775)
$  12,922728 $ 12,667,842 $ 13,773,263 § (1,105,421)
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CITY OF VANCOUVER
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2013

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash, cash equivalents and pooled
investments $
Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued interest receivable
Receivables (net)
Accounts
Interest
Due from other funds
Interfund loan receivable
Due from other governmental units
Inventory
Capital assets held for resale
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets

Contracts receivable

Capital assets
Land and improvements
Intangible - Easements
Construction in progress
Other improvements
Buildings
Intangible assets
Machinery and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Capital assets (net)

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding
Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Claims and judgments payable
Environmental remediation
Due to other funds
Due to other governmental units
Accrued interest payable
Accrued ies
Custodial accounts
Unearned revenues
Bonds, notes and loans payable
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Due to other governmental units

Bonds, notes and loan payable

Claims and judgments

Environmental remediation

Accrued employee benefits
Total noncurrent liabilties

Total liat

NET POSITION
Netinvestment in capital assets
Restricted for capital purposes
Restricted for Debt
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION B

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds (Governmental
Major Fund Gther Non- Activities)
Major
Parking Enterprise Internal
Services Funds Total Service Funds

61579594 $ 1732017 $ 15470169 $ 78781780 $ 32,950,873

5,575,944 - - 5,575,944 -
9,438 - - 9,438 -
4,492,460 444,687 42,282 4,979,429 579,314
104,900 2,951 26,312 134,163 56,102
522,037 694 18,710 541,441 162,557
6,327 - - 6,327 -
91,711 - 310,435 402,146 64,353
670,271 - - 670,271 516,331
512,875 - - 512,875 -
- - - - 100,000
73,565,557 2180349 _ 15.867,908 91613814 34,429,530
3,843,356 - - 3,843,356 -
29567942 468,657 484,202 30,520,801 -
3,883,343 - - 3883343 -
6,105,204 - 129313 6,234,607 159,016
508,687,404 49,165 2,369,305 511,105,874 -
9,141,662 16,984,573 10,872,270 36,998,505 -
8,341,534 128,712 1,603,368 10,073,614 -
23,453,499 655,216 340,606 24,449,321 27,269,866
(245,836936) _ (10104,331) 042,005) __(262,983.362) (21,721,335
343343742 8,181,092 75 360,282,703 707,54
347,187,098 8,181,992 364,126,059 , 707,54
420,752,655 10,362,341 455,739,873 40,137,07:
2,133,601 337,849 68,236 2,539,686 -
2,133,601 337,849 68,236 2,530,686 -
2,671,709 52,539 464,316 3,188,564 765,603
67,107 - - 67,107 1,454,669
21,000 - - 21,000 -
77,738 1,654 190,189 269,581 41453
83,518 - - 83,518 -
212,684 59,048 5,168 276,900 -
2,167,490 68,104 374,025 2,609,619 466,121
197,033 4,308 63,067 264,408 7,480
38,399 7,516 142,403 188,318 66
9,095,000 745,000 335168 10,175,168 -
14,631,678 938,169 1,574,336 17,144,183 2,735,392
258,198 - - 258,198 -
43,254,200 10,601,150 992,729 54,848,169 -
- - - - 1,698,860
399,000 - - 399,000 -
355,030 9,356 56,088 420,474 67,415
44,266,518 10,610,506 1,048,817 55,925,841 1,766,275
58,898,196 11,548,675 2,623,153 73,070,024 4,501,667
288,602,653 (3,502,007) 7,360,836 202,461,482 5,707,547
1,951,381 - - 1,951,381 150,000
3,623,310 - - 3,623,310 -
69,810,716 2,653,522 14,709,124 87,173,362 29,777,863
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CITY OF VANCOUVER

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

OPERATING REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Rents and royalties
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services
Supplies and contractual services
Interfund services
Intergovernmental payments
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings
State and federal grants
Interest and fiscal charges
Gain (Loss) on disposal of capital assets
Miscellaneous revenue (expense)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions, transfers
and special items

Capital contributions

Transfers in

Transfers out

Special item - Impairment of capital assets
Change in net position

TOTAL NET POSITION - BEGINNING, restated
Prior period adjustments
TOTAL NET POSITION - ENDING

$

$

CITY OF VANCOUVER

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Page 1 of 2

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds (Governmental
Major Fund Other Non- Activities)
Major
Enterprise Internal

Water/Sewer Funds Total Service Funds
366,407 $ -3 1,905 $ 368,312 $ 66,446
75,088,620 3,317 7,979,108 83,071,045 24,033,696
632,371 643,237 16,350 1,291,958 -
695,583 1,473,713 748,843 2,918,139 5,203,959
200,196 25,894 21,565 247,655 2,383
76,983,177 2,146,161 8,767,771 87,897,109 29,306,484
17,290,818 676,361 3,626,016 21,593,195 3,778,511
18,333,330 389,130 2,073,447 20,795,907 21,826,695
8,285,532 485,955 1,358,484 10,129,971 1,960,658
16,736,644 17,918 62,731 16,817,293 99,081
12,272,884 864,981 320,338 13,458,203 2,016,169
72,919,208 2,434,345 7,441,016 82,794,569 29,681,114
4,063,969 (288,184) 1,326,755 5,102,540 (374,630)
288,347 - 27,458 315,805 37,661
3,450 - 319,112 322,562 -
(2,673,088) (529,880) (75,461) (3,278,429) -
- 891,965 - 891,965 64,620

114,178 (81) 45,793 159,890 97,913
(2,267,113) 362,004 316,902 (1,588,207) 200,194
1,796,856 73,820 1,643,657 3,514,333 (174,436)
9,872,909 - - 9,872,909 67,660
4,131 1,245,540 129,814 1,379,485 7,800,000
(40,972) - (239,757) (280,729) -
(3,681,752) - - (3,681,752) -
7,951,172 1,319,360 1,533,714 10,804,246 7,693,224
356,152,931 (1,494,912) 21,327,519 375,985,538 27,951,214
(116,043) (672,933) (791,273) (1,580,249) (9,028)
363,988,060 $ (848,485) $ 22,069,960 $ 385,209,535 $ 35,635,410

Washington State Auditor's Office
30

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Cash received from other operating activities
Cash payments for goods and services
Internal activity - between funds
Cash payments to employees

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal paid on debt
Unrestricted gifts received
Receipt of grant funds
Payments to other governments
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in receivables
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Purchase of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Capital contributions

Net cash used by capital and

related financing act

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment earnings (losses)
Issuance of notes receivable
Loans made to others

Net cash provided by investing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

(Governmental

Major Fund Other

Parking Non-Major Internal Service

Water/Sewer Services Enterprise Funds Total Funds
$ 76,603,794 $ 1,894,608 $ 8,726,661 $ 87,225,063 $ 29,278,094
200,196 9,284 21,530 231,010 1,836
(34,263,064) (393,152) (2,598,309) (37,254,525) (21,552,977)
(8,084,917) (494,819) (1,472,172) (10,051,908) (2,236,237)
(17,257,004) (640,326) (3,610,928) (21,508,258) (3,931,422)
17,199,005 375,595 1,066,782 18,641,382 1,559,294
- (685,000) - (685,000) -
114,178 - 45,793 159,971 53,333
251,515 - 20,368 271,883 -
- (231) - (231) (1,105)
4,131 1,245,540 129,120 1,378,791 7,800,000
(40,972) - (239,757) (280,729) -
328,852 560,309 (44,476) 844,685 7,852,228
(29,368) - - (29,368) -
(11,264,434) (651,889) (320,420) (12,236,743) -
(2,741,536) (504,938) (76,855) (3,323,329) -
(5,793,856) - (708,286) (6,502,142) (1,823,561)
- 1,255,965 - 1,255,965 141,240
6,886,761 - - 6,886,761 (9,873)
(12,942,433) 99,138 (1,105,561) (13,948,856) (1,692,194)
213,237 (2,596) 10,485 221,126 (13,574)
(209,589) - - (209,589) -
3,000 - - 3,000 -
6,648 (2,596) 10,485 14,537 (13,574)
4,592,072 1,032,446 (72,770) 5,551,747 7,705,754
62,563,466 699,571 15,542,939 78,805,976 25,245,119
$ 67,155,538 $ 1,732,017 $ 15,470,169 $ 84,357,723 $ 32,950,873
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CITY OF VANCOUVER

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Page 2 of 2

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash used by operating activities:

Net operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net
operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operations:

Depreciation expense

(Increase) Decrease in receivables
Increase (Decrease) in deposits
(Increase) Decrease in inventories

Increase (Decrease) in current payables

Increase (Decrease) in accrued liabi
(Increase) Decrease in receivables from other funds
Increase (Decrease) in payables due to other funds
Increase (Decrease) in claims and judgments payable
Increase (Decrease) revenue collected in advance

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating act

Noncash investing, financing and capital activities

Capital assets donated

Net change in fair value of investments
Impairment of capital assets

es

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

(Governmental

CITY OF VANCOUVER

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
December 31, 2013

Major Fund Other Non-
Major
Parking Enterprise Internal
Water/Sewer Services Funds Total Service Funds
$ 4,063,969 $ (288,184) $ 1,326,755 $ 5,102,540 $ (374,630)
12,272,884 864,981 320,338 13,458,203 2,016,169
(189,010) (241,505) (6,561) (437,076) (72,057)
9,823 - (7,858) 1,965 -
22,940 - - 22,940 (829)
783,970 13,895 (411,825) 386,040 19,982
247,132 36,034 15,088 298,254 34,806
- (644) (887) (1,531) (63,089)
(12,703) (8,219) (163,109) (184,031) (171,097)
- - - - 170,039
- (763) (5,160) (5,923) -
13,135,036 663,779 (259,973) 13,538,842 1,933,924
$ 17,199,005 $ 375595 $ 1,066,782 $ 18,641,382 $ 1,559,294
$ 2,986,149 $ - $ - $ 2,986,149 $ 67,660
$ (113,985) $ (2,941) $ (26,231) $ (143,156) $ (55,930)
$ (3,681,752) $ - $ - $ (3,681,752 $ -
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ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents and pooled investments

Investments: (at fair value)

Federal Agency Coupon Securities

Receivables:
Accounts
Interest

Due from other governmental units

Prepaid expenses

Property, plant, and equipment (net)

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts and accrued employee payables

Custodial accounts

Due to other governmental units

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION

Held in trust for Pension and OPEB Benefits

Pension Agency
Trust Funds Funds

$ 6,810,051 $ 1,450,120

2,017,068 -

- 188,868

31,180 2,465

- 1,800

58,019 -

- 585,921

8,916,318 2,229,174

15,396 181,408

- 14,330

- 2,033,436

15,396 2,229,174

$ 8,900,922 $ -
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CITY OF VANCOUVER

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Fiduciary Funds

For The Year Ended December 31, 2013

Pension
Trust Funds
Additions:
Employer Contributions
For pension benefits $ 1,256,490
For postemployment healthcare benefits 1,579,510
Other Sources 173,307
Total Contributions 3,009,307

Investment Income

Interest earnings 32,729
Total Investment Income 32,729
Total Additions 3,042,036
Deductions:

Pension benefits 675,927
Healthcare premium subsidies 1,579,510
Administrative expense 86,372
Total Deductions 2,341,809
Change in fiduciary net position 700,227

n - beginning 8,200,695

n - ending $ 8,900,922
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NOTE I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Vancouver (the City) conform to generally accepted accounting principles as
applied to City governments. The following is a summary of the more significant policies:

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Vancouver was incorporated January 23, 1857. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of
government and provides services per its charter adopted February 10, 1952, as last amended November 3, 2009.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Vancouver includes the primary government and its
component units, entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. The discretely presented
component units are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they
are legally separate from the primary government.

Discretely Presented Component Units:

The Vancouver Public Fa s District (PFD) is a special purpose government established to participate in the
development of the Hotel/Convention Center in downtown Vancouver. The PFD board is comprised of five (5) members
appointed by the City Council of Vancouver. The City is able to impose its will on the district; however, PFD’s services do
not exclusively or almost exclusively benefit the City of Vancouver. Therefore, financial statements are discretely
presented as a business- type activity in the City’s annual financial report.

The Downtown Redevelopment Authority (DRA) is a special purpose government established in 1997 to plan, design,
finance, acquire, construct, equip, own, maintain, operate, repair, remodel, expand, and promote the Vancouver
Convention Center and Hotel Project. The DRA Board is composed of seven (7) members who are appointed by the City
Council of Vancouver to four year terms. The City is able to impose its will on the authority; however, the DRA’s services
do not exclusively or almost exclusively benefit the City of Vancouver. Therefore, financial statements are discretely
presented as a business- type activity in the City’s annual financial report.

On February 27, 2006, the Vancouver City Council passed Ordinance M-3739 creating the City Center Redevelopment
Authority (CCRA). CCRA is chartered with facilitating the redevelopment of property thereby promoting economic growth
and urban livability within the Vancouver City Center Vision plan area. The CCRA will complement the work of the
Downtown Redevelopment Authority (DRA) which is limited by indenture for construction and operation of the Hotel and
Convention Center project. The CCRA is an independent legal entity, and its financial activities will be reported as a
cretely presented component unit of the City; however, there was no financial information to report for fiscal year
ending December 31, 2013.

Unless noted otherwise in this report, the accounting policies of the component units are consistent with those described
for the primary government. PFD and DRA issue separate financial statements which can be obtained from the City of
Vancouver, Financial and Management Services, PO Box 1995, Vancouver, WA 98668-1995, or electronically by
contacting Christine Smith, Accounting Manager, at christine.smith@cityofvancouver.us.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) report
information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
i cant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from cert:
legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is offset
by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment; and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Fund financial statements are separate financial statements provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.
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C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION
Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounts and

reported in the financial statements. Basis relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the
measurement focus applied.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider are met. Agency funds only report assets and
liabilities, using the accrual basis of accounting to recognize receivables and payables.

Governmental fund financial statements report the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accoun Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues
are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the current fiscal period. The City considers property taxes available if they are collected within 60
days after year end. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated
with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of
the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due n the current fiscal period is
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Consolidated Fire Fund accounts for money received and the expenditures made in providing fire services to
the combined City and Fire District 5 service area. The significant resources accounted for in this fund are
intergovernmental revenue from Fire District 5, charges for services, licenses and permits and an operating
transfer from the City's General Fund

The Transportation Capital fund was established to account for capital projects in the transportation
department. The significant resources accounted for in this fund are grants and developer contributions and
operating transfers from bond proceeds or other special revenue sources.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water/Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the City's utility. Revenues are received from water and
sewer services provided. Expenses are comprised of maintenance and extensions of drainage, water and sewer
i i ng sewer treatment plants and operating a water
drainage system. This fund also encompasses the accounting for revenue bonds outstanding, the funds available
for redemption of bonds, cumulative reserve and construction funds.

The Parking Services fund accounts for revenues received from operations of City owned or operated publ
parking spaces. Expenses are directly related to the operations and maintenance of those faci

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Debt service funds account for the accumulation of resources for and payments of general long-term debt principal
and interest, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than for major capital projects)
that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital project funds account for the acquisition or development of capital facilities for governmental activities.
Their major sources of revenues are from proceeds from general obligation bonds, grants from other agencies and
contributions from other funds.

Internal service funds account for services provided to other departments or agencies of the government, or to
other governments on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Trust funds account for the activities of the Police and Firemen’s Pension funds, which accumulate resources
for pension benefit payments to qualified public safety employees.

Agency funds represent assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and do not report results of
operations.
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The City now follows the standards set by GASB Statement No.62 Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.
general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the government's water and
sewer function and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs
and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges
provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments.
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general
revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Water/Sewer enterprise fund, of the non-
major enterprise funds, and of the City's internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services.
i clude the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY

1 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Cash resources of individual funds are
invested directly into government securities with interest accruing for the benefit of the specific fund. This policy covers all
funds operated by the City. Cash resources required for immediate reasons (within the next month) are invested to the
extent possible in short-term investments such as money market/Washington State Local Government Investment Pool
(LGIP) accounts with interest accruing to the benefit of each individual fund based on the monthly average cash balance
of each fund.

Statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Agencies, and instrumentalities, banker's
acceptances, repurchase agreements, and the state treasurer's investment pool. The City is also authorized to enter into
reverse repurchase agreements, but did not participate in these investments during 2013. The Pension Trust Fund is also
authorized to invest in corporate bonds rated “A” or better by Standard & Poor's Corporation, or “A” or better by Moody’s
Bond Ratings. Since the City maintains an internal investment pool, regulatory oversight is performed by the CFO, the
Treasurer, and the Treasury accountant. Since the City is a governmental unit, at this point, no other type of regulatory
oversight is required.

Investments for the City, as well as for its component units, are reported at fair value. The State Treasurer's Investment
Pool operates in accordance with appropriate state laws and regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as
the fair value of the pool shares. As of December 31, 2013, the City had $98,888,379 in the Washington State local
investment pool and $48,684,594 in the Clark County Local Government Investment Pool, which were both classified as
cash equivalents. Interest on these investments are prorated to the various funds.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers the assets within the state and local government

investment pools and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
2. Amounts Due to and from Other Funds and Governments, Interfund Loans and Advances Receivable

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal
year are referred to as either “Interfund loan payable” (for the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other
funds” (for the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due
to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business- type activities
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.” A separate schedule of interfund
receivable and payables is furnished in Note IV.C.

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve accoun
applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available
financial resources.

All trade accounts receivable are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts.
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The Clark County Treasurer acts as an agent to collect property taxes levied in the county for all taxing authorities. Taxes
are levied annually before December 15, and become a lien as of January 1, on property value listed as of the prior May
31. Assessed values are established by the Clark County Assessor at 100 percent of fair market value. A revaluation of
all property is required every six years.

Taxes are due in two equal installments on April 30 and October 31. The Clark County Treasurer remits collections
monthly to the appropriate district. Property taxes are recorded as a receivable and revenue in the period for which they
are levied. Property taxes collected in advance of the fiscal year to which they apply are recorded as deferred inflows
and recognized as revenue of the period to which they apply. No allowance for uncollectible taxes receivable is
established because delinquent taxes are considered fully collectible and in the event of nonpayment, create a lien
against the associated property. Prior year tax levies were recorded using the same principle as discussed previously,
and delinquent taxes are evaluated annually. Taxes receivable also contains related interest and penalties. See Note V.
E for more discussion.

Accrued interest receivable consists of amounts earned on investments, notes and contracts at the end of the year.

Special assessments are recorded when levied. Special assessments receivable consists of current and delinquent
assessments, related interest, and penalties. Deferred inflow for special assessments consists of unbilled special
assessments that are liens against the property benefited.

Customer accounts receivable consists of amounts owed from private individuals or organizations for goods and services
including amounts owed for which billings have not been prepared. Notes and contracts receivable consists of amounts
owed on open account from private individuals or organizations for goods and services rendered.

3. Inventories and prepaid items

The inventory carried by the Water/Sewer Fund is valued at average cost. A cycle count protocol is used to verify
inventory amounts throughout the year and at year end.

Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when purchased rather than when consumed.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in
both government-wide and fund financial statements.

4. Restricted assets

These accounts contain resources for construction and debt service in enterprise funds. Certain proceeds of the
enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted
assets on the balance sheet because they may be maintained in separate bank accounts and their use is limited by
applicable bond covenants. The restricted assets of the enterprise funds consists of $5,575,944 which is cash and
investments held for debt service.

The current portion of related liabilities is shown as Payables from Restricted Assets. Specific debt service reserve
requirements are described in Note IV.E.3.

5. Capital assets

Capital assets are generally considered property, plant, and equipment owned by the City costing $10,000 or more, and
having an estimated useful life of 4 years or more. Additionally, new infrastructure construction (e.g. roads, bridges,
sidewalks, etc.) of $100,000 or more is also reported as capital. Assets are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Such assets are recorded at historical cost
or estimated historical cost if the actual cost is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market
value at the date of donation.

Costs for additions or improvements to capital assets are capitalized when they increase the effectiveness or efficiency of
the asset.

The cost for normal maintenance and repairs are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are recorded in Construction in Progress as they are constructed, and
capitalized upon completion. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Assets are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Category Useful Life
Buildings 40
Infrastructure 15-40
Structures 20
Leasehold Improvements 5
Utility Improvements 5-60
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Other Improvements 5-30
Rolling Stock 5-15
Information Tech Equipment 4
Equipment 5-15
Software (Intangibles) 5

The City has acquired certain assets with funding provided by federal financial assistance programs. Depending on the
terms of the agreements involved, the federal government could retain an equity interest in these assets. However, the
City has sufficient legal interest to accomplish the purposes for which the assets were acquired, and has included such
assets wi the applicable column in the statement of net position.

Easements with indef

e lives are considered non-depreciable assets. Other intangible assets with |

City employees can accumulate a certain amount of earned but unused vacation and sick leave benefits. All vac
accrued when incurred in the governerment-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements. The
reports a liability for sick leave accrual earned by certain employees. See Note IV. E.2, for more information.

all statements other than those statements
iums and discounts,
are amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premium and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period as other financing sources or uses. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. See Note
IV.E for more detail.

8. Unearned revenues

This includes amounts recognized as receivables but not revenues in governmental funds because the revenue
recognition criteria have not been met.

9. Use of estimates

These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported ancial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates
and assumptions.

10.

statements, assets in excess of lial
measurement focus of the statement.

es are presented in one of two ways depending on the

On the Statement of Net Position for government-wide reporting and for the proprietary funds and on the fiduciary funds’
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position, net position is segregated into three categories: net investment in capital assets,;
restricted net position; and unrestricted net position.

Net investment in capital assets represents total capital assets less accumulated deprec
to capital assets less unspent bond proceeds.

n less debt directly related

Restricted net position is that component whose use is not subject solely to the government's own discretion.
Restrictions may be placed on net position by an external third party that provided the resources, by laws or regulations of
other governments, by enabling legislation, by endowment agreements, or by the nature of the asset. Unspent bond
proceeds for capital projects are used in the calculation of restricted net position.

Unrestricted surplus (deficit) net position represents amounts not included in other categories.

On the Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds, assets in excess of liabilities are reported as fund balances and are
segregated into separate classifications indicating the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the
specific purposes for which those funds can be spent.
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Fund balance is reported as Nonspendable when the resources cannot be spent because they are either in a
nonspendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Resources in nonspendable form
include inventories and prepaid items.

Fund balance is reported as Restricted when the constraints placed on the use of resources are either: (a) externally
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. When both restricted and
unrestricted resources are available for use, the City's policy is to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted
resources, as they are needed.

Fund balance is reported as Committed for amounts that can be used only for specific purposes as determined by a
formal action of the City Council, the City’s highest level of decision-making authority. City Council can, by adoption of an
ordinance or resolution prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by
the ordinance or resolution remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance or resolution)
to remove or revise the limitation.

Resources that are constrained by the City's intent to use them for a specific purpose, but are neither res
committed, are reported as Assigned fund balance. The City has not established a policy regarding the assignment of
funds, so this category of fund balance represents the residual amounts not otherwise reported as non-spendable,
restricted, or committed in governmental funds outside of the General Fund.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. This classification represents fund balance
that is not otherwise reported as non-spendable, restricted, or committed within the General Fund. This classification is
also used to report any negative fund balance amounts in other governmental funds.

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications
could be used, the City intends to reduce committed amounts first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned
amounts. See more detail in Note IV.H.

E. ADOPTION OF NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, the City implemented the following GASB Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 61 The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No.
34

Issued November 2010, the objective of this statement is to improve financial reporting for a governmental financial
reporting entity. The requirements of GABS Statements No. 14 and No. 34 were amended to better meet user needs and
to address reporting entity issues that have arisen since the issuance of those statement. There is no material impact to
the City for implementing the standard.

GASB Statement No. 65 Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities

Issued in March 2012, this statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities
and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets
and liabilities. The deferred inflows and outflows of resources are reflected in the financial statement presentation.

The City restated the beginning net position of the Statement of Activities, for the write-off of bond issuance costs, as
follows:

Governmental Activities ($ 944,021)
Business-Type Act S ($ 786,729)
Vancouver Downtown Redevelopment Authority, a component unit ($4,213,153)

The City restated the beginning net position of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, for
the write-off of bond issuance costs, as follows:

Water/Sewer ($635,153)

Parking ($130,583)
Other Non-major Enterprise Funds ($ 20,993)

GASB Statement No. 66 Technical Corrections—2012—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62

Issued in March 2012, the objective of this statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for a governmental
financial reporting entity resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two pronouncements. There is
no material impact to the City for implementing the standard.

F. FUTURE ADOPTION OF GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

The following GASB pronouncements have been issued, but are not yet effective at December 31, 2013:

. GASB Statement No. 67 Financial Reporting for Pension Plans—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25

e GASB Statement No. 68 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—an amendment of GASB Statement
No. 27

e  GASB Statement No. 69 Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations

e GASB Statement No. 70 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees
GASB Statement No. 71 Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 68

The City of Vancouver will implement the new GASB pronouncements in the fiscal year no later than the required effective
date. The City has not yet determined if the above listed new GASB pronouncements will have a significant financial
impact to the City or in issuing its financial statements.
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NOTE Il. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

A.  EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND
BALANCE SHEET AND THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balances—total governmental funds and net
position—governmental acti s as reported in the government-wide statement of net position. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details of this difference are as follows:

Bonds Payable $ 93,479,010
Less: Deferred charge on refunding (to be amortized as interest expense) (2,143,047)
Less: Issuance discount (to be amortized as interest expense (16,028)
Plus: Issuance premium (to be amortized as interest income) 3,341,406

Accrued interest payable 418,181

Government loans 6,933,118

Special assessment debt 6,326

Net OPEB obligation 5,990,931

Compensated absences for non-Internal Service Funds 6,937,501

Impact fee credits 11,515,979

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance-total government funds to arrive at
net position-governmental ac

$ 126,463,377

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “other long-term assets are not available to pay current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds, or other long-term assets of the City.” The details of this difference
are as follows:

Earned but unavailable revenues $ 3,180,666
Investments in joint ventures 3,557,978
Net pension asset 6,792,077

Net adjustment to increase fund balance - total governmental funds to arrive at net po:

govermental acti $ 13,530,721

B. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES AND THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes recon
between net changes in fund balances—total governmental funds and changes in net position of governmental activities
as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that
“Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.” The details of this difference
are as follows:

Capital outlay $ 24,542,969
Depreciation expense (19,835,432
Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - total governmental

funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities $ 4,707,537

Another element of that reconciliation states that “Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.” The details of this difference are as follows:

Earned Taxes $ (142,714)
Earned Special Assessments 62,414
Earned Revenue considered unavailable at fund level 770,204
Miscellaneous Revenues related to Joint Venture 1,548,719
Contributions related to Impact Fee Credits 421,638

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - total governmental
funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities $ 2,660,261

Another element of that reconciliation states that “The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.” The details of this difference are as
follows:

Debt issued or incurred $ (1,496,000)
Principal repayments:

7,246,470
Governmental loans 116,471
Special assessment debt 3,000

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balance-total governmental funds to
arrive at changes in net position of governemental activities $ 5,869,941

Another element of that reconciliation states that “Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.” The details are
as follows:

Compensated absences $ 848,828
Pension and OPEB cost (100,426)
Accrued interest (47,359)
Amortization of deferred amount on refunding (333,570)
Amortization of bond discounts/premiums 409,727
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances—total governmental

funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities $ 777,200
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NOTE Ill. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

The City prepares a biennial budget for all funds in accordance with the Municipal Code 35.33 of the Revised Code of
Washington (RCW) that is on a cm consistent with accounting principles generally monmuaa in the United States of
America. All funds except custodial agency funds are budgeted to the fund level. Biennially appropriated budgets are
adopted for all funds and lapse at the end of each biennium. However, some of the Special Revenue and Capital funds
may carry forward budgeted amounts beyond the biennium for completion of certain projects.

Budgets are adopted at the level of the fund, except in the general fund, where expenditures may not exceed
appropriations at the function level and the budgets constitute the legal authority for expenditures at that level.

Budget amounts shown in the basic financial statements include the original budget amounts and all appropriation
transfers and adjustments approved by the City Manager or City Council, as required. The City Manager or his designee
is authorized as the chief executive officer to approve intra-fund budget transfers from one department to another or
between line items of the same department. Only the City Council has the authority to increase a given fund's biennial
budget. This is executed by City ordinance.

Year 2013 is the first year of the 2013-2014 Bien

Amending the budget increases to total budget expenditures of the City that affect the number of authorized employee
positions or salary ranges must be approved by City Council. When it is determined that it is in the best interest of the
City to increase the appropriation for a particular fund or department within general fund, it may do so by resolution
approved by one more than the majority after holding public hearings.

The calendar below outlines the general time frame followed to prepare, review and adopt 2013-2014 Biennial Budget.

January-March 2012

e Completed a Community Survey — a statistically valid random sample survey of residents.

April-June 2012

Prepared the pre nary revenue and expenditure forecast for 2013-2018.
Identified the n:mﬂ_c: of the budget process and outlined specific guidelines for departmental submission.
pated the need to take further choﬂ reductions

on prioritization of City services and City's Strategic Commitments.
e Utilized community input in preparation of the budget reduction proposals city-wide. The 2013-2014 budgeting
process utilized a collaborative process that took into account program prioritization city-wide and focused on

service level reductions in lower priority programs.

July-September 2012

*  Reviewed the departmental proposals and prepared budget recommendations for the
. Held televised workshops with City Council to review:

o The budget process and provided a budget reductions overview.

o The 2013-2018 revenue and expenditure forecast.

o Input from the public on priority of City services and programs.

October-November 2012

e The

ity Manager’ S Preliminary Recommended budget was published for public and Council review.

e  Presented the Preliminary Recommended Budget to City Council in televised workshop sessions and provided
Council members with detailed information on the proposed budget.

e A public hearing on the Recommended Budget and related ordinances for fee increases was held on November
1st of 2012.

The final budget as adopted is published within the first three months of the new budget year. The City of Vancouver
Biennial Budget is distributed to various agencies such as neighborhood associations and the Chamber of Commerce,
and is made available to all interested citizens in paper format and on the Web.

State statutes provide for a mid-biennial review and modification of the biennial budget to allow flexibility for addressing
Modifications to the original adopted budget are proposed by
departments and reviewed by the Budget Office staff in conjunction with the City Manager and his/her management team.
Adoption by the City Council requires a public hearing. There are usually two supplemental appropriations during any
fiscal year. These procedures are in accordance with RCW's.

B. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS
The City has not excess of expenditures over appropriations as of December 31, 2013.

C. DEFICIT NET POSITION/NET FUND BALANCE

At December 31, 2013, the Parking Services fund had a deficit in the fund net position of $848,485. The Parking Services
fund accounts for operations of City owned or operated public parking spaces. Depreciation expense (a non-cash item)
for the period ending December 31, 2013 was $864,981. During 2013, one parking garage was sold and certain debt
amounts were repaid. The City continues to make efforts to increase collection efforts by seeking judgments from
delinquent payers. In addition, the City notifies the Department of Licensing of repeat offenders ("scofflaw" accounts with
three or more unpaid citations). Those affected will be unable to renew their vehicle registration without payment in ful

At December 31, 2013, Vancouver Downtown Redevelopment Authority (DRA), a component unit of the City, had a defi
in the fund net position of $19,734,578. The DRA activities involve the operation of a hotel and convention center in the
City's central downtown area. This is a cash flow based project and the negative net position balance is primarily
attributed to accumulated depreciation and accumulated amortization of deferred charges, both of which are non-cash
items. Additionally, the economic environment has had a negative impact on the convention and lodging business since
the beginning of the great recession, and thi also reflected in the net position change. Deep cost-cutting measures
have been put in place. The Board and the management of the DRA as well as the project monitor ac s monthly. A
series of revenue generating guidelines and on-going expense reductions have been implemented.
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NOTE IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Cash and investments are presented
on the balance sheet in the basic financial statements at fair value or amortized cost, which approximates fair value, i
accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External
Investment Pools.

Activities undertaken by the pool on behalf of the proprietary funds are not part of the operating, capital, investing, or
financing activities of the proprietary funds, and details of these transactions are not reported in the Statement of Cash
Flows. In general, interest earned from the pooled investments is allocated to each fund based on the average earnings
and daily cash balance of each fund.

A reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents (including pooled investments) and investments as shown in the government-

wide and fund financial statements is as follows:

Notes

Investments $ 250,480,522

Deposits (252,861)

Deposits wifiscal agent, escrow, trust 9,418,489
Total $ 259,646,150

Financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents $ 239,704,973

Cash and cash equivalents — component units 214,332

Cash with fiscal agent/trustee 2,407,809

Cash with fiscal agent/trustee — component units 7,041,797

Fiduciary cash 8,260,171

Fiduciary investments 2,017,068
Total $ 259,646,150

1. Deposits

At year-end, the City's carrying amount of deposits was negative ($252,861) and bank balance was positive $2,567,534.
The cash balance in the general ledger overall was negative at the end of the year due to unplanned expenditures being
posted, however the balance at the bank was positive due to outstanding unredeemed checks. The Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) provides unlimited insurance for the City's non-interest bearing deposits and up to
$250,000 insurance on interest bearing deposit and investments through December 31, 2013. All deposits and bank
balances not covered by FDIC are covered under the State of Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission Act of
1969. As of June 30, 2009, the State of Washington Pul Deposit Protection Commission Act of 1969 was amended to
require all public depositories within the State of Washington to fully collateralize their uninsured public deposits at 100%.

2. Investments

s an Internal Investment Pool. The Pool has an average maturity of approximately one year. Some
funds are invested for the benefit of the respective fund. Remaining monies are aggregated in a residual account, and
invested in the pool for the benefit of all funds. As required by state law, all investments of the City funds are obligations
of the U.S. Government, U.S. agency issues, the State Treasurer's Investment Pool, or the Clark County Investment Pool.
Regulatory oversight is performed by the CFO, the Treasurer, and the Treasury accountant. Because we are a
government, at this point, we do not need any other type of regulatory oversight.

As of December 31, 2013 the fair value of the City’s investment portfolio was $250,480,522 of which $2,017,067 was
invested on behalf of the Firemen’s Pension Fund, and $248,463,455 was invested in the City's Internal Investment Pool
for the benefit of all funds. Investments of pension funds are not subject to the preceding limitations under state law.
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As of December 31, 2013, the City had the following investments:

weigniea
Fair Value Average

Investment Type (in thousands) Maturity (Years)
Federal Agency Coupon Securities $ 80,129 0.54
Corporate Bond 1,015 0.65
Municipal Bonds 21,763 0.61
Washington State Investment Pool 98,888 0.11
Clark County Investment Pool 48,685 0.25

Total Fair Value $ 250,480

Portfolio Weighted Average Maturity 0.92

* Fair value of pooled investments does not include adjustments made for
accrued interest distributed to pooled participants.

Interest Rate Risk: In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair values by
keeping the average maturity of its investment portfolio less than 2 years.

Credit Risk: Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The
Washington State Investment Pool, a 2a7-like pool, is unrated. The Clark County Investment Pool is also an unrated fund
and has oversight by the Clark County Finance Committee.

To limit risk, Washington State law and the City of Vancouver's investment policy limits the amount of the portfolio

only investing in commercial paper or banker's acceptances with a credit rating of Al or P1, and investing in corporate
bonds for the pension fund, with a credit rating of or better (or equivalent) by nationally recognized statistical rating
organizations. The ratings of debt securities as of December 31, 2013 are:

Fannie Mae (Federal National Mortgage Association) Aaa
Freddie Mac (Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation) Aaa
Federal Home Loan Bank Aaa
Federal Farm Credit Bank Aaa

Concentration of credit risk: Concentration risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's
investment in a single issuer. The City places limits on the amount it may invest in any one issuer depending on the
security type of the investment. At the end of 2013, the City’s portfolio had the following concentration of securities in
6.0% of Federal Home Loan Bank, 11.5% of Federal National Mortgage Association, 4.0% of Federal Farm Credit Bank,
and10.6% of Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation. The City has several investments in government-sponsored
enterprises which are not explicitly backed by the federal government. However, the federal government has provided
significant support by increasing its investments in Federal National Mortgage Association and Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation and stated they would not allow these enterprises to fail.
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B. CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows:

Restated Beginning Ending Balance
Balance 01/01/13 Increases Decreases 12/31/13
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 63,464,008 $ 2,113,337 $ 182,191 $ 65,395,154
Intangible - Easements 8,048,566 19,539 - - 8,068,105
Construction in progress 46,003,423 37,511,762 31,814,225 51,700,960
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 117,515,997 39,644,638 31,996,416 125,164,219
Capital assets, being depreciated/depleted:
Cemetery land 1,101,047 - - 1,101,047
Buildings 117,439,355 24,815 - 117,464,170
Machinery and equipment 48,865,781 3,180,035 1,931,830 50,113,986
Infrastructure 546,885,461 32,725,901 - 579,611,362
Intangible 7,333,388 1,000,222 - 8,333,610
Total capital assets being depreci pl 721,625,032 36,930,973 1,931,830 756,624,175
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Cemetery land 718,653 1,615 - 720,268
Buildings 28,063,222 3,041,420 - 31,104,642
Machinery and equipment 34,791,031 3,353,830 1,745,837 36,399,024
Infrastructure 174,418,141 15,321,605 - 189,739,746
Intangible 6,713,022 133,131 - 6,846,153
Total accumulated depreciation 244,704,069 21,851,601 1,745,837 264,809,833
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 476,920,963 15,079,372 185,993 491,814,342
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 594,436,960 $ 54,724,010 $ 32,182,409 $ 616,978,561
Restated Beginning Ending Balance
Balance 01/01/13 Increases Decreases 12/31/13
Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciate
Land $ 30,146,794 $ 738,006 $ 363,999 $ 30,520,801
Intangible - Easements 2,346,345 1,536,998 - - 3,883,343
Construction in progress 12,209,588 5,478,643 11,453,624 6,234,607
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 44,702,727 7,753,647 11,817,623 40,638,751
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and system 39,017,604 - 2,019,099 36,998,505
Infrastructure 502,903,915 8,201,959 - 511,105,874
Machinery and equipment 24,820,853 192,112 563,644 24,449,321
Intangible 9,175,273 898,341 - 10,073,614
Total capital assets, being depreciated 575,917,645 9,292,412 2,582,743 582,627,314
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and system 19,586,275 1,313,232 2,019,098 18,880,409
Infrastructure 202,491,878 11,060,815 - 213,552,693
Machinery and equipment 21,152,640 972,417 563,645 21,561,412
Intangible 8,877,109 111,739 - 8,988,848
Total accumulated depreciation 252,107,902 13,458,203 2,582,743 262,983,362
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 323,809,743 (4,165,791 - 319,643,952
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 368,512,470 $ 3,587,856 $ 11,817,623 $ 360,282,703

The beginning balance of the Governmental and Business-type activities were restated as described in Note V.I. Prior
Period Adjustments. The Governmental Construction in progress at December 31, 2012, was reported as $45,961,147
and restated at January 1, 2013, to $46,003,423. The Governmental Machinery and Equipment at December 31, 2012
was reported as $49,106,387 and was restated at January 1, 2013 to $48,865,781. The Governmental accumulated
depreciation at December 31, 2012 for Cemetery Land, was $717,486 and was restated at January 1, 2013 to $718,653
and for Machinery and Equipment was reported as $35,052,046 and was restated at January 1, 2013 to $34,791,031.

The Business-type Construction in progress at December 31, 2012 was reported as $12,420,418. This amount has been
restated to $12,209,588 as of January 1, 2013, which reflects a decrease of $210,830. In addition, Construction in
progress recorded an impairment of $3,681,752, which has been included in the $11,453,624 decreases column. The
Business-type accumulated depreciation for Buildings and Systems at December 31, 2012, was reported at $18,930,068
and restated at January 1, 2013, to $19,586,276.
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government $ 793,715
Security of persons & property 1,923,404
Trar including ion of general i assets 14,211,016
Physical Environment 3,293
Economic Environment 710,723
Culture and recreation 2,193,281
Capital assets held by the government's internal service funds are charged to
various functions based on their usage of the assets 2,016,169
Total i expense — Governmental Activities $ 21,851,601

Business-type Activities:

Water/Sewer $ 12,272,884
Airpark 208,032
Building Inspection 79,771
Sanitation 10,216
Parking 864,981
Tennis Center 22,319

Total iation expense — Business-type Activities $ 13,458,203

Component Units
A summary of capital asset activity for component units for the year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows:

Beginning
Balance Ending Balance
01/01/13 Increases Decreases 12/31/13
D 1 Red p Authority
Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Construction in progress $ - $ 202,315 $ 200,813 $ 1,502
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and system $ 51,605,004 $ -3 - $ 51,605,004
Machinery and equipment 6,453,795 200,813 - 6,654,608
Total capital assets, being depreciated 58,058,799 200,813 - 58,259,612
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and system 9,460,917 1,290,125 - 10,751,042
Machinery and equipment 6,006,734 142,444 - 6,149,178
Total accumulated depreciation 15,467,651 1,432,569 - 16,900,220
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 42,591,148 (1,231,756) - 41,359,392
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 42,591,148 $  (1,029,441) $ 200,813 $ 41,360,894
Vancouver Public Facilities District
Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depre
Land and improvements $ 3,603,691 $ - $ - $ 3,603,691
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C. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS D. LEASE AGREEMENTS

1. Operating Leases

The City is obligated under certain leases accounted for as operating leases. Operating leases do not give rise to
property

Loans between funds are classi ma as interfund loans receivable or payable or as advances to and :ca other funds on

Due to other funds and due from other funds result from goods issued, work performed or services qm:umqmu to or for the
benefit of another fund of the same government. The following table displays Due to and Due from activity outstanding as
of December 31, 2013: The following is a schedule of minimum future rental payments required under operating leases that have i
remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2013

governmental and business-type activities, respectively.

Due from Due to
Other Funds Other Funds
Governmental Activities
General Fund $ 194,021 $ 472,188
Consolidated Fire Funds 8,926 566 Governmental Business-type
Transportation Capital 487,594 20,000
Non-Major Governmental Funds 101,108 691,859 2014 8 182482 S
Subtotal Governmental Activities 791,649 1,184,613 !
Internal Service Funds 162,557 41,453 2015 187,742
Governmental Activities 954,206 1,226,066 2016 Hmw.Hmw
- 2017 198,725 -
Business Activites 2018 204,455
Water/Sewer 522,037 77,738 2019-2023 ﬂmw.WHO _
Parking Services 694 1,654 2024-2028 591,248 R
Non-Major Business Type Activities 18,710 190,189
Subtotal Business Activities 541,441 269,581 2029-2033 677,141 -
Total Government Wide $__ 1495647 $_ 1,495647 2034-2038 s 3 HMW_MMW s 7 N_o_..w
| " : : 2. City as Lessor
nterfund transfers are the flow of assets without a reciprocal return of assets, goods or services. These are transfers to

support other funds without a requirement for repayment. The interfund transfer activity for the year is as follows: The City is the lessor for some non-cancelable operating leases for fac

Expiration dates range between 2014 and 2058.

es and property located wi the City limits.

Transfers Out

The following is a worma:_m of the minimum future rental

come required under these leases. They all are considered

Non-Major governmental acti
Transp Non-Major Water Enterprise

Transfers In General Fund Fire Capital Govt Funds Sewer Funds Total

General Fund ~ $ - $ $ $ 148,669 $ 40,972 $ 143,081 $ 332,722 Governmental

Consolidated Activities

Fire 22,581,482 - - - - 22,581,482 2014 $ 1,326,045

Transp Capital 265,934 - R 9,799,216 R - 10,065,150 2015 1,157,906

Non-Major Govt 2016 966,949

Funds 17,828,946 359,256 19,905 6,239,943 92,545 24,540,595 2017 623,691

Water/Sewer - 4131 4131 2018 264,921

Parking 2019-2023 219,977

Services 1,245,540 - - - - - 1,245,540 2024-2028 112,542

N_mﬂm ° 129,814 - - - - - 129,814 2029-2083 112,540
2034-2038 112,537

Internal Service 2039-2043 112,537

Funds 7,800,000 7,800,000 2044-2048 112,537

Total $ 49851716 $ 359,256 $ 19,905 16,187,828 $ 40972 $ 239,757 $ _ 66,699,434 2049-2053 112,537
2054-2058 67,526

$ 5,302,245
There were no significant transfers made during 2013 that do not occur on a routine basis or are inconsistent with the
es of the fund making the transfer.
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E. LONG-TERM DEBT

1. BONDS AND DEBT:

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital projects.
General obligation bonds have been issued for both governmental and business-type ac

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and are pledged by the full faith and credit of the government. These
bonds generally are issued as 20-year serial bonds with fixed payments maturing each year. General obligation bonds
are either created by 3/5 majority vote of the people and, therefore, financed by a special tax levy; or are created by
ordinance, adopted by the City Council, and normally financed from general revenues (councilmanic bonds). General
obligation bonds currently outstanding (in thousands) are as follows:

Original Issuance Maturity Interest Debt

Name of Issuance Purpose Debt Date Date Rate Outstanding
2002 LTGO Bond Governmental Activities & Refunding $ 39,365  10/23/2002 12/1/2018 2%-525% $ 14,750
2005 LTGO Bond Governmental Acti 18,090 7/15/2005 12/1/2026 3%-5% 11,885
2006 LTGO Bond Governmental Activities 14785 10/11/2006 1211/2025 3.75%-5% 11,200
2008 LTGO Bond Governmental Activities 14570 6/30/2008 12/1/2027 3.5%-5% 10,635
2009 LTGO Bond Governmental Acti 12,970 6/1/2009 1211/2028 3.5%-5% 10,725
2010 LTGO Bond Governmental Activities 13,410 12/1/2010 12/1/2035  2.0%-5.125% 11,410
2011 LTGO Bond Governmental Activities 10,515 6/1/2011 12112035 2.0%-5.125% 9,925
2012A LTGO Bond Govermental Activities Refunding 15,945 11212012 12/1/2029 2.0%-3.75% 15,830
2012B&C LTGO Bond Govermental Activities Refunding 9515  12/12/2012 12/1/2025  0.61%-2.89% 9,465

Total General Obligation Bonds $ 149,165 $ 105,825

City management provides for cash to fund current debt service requirements as a part of the biennial budgeting process.
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds (in thousands) are as follows:

Governmental Ac es Business Type Activities
Total Total

Principal Interest Requirements i Interest Requirements
2014 $ 7,550 $ 4,153 $ 11,703 $ 442 $ 1,522
2015 7,872 3,828 11,700 1,133 387 1,520
2016 7,319 3,465 10,785 1,181 329 1,510
2017 6,663 3,112 9,775 922 269 1,191
2018-2022 26,550 11,568 38,118 4,865 799 5,664
2023-2027 24,285 6,051 30,336 3,165 180 3,345

2028-2032 9,285 1,962 11,247 - - -

2033-2035 3,955 387 4,342 - - -
$ 93479 $ 34,526 $ 128,005 $ 12346 $ 2,406 $ 14,752

of indebtedness is 1 %% of assessed property value without a vote of the taxpayers and an
additional 1% with a vote of the taxpayers. At December 31, 2013 the remaining non-voted and voted remaining capacity
for indebtedness was $146,761,835 and $143,261,778 respectively.

The City has also received governmental loans to provide for construction of capital projects. Governmental loans
outstanding (in thousands) at year-end are as follows:

Name of Original Issuance Maturity Interest Debt

Issuance Purpose Debt Date Date Rate Outstanding
Governmental-
2006 PWTF Type Activiti $ 2,200 11/30/2006 7/1/2026 1% $ 1,514
3-month
Section 108 HUD ~ Government: LIBOR
Loan Type Activities 5,419 71712010 8/1/2015 plus 20 bp 5,419
Dept of Ecology
Revolving Fund Business-Type
Loan 381 1/11/2010  12/31/2017 1.5% 342
$ 8,000 $ 7,275

Government and bank loan debt service requirements to maturity (in thousands) are as follows:

Governmental Acti Business-Type Acti

Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2014 116 33 149 84 5 88
2015 5,535 37 5,572 85 4 88
2016 116 6 123 86 2 88
2017 116 6 122 87 1 88
2018-2022 582 20 603 - - -
2023-2026 466 6 472 - - -
$ 6,933 $ 108 $ 7,041 $ 342 $ 12 $ 353

The Section 108 Loan was approved for a total of $6.8 million, however through the 12/31/13 only $5,419,000 was drawn
down on the loan, and no additional draws can be requested. The loan has quarterly interest-only payments, with the
total principal balance due on August 1, 2015. The Washington State Department of Ecology loan is authorized for $1.1
million. As of December 31, 2013, only $381,218 was expended. City staff has determined that no additional draws wi
be drawn. This loan was finalized in 2013 and the first payment was paid in 2013. The loan will have even payments due
twice per year through 2017.

At December 31, 2013, the City had $0 available in debt service fund balance. Several other funds are responsible for
payment of the GO bonded debt. Through the budget appropriation process, arrangements are made for transfers from
those funds to the debt service funds prior to payment of the debt.

The government also issues special assessment debt to provide funds for the construction of water and sewer utilities
residential areas without existing infrastructure. Special assessment bonds are created by ordinance, adopted by
il, and financed by assessments on property owners. A separate guaranty fund is available to cover most
outstanding delinquencies at the end of the assessment period. The City’s obligation doesn't extend beyond the guaranty
fund assets. In the event that a deficiency exists because of unpaid or delinquent special assessments at the time a debt
service payment is due, the government must provide resources to cover the deficiency until other resources, for
example, foreclosure proceeds, are received. The City has a Local Improvement District Guaranty Fund to finance any
uncollectible special assessment debt. Special assessment debt with a governmental commitment reported at year end is
(in thousands) as follows:

Issuance Debt
Name of Issuance Original Debt Date Maturity Date  Interest Rate Outstanding
Notes R i $ 213 8/31/1996 8/31/2016 6.75% $ 6

Total Assessment Debt $ 213 $ 6
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Special assessment bonds are serial bonds but are called yearly based on assessments received. Annual debt service
requirements to maturity for special assessment bonds are (in thousands) as follows:

Governmental Activities

Total
Principal Interest Requirements
18 7
13 7

2013-2016 $ 6
Total $ 6

$
$

The Local Improvement District Debt Service Fund and the Local Improvement District Guaranty Debt Service Fund have
$1,236 and $1,118 respectively, to service the local improvement district bonds.

Revenue Bonds

The City also issues bonds where the government pledges income derived from the acquired or constructed assets to pay
debt service. Revenue bonds are created by ordinance, adopted by the City Council, and financed from enterprise fund
revenues. The Water/Sewer revenue bonds are issued to finance capital projects.

Revenue bonds outstanding at year-end are (in thousands) as follows:

Issuance Maturity Debt
Name of Issuance Original Debt Date Date Interest Rate Outstanding
2004 Water Sewer Refunding 26,250 2/26/2004 6/1/2020 2%-5% 20,225
2005 Water Sewer Refunding 42,520 4/4/2005 6/1/2018  3%-5.5% 21,630
2008 Water Sewer Refunding 20,230 6/3/2008 6/1/2016  3.25%-5% 8,135
Total Revenue Bonds $ 89,000 $ 49,990

Business Type Activities:

Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are (in thousands) as follows:

Total
Principal Interest Requirements
2014 9,095 2,331 11,426
2015 9,550 1,868 11,418
2016 10,045 1,369 11,414
2017-2020 21,300 1,875 23,175

$ 49,990 $ 7,443 $ 57,433

The reserve and redemption accounts of the Water/Sewer enterprise funds have $3,630,830 available to service the
revenue debt, plus the city has purchased surety dollars in addition to meet debt service reserve requirements.

Water/Sewer revenue bond covenants require that revenue available for debt service (defined as operating and non-
operating revenues less expenses requiring payment to outside entities) exceed the annual debt payment of both
principal and interest by a ratio of 1.3 to 1. The City remains in compliance with that provision with a current ratio of 2.24
to 1 coverage. There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The City is in
compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions.

Advance Refundin

In prior years, the City has defeased various bond issues by creating separate irrevocable trust funds. New debt was
issued and the proceeds were used to purchase US Government securities that were placed in the trust funds. The
investments and fixed earnings from the investments were sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt was
called or matured. For financial reporting purposes, the debt was removed as a liability from the Governmental Activities
column of the Statement of Net Position. All outstanding defeased bonds were called and paid off in 2013.

2. COMPENSATED ABSENCES AND IMPACT FEE CREDITS:

Compensated Absences

Accumulated amounts of vacation leave are accrued as expenses when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements. At December 31, 2013, the recorded liability for compensated absences amounted to
$9,432,970 with $7,330,598 recorded in governmental activities and $2,102,372 recorded in business-type activities. City
employees receive personal time off (PTO), vacation and sick leave time at monthly rates established by City ordinance or
union agreement. PTO is accrued semi-monthly by employees at an annual rates ranging from 22.5 to 39.5 days
depending upon tenure. Vacation is accrued semi-monthly by employees at annual rates ranging from 15 to 35 days
depending upon tenure and union agreements. Accumulated PTO and vacation carryover between years is limited to
twice an employee’s current year accrual. Sick leave accruals vary, depending upon union agreement, between 10 and
24 hours per month. City Policy and all contracts provide for a pay off of sick leave in some instances. Employees who are
not covered by contract and were age 50 or who had more than 14 years of service as of January 1, 1980 may qualify for
payoff of up to 50% of their sick leave balance at retirement. Employees who are covered by either the Joint Labor
Coalition, AFSCME or OPEIU contracts and were hired prior to January 1, 1980 may qualify for 50% payoff of their sick
leave balance at retirement. Employees covered under law enforcement contracts and who were hired prior to January 1,
1981, and employees covered by fire suppression and command contracts and who were hired prior to January 1, 1983,
may qualify for 50% payoff of their sick leave balance at retirement, or 25% upon leaving the employer in good standing
for reasons other than retirement. For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by
operating funds, such as the General Fund and Consolidated Fire funds.

Impact Fee Credits

In 1995, the City of Vancouver adopted an impact fee ordinance to ensure that adequate facilities are available to serve
new growth and development. An impact fee is charged at the issuance of a building permit. In addition, the developer
may be entitled to a non-refundable “credit” against the applicable impact fee component for the fair market value of
appropriate dedications of land, improvements or new construction of system improvements provided by the developer.
In the event that the amount of the “credit” is calculated to be greater than the amount of the impact fee due, the
developer may apply the excess “credit” toward future impact assessment on other developments within the same service
district. As of December 31, 2013, the amount of credits that may be applied against future impact fees is $11,515,979.
This is recorded as a governmental activity in the Government-wide Financial Statements.
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3. CHANGES IN LONG TERM LIABILITIES:

The following is a summary of long-term debt changes of the City for the year (in thousands):

Ending
Balance Due Within
Governmental activities 1/1/13 Reductions 12/31/13 One Year
Bonds payable:
General obligation bonds $ 100,725 $ - $ 7,246 $ 93479 $ 7,550
Less deferred amounts
For issuance premiums 3,754 - 413 3,341 413
For issuance discounts (19) - (3) # (16) ©)]
On refunding (2,476) - (333) (2,143) (333)
Total bonds payable 101,984 - 7,323 94,661 7,627
Special assessment debt with governmental
commitment 9 - 3 6 3
Government loans 5,554 1,496 117 6,933 116
Claims and judgements (see Note V.D for details) 2,984 2,944 2,774 3,154 1,455
Net OPEB Obligation (See Note V.G for details) 4,817 2,750 1,576 5,991 -
Compensated absences 8,155 5,699 6,524 7,330 5,876
Impact Fee Credit 11,938 1,078 1,500 11,516 1,440
Governmental activity long term liabilities $ 135,441 $ 13,967 $ 19,817 $ 129,591 $ 16,517
Business-type activities
Bonds payable
General obligation bonds $ 13375 $ - 8 1,029 $ 12,346 $ 1,080
Revenue bonds 61,140 - 11,150 49,990 9,095
Less deferred amounts
3,244 - 556 2,688 563
On refunding (3,053) - (513) (2,540) (513)
Total bonds payable 74,706 - 12,222 62,484 10,225
Government loans 356 25 39 342 84
Environmental remediation (See Note V.H for details) 420 21 21 420 21
Compensated absences 1,852 1,732 1,482 2,102 1,682
Business-type activity long term liabilities $ 77,334 $ 1,778 $ 13,764 $ 65348 $ 12,012

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for them are
included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. At year-end $393,097 of internal service funds
compensated absences are included in the above amounts. For the governmental activities, claims and judgments and
compensated absences are generally liquidated by operating funds, such as the General Fund, Consolidated Fire and the
Street funds. The General Fund provides funding for the payment of benefits related to OPEB,
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4. COMPONENT UNIT DEBT:

In 2003, the Downtown Redevelopment Authority (DRA), a component unit of the City, issued bonds in which it pledged
come derived from the acquired or constructed assets to pay debt service. The revenue bonds were authorized by
resolution adopted by the DRA Board, and financed from operating revenues. The revenue bonds were issued to finance
construction of the Conference Center and Hotel capital project. In June 2013, the remaining outstanding balance of
$63,105,000 of the 2003 DRA Revenue bonds were refunded by issuing two series of revenue refunding bonds.

$41,185,000 DRA Conference Center Project Refunding Revenue Bonds were authorized by Resolution No. 2013-05-14-
1 by the DRA Board. The Project Revenue Bonds are payable primarily from Project Revenues received by the Authority.
In addition, the City has agreed pursuant to the Amended and Restated Payment Agreement, dated June 1, 2013,
between the City and the Authority to make payments to the Trustee from any available funds if and to the extent
necessary to pay debt service on the 2013 Project Revenue Bonds. The 2013 Amended and Restated Payment
Agreement provides that if on the 10" business day prior to each interest payment date or principal payment date, if there
is not sufficient money on deposit with the Trustee in the Project Revenue Bonds Debt Service Account as required by the
Indenture, the City shall pay to the Trustee, in immediately available funds, on or prior to the 5" business day prior to the
debt service date, the amount of any such deficiency; provided that the aggregate amount of such payments by the City to
the Trustee in any calendar year shall not exceed the amount with to respect to such calendar year listed in Note V.B.1.
The continent payment amounts equal the annual debt service payments on the Project Revenue Bonds. Any payment
by the City of the Conditional Payment Amount to pay interest and/or principal on the 2013 Project Revenue Bonds wi
constitute a loan by the City to the Authority, with interest payable on such amounts at the rate or rates on such 2013
Project Revenue Bonds and the City shall have full rights of subrogation.

The City shall take such action as may be necessary under the Amended and Restated Payment Agreement to include al
payments due in its operating budget for each fiscal year commencing on and after the date of execution, and to make all
appropriations for such payments at such time and in such manner and amounts as may be necessary in order to make
all debt service payments when due.

In addition, $18,045,000 of DRA Conference Center Project Sales and Lodging Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds were
issued in June 2013. These bonds were authorized by Resolution No. 2013-05-14-1 by the DRA Board. The Tax
Revenue Bonds are payable primarily from 1) certain proceeds of spe

proceeds of a special lodging tax levied by the City (the “Lodging Tax Revenues”); and 3) certain amounts of certain funds
and accounts established under the Indenture. The Sales Taxes imposed by the City PFD will expire March 2026 and the
Sales Tax imposed by the County PFD will expire March 2028. Lodging Tax Revenues will continue to be pledged for
payment of principal and interest on the Tax Revenue Bonds until the final maturity of this bond series.

In connection with the issuance of the 2013 Revenue Refunding Bonds, the DRA Conference Center Project Subordinate
Revenue Bonds, Series 2003B, were outstanding in the amount of $2,420,000 which included accreted interest only, but
excluded accrued and unpaid current interest. On June 27, 2013, the DRA purchased and the subordinate bondholder
sold the Series 2003B bonds for a purchase price of $450,000. On July 30, 2013, the DRA cancelled the 2003B bonds
and this series is no longer outstanding.

DRA Revenue Refun

g bonds outstanding at year-end are as follows:

Outstanding DRA Revenue Bond Debt

Original Debt in Issuance Maturity Debt
Name of Issuance $1,000 Date Date Interest Rate Outstandin:
2003 DRA Conference Center Project
Senior Revenue Bonds (Series 2003A) $ 65,855  12/30/2003 1/1/2033 TIC 5.642% $ -
2003 DRA Subordinate Revenue Bonds
(Series 2003B) $ 2,420 12/30/2003 1/1/2034 9% $ -
2013 DRA Conference Center Project
Refunding Revenue Bonds $ 41,185 6/27/2013 1/1/2044 4.38% $ 41,185

2013 DRA Conterence Center Project

Sales & Lodging Tax Refunding

Revenue Bonds $ 18,045 6/27/2013 1/1/2034 4.05% $ 18,045
Total Revenue Bonds $ 127,505 $ 59,230

At the end of 2012, the DRA had $63,855,000 outstanding in revenue bonds. $750,000 was paid on 1/1/2013 for the
annual p pal payment, and the remaining balance of $63,105,000 was refunded on 6/27/2013. The following table
describes the sources and uses associated with the refunding.
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2013 DRA Revenue Refund Bonds
Sources and Uses

Sources

Par Value (Project Bonds) $ 41,185,000
Par Value (Tax Revenue Bonds) 18,045,000
Plus: Net O al Issue Premium (Project Bonds) 25,808
Plus: Net Original Issue Premium (Tax Revenue Bonds) 583,387
ACA Contribution (Note payable to ACA) 4,000,000
Senior Debt Service Reserve Account (from 2003A Series) 4,070,000
Debt Service Fund (from 2003A Series) 150,000
Total Sources $ 68,059,195
Uses

Distribution to Trustee to refund the 2003A Series bonds $ 66,542,643
Underwriter Discount 726,160
Distribution to Trustee to pay the cost of 790,392

Total Uses $ 68,059,195

In order to make the 2013 refunding economically viable, ACA contributed $4,000,000 to the Authority, $1,430,554.61 of
which is in consideration of the execution of a Note issued by the Authority to ACA, and the balance of which is in
consideration for the elimination of any exposure ACA may have in respect to the Series 2003A Bonds. This Note is
subordinate to the Project Revenue and Tax Revenue Bonds. There is a note associated with this contribution.
Depending on the cash flows of the project, payments may start on 1/1/2033. In addition to the ACA contribution, cash on
hand from the Senior Debt Service Reserve account, and the Debt Service Fund available for the 2003A Series debt
service was contributed to this refinancing to reduce the overall amount of debt that had to be issued. The following
summary reflects the economic benefit of the refunding:

DRA Conference Center Bonds
Comparison of Debt Service

2013 Debt Service
Date 2003A Debt Service  (Both Series Combined) Savings
Total $ 113,749,962.50 $ 104,225,838.05 $ 9,524,124.45

Average coupon of refunded bonds 5.565288%
True interest cost on refunding bonds 4.423906%
Net PV Savings $7,574,223.00

Percentage savings of refunded bonds 12.002572%

Under an Interlocal agreement with the Clark County PFD, DRA is liable to the Clark County PFD for state sales credit
agreement are received by Clark County PFD monthly and forwarded
to the DRA. This creates a liability for the DRA to repay these funds via two methods. The first is a predetermined tax
cap in the 2003A Bond Indenture, which is carried forward to the 2013 Bond Indenture. The tax cap amount changes
each year through 2034, for Clark County PFD, Vancouver PFD, and City of Vancouver lodging taxes, so that the funds in
excess of the tax cap are returned to the Clark County PFD. The second method occurs after funds flow through the
2003A (replaced by the 2013 Bond Indenture) distribution requirements. The monies available in the end are split equally
between the Authority and the Clark County PFD, and any amounts so distributed to the Clark County PFD will decrease
the DRA liability to Clark County PFD after each payment.

DRA 2013 Project Revenue Bonds and the DRA 2013 Tax Revenue Bond debt service requirements to maturity are as
follows:

2013 Project Revenue Refunding Bonds

2013 Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds

Total Total
Principal Interest Requirements Principal Interest Requirements
2014 $ - $ 1,817,232 $ 1,817,232 $ - $ 806,462 $ 806,462
2015 - 1,797,263 1,797,263 - 797,600 797,600
2016 170,000 1,794,713 1,964,713 730,000 786,650 1,516,650
2017 290,000 1,787,813 2,077,813 795,000 763,775 1,558,775
2018 360,000 1,778,063 2,138,063 860,000 730,350 1,590,350
2019-2023 4,535,000 8,456,688 12,991,688 5,680,000 2,883,500 8,563,500
2024-2028 5,900,000 7,190,813 13,090,813 6,915,000 1,380,950 8,295,950
2029-2033 7,315,000 5,770,725 13,085,725 2,500,000 438,700 2,938,700
2034-2038 8,960,000 4,078,131 13,038,131 565,000 13,675 578,675
2039-2043 11,120,000 1,865,700 12,985,700 - - -
2044 2,535,000 57,038 2,592,038 - - -
$ 41,185,000 $ 36,394,179 $ 77,579,179 $ 18,045,000 $ 8,601,662 $ 26,646,662

The subordinate note to ACA, as described above, debt service requirements to maturity are estimated as follows:

Other long-term loans and notes payable

Total
Principal Interest Requirements
2014 $ - $ - 8 -
2015 - - -
2016 - - -
2017 - - -
2018 - - -
2019-2023 - - -
2024-2028 - - -
2029-2033 21,055 18,158 39,213
2034-2038 370,772 372,135 742,907
2039-2043 812,798 997,628 1,810,426
2044 225,929 304,686 530,615
$ 1,430,554 $ 1,692,607 $ 3,123,161
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Component Units Changes in Long Term Liabilities

The following is a summary of long-term debt changes of the authority for the year (in thousands):

Restated,
Beginning Ending
Balance Balance Due Within
1/1/13 Additions Reductions 12/31/13 One Year
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds $ 66,275 $ 59,230 $ 66,275 $ 59,230 $ -
Less deferred amounts
For issuance premiums (discounts) 325 609 339 595 29
On refunding - (1,426) 35) (1,391) (70)
Due to other governments 5,515 1,107 356 6,266 -
Total bonds payable 72,115 59,520 66,935 64,700 (41)
Other long-term loans and notes 0 1,431 - 1,431 -
Subordinate bond interest 871 106 977 - -
Subordinate management fee (see note
V.B.3 for more detail) 922 156 54 1,024 -
Component units long term liabilities $ 73,908 $ 61,213 $ 67,966 $ 67,155 $ (41)

The beginning balance of the amounts Due to other governments has been restated by $195,799 due to the timing of
recognizing the obligation.

F. FUND BALANCE REPORTING

The City of Vancouver implemented GASB Statement no 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund
Type Definitions. The objective of this statement is to improve the usefulness and understandability of governmental fund
balance information. It provides more clearly defined categories to make the nature and extent of constraints placed on a
government’s fund balance more transparent. It also clarifies the existing fund type definitions to improve the
comparability of governmental fund financial statements and help users better understand the purpose for which
governments have chosen to use particular funds for financial reporting.

Categories of fund balance:

Non-spendable — Amounts that cannot be spent either due to the physical form or as a result of a legal or contractual
obligation (such as the corpus of an endowment fund).

Restricted — Amounts constrained due to specific purposes by either a third party (such as grantors, bondholders, and
creditors) or by law through constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

Committed- Amounts constrained to specific purposes by formal action (adoption of an ordinance) by the government's
highest level of decision-making authority (City Council). Committed amounts do not lapse nor can they be used for any
other purpose unless the government takes the same level of action (adoption of another ordinance) to remove it.

Assigned- Amounts constrained by the City’s expressed intent to use the resources for specific purposes.  With the
exception of the General Fund, this is the residual fund balance of all governmental funds with positive fund balance.

Unassigned — Amounts that are residual classification for the General Fund only.

Fund balances by classification for the year ended December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Non-major Total
General Consolidated Transportation ~ Governmental  Governmental
Fund Balance Classifications: Fund Fire Fund Capital Funds Funds
Nonspendable
Long Term Notes Receivable $ -8 -8 97,393 $ 5,127,661 $ 5,225,054
Inventory/Prepai - - - 7192 7192
Capital assets held for resale 228,400 - - 5,529,135 5,757,535
228,400 - 97,393 10,663,988 10,989,781
Restricted
Grants received in advance 241,331 - - - 241,331
Capital purposes - - 2,203,474 23,291,605 25,495,079
Economic development - - - 1,280,106 1,280,106
Security - 13,773,263 - 1,520,941 15,294,204
Debt Service - - - 5,288 5,288
Culture and recreation - - - 28,006 28,006
241,331 13,773,263 2,203 474 26,125,946 42,344,014
Committed
Capital purposes 882,780 - 851,105 1,596,071 3,329,956
Emergency reserves 10,101,499 - - - 10,101,499
Revenue Stablization 3,226,255 - - - 3,226,255
Working capital 26,885,459 - - - 26,885,459
Economic development - - - 708,184 708,184
Cemetary - - - 418,312 418,312
Transportation Operations - - - 7,175,367 7,175,367
41,095,993 - 851,105 9,897,934 51,845,032
Assigned
Grants 255,000 - - - 255,000
Capital purposes - - - 267,393 267,393
Economic development - - - 2,870,838 2,870,838
Compensated absences 3,893,166 - - - 3,893,166
4,148,166 - - 3,138,231 7,286,397
Unassigned 13,042,935 - - - 13,042,935
Total $ 58501825 $ 13773263 $ 3,151,972 $ 49,826,099 $ 125,508,159

There are two stabilization arrangements within the City, for which the City is disclosing as committed fund balance within
the General Fund: Emergency Reserves and Revenue Stabilization. These reserves were committed by Council
Resolution M-3370 and adopted on May 7, 2012.

An Emergency Reserve will be maintained in the General Fund equal to 7% of actual external revenues in the preceding
fiscal year in the General Fund, Street and Consolidated Fire Funds. The Emergency Reserve is for unexpected, large-
scale events where damage in excess of $1 million is incurred, and immediate, remedial action must be taken to protect
the health and safety of residents (e.g. major flood, earthquake, etc.). In the event these “Emergency Reserve” funds are
utilized, the City shall restore the reserve to the full 7% level within a reasonable amount of time as necessitated by the
scale of emergency. A clear plan will be developed to refill the reserve and the first significant deposit will occur the
following fiscal year after the event.

The City maintains a “Revenue Stabilization” reserve with a goal of reaching 2.5% of the current year's budget in the
General fund. This reserve may be used to provide funding to temporarily offset unanticipated fluctuations in on-going
revenues or unanticipated events, such as unexpected external mandates, reductions in state shared revenues, etc. The
reserve funds will provide time for the City to restructure its operations in a deliberate manner to ensure continuance of
shall be restored within the following two years. This reserve could be
d 3-6 month trend of reduced revenues.
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NOTE V. OTHER DISCLOSURES

A. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In December 2003, the Downtown Redevelopment Authority, a component unit of the y of Vancouver, began
construction of a Convention Center and Hotel in downtown Vancouver. The project was funded by proceeds from the
sale of tax exempt bonds issued by the Vancouver Downtown Redevelopment Authority. The bonds were secured by
project revenues, together with a credit from the State of Washington equal to 0.033% of 1% of the sales and use tax
collected within the City and Clark County, and a dedication of 50% of the lodging taxes collected within the City. During
2013, the City has recognized $786,937 in expenditures associated with lodging tax revenues dedicated to the project.

B. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Litigation

The City is contingently liable with respect to lawsuits and other claims incidental to the ordinary course of its operations.
It is the opinion of City management and the City Attorney that any losses which may ultimately be incurred as a result of
the suits and claims will not be material.

Grants

The City participates in a number of federal- and state-assisted programs. These grants are subject to audit by the
grantors or their representatives. Such audits could result in requests for reimbursement to grantor agencies for
expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grants. City management believes that such disallowances, if any, will be
immaterial.

Contract Commitments

The City has active contracts for professional services and construction projects as of December 31, 2013. The
professional services contracts are primarily for operations of a sewer treatment facility, architectural, engineering and
technology contracts. These construction projects include large transportation and infrastructure projects and facility
projects.  Significant City commitments to contracts as of fiscal year end totals $34,419,867.

1. Commitment to Downtown Redevelopment Authority (DRA), with respect to the Vancouver Conference Center

The City signed an agreement on December 1, 2003, to participate in the construction and operation of the Vancouver
Conference Center, using tourism funds.

In June 2013, the DRA refinanced the debt associated with the construction of the Vancouver Conference Center (this is
further discussed in Note IV.F). As a part of the refinancing, the City agreed that, if, prior to each Interest Payment Date
or Principal Payment Date, the amounts on deposit with the Trustee in the Project Revenue Bonds Debt Service Account
and in the Authority Reserve Account are insufficient to pay the principal and interest due on the 2013 Project Revenue
Bonds, upon notice of such deficiency from the Trustee, the City shall pay to the Trustee an amount equal to the
deficiency; the maximum obligation on that payment date being the debt service amount of the 2013 Project Revenue
Bonds due on such date, as described in Note IV.E.

Any payment by the City of this conditional payment amount shall constitute a loan by the City to the DRA, with interest
payable on such amounts at the rate or rates on the 2013 Project Revenue bonds.

In 2013, the City made no payments under its contingent payment obligation. The city has no current expectation of
having to make any such payments, as it expects project revenues and tax revenues to be su nt for such purposes.

2. Commitment to Clark County, with respect to the Exhibition Hall

The City signed an interlocal agreement on September 14, 2004, for support of the Exhibition Hall. This hall is considered
a tourism related facility which would benefit both the County and City. Beginning in 2005, the City pledges it will pay an
amount of money (up to certain maximum amounts) which would be necessary to enable the County to meet its semi-
annual debt service obligation, should they fall short from revenues dedicated for this purpose. For 2012-2016, the
maximum amount is $200,000, and from 2017 through termination, the maximum is $150,000.

However, since the County reduced the rental rates for the Exhibition Hall to such an extent in July of 2008, this
commitment no longer applies, per terms of the interlocal agreement.

To date, no such payments have been made against this agreement since the dedicated revenues have been adequate to
cover the debt service. This agreement will be terminated once the bonds issued to finance the Ex| ion Hall have been
redeemed or defeased, no later than 2027.

3. Commitment to Hilton Hotel, with respect to the Subordinate and Supersubordinate Management Fees

The DRA signed an agreement on December 1, 2003, for the operation of the Vancouver Conference Center. In that
agreement, during the fourth full year of operation, which was 2009, the Manager of the Vancouver Conference Center
(Hilton Hotels) would earn a subordinate management fee for its services. These fees would be paid subject to the
availability of amounts in the Subordinate Management Fee Fund. Also, during the sixth full year of operation, the
Manager would earn a super-subordinate management fee for its services. These fees would be paid subject to the
availability of amounts in the Super-subordinate Management Fee Fund. Hotel operating results prior to the DRA debt
refinancing completed in June 2013, were not sufficient to funds these fees.

As part of the refinancing of the DRA debt in June 2013, a new agreement was signed with the Manager of the Vancouver
Conference Center (Hilton Hotels) that provides for forgiveness of the above fee amounts over a 10-year period, on a
straight-line basis. The forgiveness of these fees is recorded as a Special Item, Forgiveness of Debt on the Statement of
Activities. At December 31, 2013, $53,906 had been forgiven. The outstanding obligation recorded on the Statement of
Net Position as of December 31, 2013, is $1,024,222.

4. Commitment to the IRS, with respect to Aribitrage

Rebatable arbitrage is defined by the Internal Revenue Service Code Section 148 as earnings on investments purchased
from the gross proceeds of a bond issue that are in excess of the amount that would have been earned if the investments
were invested at a yield equal to the yield on the bond issue. The rebatable arbitrage must be paid to the federal
government. The City of Vancouver carefully monitors its investments to restrict earnings to a yield less than the bond
issue, and therefore limit any arbitrage liability. As of December 31, 2013, the City has no arbitrage rebate liability.

C. JOINT VENTURES AND JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS

Joint Ventures

The City is involved in a joint operation with other governmental entities in the establishment and operation of the Clark
Regional Emergency Services Agency. Control of the entity is shared equitably by the controlling organizations. For
reporting purposes, this entity is shown as a governmental activities joint venture. The City's share of ownership is
reported as “Investment in joint venture” in the government-wide statement of net position. Control in this entity, by
participating governmental entities, is by board representation.

Clark Regional Emergency Services Agency

Clark Regional Emergency Services Agency (the Agency) was created under the Interlocal Cooperation Act (RCW 39.4)
by agreement between the City and other governmental units and political districts. Its purpose is to provide a
consolidated public safety communications service to participating cities, political districts, and Clark County. The City
has a 40% interest in the equity and operations of the Agency. Given the timing of available information, the City is
reporting its investment in the joint venture at the 2012 values. In 2012, the Agency had an increase in net position
totaling $3,730,717. The City's share of 2012 operations was a gain of $1,548,719 over 2012 balances for a total equity
terest of $3,557,978 at the end of 2012. Current liabilites are comprised of amounts owed to vendors, other
governments, and accrued employee leave liabilities. The entity's long-term debt consists mainly of deferred
compensation and accrued liabilities. The entity’s long-term debt is unsecured. Clark County maintains the accounting

Council for the Homeless

The City, Clark County, and the Vancouver Housing Authority entered into an Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (RCW
39.4) on December 20, 1989, for the establishment of the Council for the Homeless (Council) as a collaborative effort to
address issues of homelessness. Each jurisdiction appoints one board member. The remaining 12 members of the
Council are selected by the Council's bylaws. Clark County and Vancouver Housing Authority provides annual fiscal
support for operations where the City does not; funding, if provided by the City, comes in the form of Council applying for
competitive grants as a subrecipient of the City. For the year ending December 31, 2013, the City made subrecipient
grant payments to the Council totaling $52,000. The relationship between the City and the Council does not create an
ongoing financial interest or financial responsi
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D. RISK MANAGEMENT

During 1977, the City became a qualified self-insurer for workers’ compensation as an alternative to the state program. In
1978, all local governments within Washington State were brought under the state unemployment tax coverage, which
also allowed qualified cities to become self-insured. The City qualified and became self-insured for unemployment in
1978. The City established a Self-Insurance Internal Service fund to account for and finance its insured and uninsured
risks of loss. The fund addresses claims in four areas of risk that include general liability, workers’ compensation,
unemployment, and property. Commercial insurance is purchased to handle risk of loss. In the past three years, no
settlement has exceeded the City’s insurance limits.

The self-insurance cost for liability claims and claims administration through December 31, 2013, is $539,460 with 82 new
claims filed for 2013. The fund pays the majority of claims involving general liability, but has other liability coverage
through specific policies. Currently, specific policies include airpark liability at an annual cost of $4,691. Coverage totals
$5,000,000 for liability and $5,000,000 for hangar keepers legal. In addition, the City purchases excess liability insurance
for all y operations including auto, for a of $10,000,000 plus $10,000,000 excess at an annual cost of
$301,518. The excess policy provides $1,000,000 for self-insured retention. The City also purchases liability on specific
vehicles up to $1,000,000 at an annual cost of $9,293 and inland marine coverage for the equipment fleet at an annual
cost of $49,954. The deductible for fleet physical damage is 5% subject to $10,000 minimum.

Property claim costs in 2013 were $97,441, with 36 new first party property and vehicle claims reported in 2013. The City
carries fire damage insurance (buildings and business personal property), earth movement, equipment breakdown,
valuable papers, computer virus, accounts receivable and flood insurance coverage at an annual cost of $383,651 for all
City buildings and contents. Policy coverage for property damage is up to $400 million with adjustable deductibles based
on specific event types. This represents replacement cost for City buildings and contents.

Worker's compensation

The cost for Workers' Compensation claims and claims administration was $2,137,502 in 2013, with 101 new claims
processed. Reportable claims costs for 2013 are $336,387 with 27 open claims. The City is self-insured through the fund
for workers’ compensation; however, an excess coverage policy is carried at an annual premium cost of $85,094. The
policy has a $750,000 deductible.

Contributions and reserves

City fund contributions to the Self-Insurance Fund are determined using information from the contributing funds past
claims experience and loss exposures. The claims liability reported in the fund totaled $3,153,529 at December 31, 2013.

y, as reported in the fund, is based on the requirements of GASB Statement 10, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, which requires that a liability for claims be reported
if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred
at the date of the financial statements and that the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The following was
prepared based on an actuarial analysis by Bickmore dated April 3, 2013. These are actuarial estimated amounts
reflecting expected losses; actual losses may vary slightly. Changes in the fund’s claims liability amount in 2013, 2012,
and 2011 are as follows:

Beginning of Fiscal Current Year Claims and Claim Balance at Fiscal
Year Year Liability Changes in Estimates Payments Year End
2013 $ 2,983,490 $ 2,944,442 $ 2,774,403 $ 3,153,529
2012 5,069,318 228,678 2,314,506 2,983,490
2011 4,777,835 2,773,416 2,481,933 5,069,318

E. PROPERTY TAXES

The Clark County Treasurer acts as an agent to collect property taxes levied in the County for the City and all other taxing
authorities. (See Note I: D.2 receivables and p. for additional discussions).

Property Tax Calendar

January 1 Taxes are levied and become an enforceable lien against properties.

February 14 Tax bills are mailed.

April 30 First of two equal installment payments is due.

May 31 Assessed value of property established for next year's levy at 100 percent of market value.
October 31 Second installment is due.

Cities are permitted to levy up to $3.60 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for general governmental services and $0.225
per $1,000 for local Fire Pension Funds. However, a separate library district was formed in 1981 for the tax year 1982,
and this district annexed the City thus reducing the City's levy rate by $.50 per $1,000 of assessed valuation to
$3.10/$1,000. Because the City has a local Fire and Police Pension Funds, the City is able to add $0.225 to the levy rate
per $1,000 of assessed valuation which makes the City'’s maximum levy rate at $3.325/$1,000. This amount may be
reduced for any of the following reasons:

. The Washington State Constitution limits the total regular property taxes to one percent of assessed valuation or $10
per $1,000 of value, except for port districts and public utility districts. Within the one percent limitation, RCW
84.52.043(2) imposes an aggregate limitation on regular levies by taxing districts, other than the State, of
$5.90/$1,000 of assessed value, except for levies for any port or public utility district; excess levies authorized in
Article VII, Section 2 of the State Constitution; and certain levies for acquiring conservation futures, for emergency
medical services or care, and to finance affordable housing.

e The regular property tax increase limitation (chapter 84.55 RCW), as amended most recently by Initiative No. 747
(which was passed by voters in 2001), limits the total dollar amount of regular property taxes levied by an individual
local taxing district such as the City to the amount of such taxes levied in the highest of the three most recent years
multiplied by a limit factor, plus an adjustment to account for taxes on new construction, annexations, improvements
and State-assessed property at the previous year's rate. The limit factor is the lesser of 101 percent of the highest
levy in the three previous years (excluding new construction, improvements, and State-assessed property) or 100
percent plus inflation, unless a greater amount is approved by a simple majority of the voters. With a supermajority

t factor is a flat 101 percent. On November 8, 2007, the Washington Supreme Court

al. On November 29, 2007, the Legislature approved a reinstating the 101

percent property tax limit factor approved by the voters under Initiative 747.

e The City may voluntarily levy taxes below the legal limit.

Special levies approved by the voters are not subject to the above limitations.

For 2013, the City's regular tax levy was $3.172 per $1,000 on a total taxable 2013 assessed valuation of
$13,222,265,791 for a total regular levy of $41,943,790.

Outstanding property taxes at December 31, 2013 amount to $1,120,733. The City does not establish an allowance for
doubtful accounts since state law has authorized sales of taxed property to satisfy delinquent property taxes.

In February 2013, the city annexed Glenwood Hills, which added $177,532 in property tax revenue for the Street and the
e fund. Of this $175,655 was collected, and $103,416 was distributed to the Street fund and $72,239 was distributed to
the Fire fund.

All property taxes are received into the General, Fire and Street funds. Transfers are then made into the general
obligation debt service funds as required by the bond ordinances. Any shortages due to delinquent property taxes are
absorbed by the General Fund.

F. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS

Substantially all city full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the following statewide retirement
systems administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems, under cost-sharing multiple-employer
public employee defined benefit retirement plans. The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the
primary government of the State of Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR)
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for each plan. The DRS CAFR may be
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obtained by writing to: Department of Retirement Systems, Communications Unit, P.O. Box 48380, Olympia, WA 98504-
8380; or it may be downloaded from the DRS website at www.drs.wa.gov. The following disclosures are made pursuant to
GASB Statements 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Government Employers and 50, Pension Disclosures,
an Amendment of GASB Statements 25 and 27.

1 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS) Plans 1, 2, and 3

Plan Description

The Legislature established PERS in 1947. Membership in the system includes: elected officials; state employees;
employees of the Supreme, Appeals, and Superior courts; employees of legislative committees; employees of district and
municipal courts; and employees of local governments. Membership also includes higher education employees not
participating in higher education retirement programs. Approximately 49 percent of PERS salaries are accounted for by
state employment. PERS retirement benefit provisions are established in Chapters 41.34 and 41.40 RCW and may be
amended only by the State Legislature.

PERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three separate plans for membership purposes:
Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans and Plan 3 is a defined benefit plan with a defined contribution component.

PERS members who joined the system by September 30, 1977 are Plan 1 members. Those who joined on or after
October 1, 1977 and by either, February 28, 2002 for state and higher education employees, or August 31, 2002 for local
government employees, are Plan 2 members unless they exercised an option to transfer their membership to Plan 3.
PERS members joining the system on or after March 1, 2002 for state and higher education employees, or September 1,
2002 for local government employees have the irrevocable option of choosing membership in either PERS Plan 2 or Plan
3. The option must be exercised within 90 days of employment. Employees who fail to choose within 90 days default to
Plan 3.

PERS is comprised of and reported as three separate plans for accounting purposes: Plan 1, Plan 2/3, and Plan 3. Plan 1
accounts for the defined benefits of Plan 1 members. Plan 2/3 accounts for the defined benefits of Plan 2 members, and
the defined benefit portion of benefits for Plan 3 members. Plan 3accounts for the defined contribution portion of benefits
for Plan 3 members. Although members can only be a member of either Plan 2 or Plan 3, the defined benefit portions of
Plan 2 and Plan 3 are accounted for in the same pension trust fund. All assets of this Plan 2/3 may legally be used to pay
the defined benefits of any of the Plan 2 or Plan 3 members or bene es, as defined by the terms of the plan.
Therefore, Plan 2/3 is considered to be a single plan for accounting purposes.

PERS Plan 1 and Plan 2 retirement benefits are financed from a combination of investment earnings and employer and
employee contributions. Employee contributions to the PERS Plan 1 and Plan 2 defined benefit plans accrue interest at a
rate specified by the Director of DRS. During DRS’ Fiscal Year 2013, the rate was five and one-half percent compounded
quarterly. Members in PERS Plan 1 and Plan 2 can elect to withdraw total employee contributions and interest thereon, in
lieu of any retirement benefit, upon separation from PERS-covered employment.

PERS Plan 1 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service.

PERS Plan 1 members are eligible for retirement from active status at any age with at least 30 years of service, at age 55
with 25 years of service, or at age 60 with at least 5 years of service. Plan 1 members retiring from inactive status prior to
the age of 65 may receive actuarially reduced benefits.

The monthly benefit is 2 percent of the average final compensation (AFC) per year of service, but the benefit may not
exceed 60 percent of the AFC. The AFC is the monthly average of the 24 consecutive highest-paid service credit months.

PERS Plan 1 retirement benefits are actuari

ly reduced to reflect the choice, if made, of a survivor option.

Plan 1 members may elect to receive an optional COLA that provides an automatic annual adjustment based on the
Consumer Price Index. The adjustment is capped at 3 percent annually. To offset the cost of this annual adjustment, the
benefit is reduced.

PERS Plan 1 provides duty and non-duty disability benefits. Duty disability retirement benefits for disablement prior to the
age of 60 consist of a temporary life annuity. The benefit amount is $350 a month, or two-thirds of the monthly AFC,
whichever is less. The benefit is reduced by any workers’ compensation benefit and is payable as long as the member
remains disabled or until the member attains the age of 60, at which time the benefit is converted to the member’s service
retirement amount.

A member with five years of covered employment is eligible for non-duty disability retirement. Prior to the age of 55, the
benefit amount is 2 percent of the AFC for each year of service reduced by 2 percent for each year that the member's age
is less than 55. The total benefit is limited to 60 percent of the AFC and is actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a
survivor option. Plan 1 members may elect to receive an optional COLA amount (based on the Consumer Price Index),
capped at 3 percent annually. To offset the cost of this annual adjustment, the benefit is reduced.
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PERS Plan 2 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. Plan 2 members are eligible for
normal retirement at the age of 65 with five years of service. The monthly bene 2 percent of the AFC per year of
service. The AFC is the monthly average of the 60 consecutive highest paid service months. There is no cap on years of
service credit; and a cost-of-living allowance is granted (based on the Consumer Price Index), capped at 3 percent
annually.

PERS Plan 2 members who have at least 20 years of service credit, and are 55 years of age or older, are eligible for early
retirement with a reduced benefit. The benefit is reduced by an early retirement factor (ERF) that varies according to age,
for each year before age 65.

PERS Plan 2 members who have 30 or more years of service credit and are at least 55 years old can retire under one of
two provisions, if hired prior to May 1, 2013:
*  With a benefit that is reduced by 3 percent for each year before age 65; or
e With a benefit that has a smaller (or no) reduction (depending on age) that imposes stricter return-to- work
rules.

PERS Plan 2 members hired on or after May 1, 2013 have the option to retire early by accepting a reduction of 5 percent
for each year of retirement before age 65. This option is available only to those who are age 55 or older and have at least
30 years of service.

PERS Plan 2 retirement benefits are actuarially reduced to reflect the choice, if made, of a survivor option.

PERS Plan 3 has a dual benefit structure. Employer contributions finance a defined benefit component and member
contributions finance a defined contribution component. As established by Chapter 41.34 RCW, employee contribution
rates to the defined contribution component range from 5 percent to 15 percent of salaries, based on member choice.
Members who do not choose a contribution rate default to a 5 percent rate. There are currently no requirements for
employer contributions to the defined contribution component of PERS Plan 3.

PERS Plan 3 defined contribution retirement benefits are dependent upon the results of investment activities. Members
may elect to self-direct the investment of their contributions. Any expenses incurred in conjunction with self-directed
nvestments are paid by members. Absent a member's self-direction, PERS Plan 3 contributions are invested in the
Retirement Strategy Fund that assumes the member will retire at age 65.

For DRS’ Fiscal Year 2013, PERS Plan 3 employee contributions were $99.0 million, and plan refunds paid out were
$69.4 million.

The defined benefit portion of PERS Plan 3 provides members a monthly benefit that is 1 percent of the AFC per year of
service. The AFC is the monthly average of the 60 consecutive highest-paid service months. There is no cap on years of
service credit, and Plan 3 provides the same cost-of-living allowance as Plan 2.

Effective June 7, 2006, PERS Plan 3 members are vested in the defined benefit portion of their plan after ten years of
service; or after five years of service, if twelve months of that service are earned after age 44; or after five service credit
years earned in PERS Plan 2 by June 1, 2003. Plan 3 members are immediately vested in the defined contribution portion
of their plan.

Vested Plan 3 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 65, or they may retire early with the following conditions
and benefits:
. If they have at least ten service credit years and are 55 years old, the benefit is reduced by an ERF that varies

with age, for each year before age 65.

« If they have 30 service credit years and are at least 55 years old, and were hired before May 1, 2013, they have
the choice of a benefit that is reduced by 3 percent for each year before age 65; or a benefit with a smaller (or
no) reduction factor (depending on age) that imposes stricter return-to-work rules.

« If they have 30 service credit years, are at least 55 years old, and were hired after May 1, 2013, they have the
option to retire early by accepting a reduction of 5 percent for each year before age 65.

PERS Plan 3 benefits are actuarially reduced to reflect the choice, if made, of a survivor option.

PERS Plan 2 and Plan 3 provide disability benefits. There is no minimum amount of service credit required for eligibility.
The Plan 2 monthly benefit amount is 2 percent of the AFC per year of service. For Plan 3, the monthly benefit amount is
1 percent of the AFC per year of service. These disability benefit amounts are actuarially reduced for each year that the
member’s age is less than 65, and to reflect the choice of a survivor option. There is no cap on years of service credit, and
a cost-of-living allowance is granted (based on the Consumer Price Index) capped at 3 percent annually.

PERS members meeting specific eligibility requirements have options available to enhance their retirement benefits.
Some of these options are available to their survivors.

A one-time duty-related death benefit is provided to the beneficiary or the estate of a PERS member who dies as a result
of injuries sustained in the course of employment, or if the death resulted from an occupational disease or infection that
arose naturally and proximately out of the member’s covered employment, if found eligible by the Department of Labor
and Industries.
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There are 1,176 participating employers in PERS. Membership in PERS consisted of the following as of the latest
actuarial valuation date for the plans of June 30, 2012:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits 82,242
Am::_:wﬁa Plan Members Entitled to But Not Yet Receiving Benefits 30,515
Active Plan Members Vested 106,317
Active Plan Members Non-vested 44,273

Total 263,347

Funding Policy

Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts PERS Plan 1 employer contribution rates, PERS Plan 2
employer and mBu_c<mm contribution rates, and PERS Plan 3 employer contribution rates.

2 and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. Under PERS Plan 3, employer contributions finance the defined benefit portion
of the plan and member contributions finance the defined contribution portion. The Plan 3 employee contribution rates
range from 5 percent to 15 percent.

The methods used to determine the contribuf
Chapters 41.40 and 41.45 RCW.

n requirements are established under state statute in accordance with

The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of current-year covered payrolls, as of December 31, 2012,
were as follows:

PERSPlan1l PERSPlan2 PERSPlan3

Employer* 9.21%** 9.21%** 9.21%*+*
Employee 6.00%0**** 4.9206**** ek

* The employer rates include the employer administrative expense fee currently set at 0.18%.

** The employer rate for state elected officials is 13.73% for Plan 1 and 9.21% for Plan 2 and Plan3.
*** Plan 3 defined benefit portion only.

*** The employee rate for state elected officials is 7.50% for Plan 1 and 4.92% for Plan 2.

*+ekx Variable from 5.0% minimum to 15.0% maximum based on rate selected by the PERS 3 member.

Both the City and its employees made the required contributions. The City’s required cont
December 31 were as follows:

utions for the years ended

PERSPlan1  PERSPlan2 PERS Plan 3
2013 § 25,296 S 2,486,249 S 368,957
2012 31,363 2,155,620 337,306
2011 26,343 1,876,386 322,831
2. LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' & FIRE FIGHTERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (LEOFF) Plans 1 and 2

1970 by the Legislature. Membershi ime, fully compensated, local law
enforcement commissioned officers, firefighters and, as of July 24, 2005, emergency medical technicians. LEOFF
membership is comprised primarily of non-state employees, with Department of Fish and Wildlife enforcement officers,
who were first included prospectively effective July 27, 2003, being an exception. LEOFF retirement benefit provisions are
established in Chapter 41.26 RCW and may be amended only by the State Legislature.

LEOFF is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of two separate defined benefit plans. LEOFF
members who joined the system by September 30, 1977 are Plan 1 members. Those who joined on or after October 1,
1977 are Plan 2 members.
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Effective July 1, 2003, the LEOFF Plan 2 Retirement Board was established by In
LEOFF Plan 2. The Board's duties include adopting conl
Legislature.

e 790 to provide governance of
ution rates and recommending policy changes to the

LEOFF retirement benefits are financed from a combination of investment earnings, employer and employee
contributions, and a special funding situation in which the state pays through state legislative appropriations. Employee
contributions to the LEOFF Plan 1 and Plan 2 defined benefit plans accrue interest at a rate specified by the Director of
DRS. During DRS'’ fiscal year 2012, the rate was five and one-half percent compounded quarterly. Members in LEOFF
Plan 1 and Plan 2 can elect to withdraw total employee contributions and interest earnings upon separation from LEOFF-
covered employment.

LEOFF Plan 1 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. Plan 1 members are eligible for
retirement with five years of service at the age of 50. The benefit per year of service calculated as a percent of final
average salary (FAS) is as follows:

Term of Service

20 or more years
10 but less than 20 years 1.5%
5 but less than 10 years 1.0%

The FAS is the basic monthly salary received at the time of retirement, provided a member has held the same position or

rank for 12 months preceding the date of retirement. Otherwise, it is the average of the highest consecutive 24 months’
salary within the last 10 years of service. A cost-of g allowance is granted (based on the Consumer Price Index).

LEOFF Plan 1 provides death and disability benefits. Death benefits for survivors of Plan 1 members on active duty
consist of the following: (1) If eligible spouse, 50 percent of the FAS, plus 5 percent of FAS for each eligible surviving
child, with a limitation on the combined benefit of 60 percent of the FAS; or (2) If no eligible spouse, eligible n: dren
receive 30 percent of FAS for the first child plus 10 percent for each additional child, subject to a 60 percent ||
FAS, ed equally.

A one-time duty-related death benefit is provided to the estate (or duly designated nominee) of a LEOFF Plan 1 member
who dies as a result of injuries or illness sustained in the course of employment, or if the death resulted from an
occupational disease or infection that arose naturally and proximately out of the member's covered employment, if found
eligible by the Department of Labor and Industries.

The LEOFF Plan 1 disability allowance is 50 percent of the FAS plus 5 percent for each child up to a maximum of mo
percent. Upon recovery from disability before the age of 50, a member is restored to service
while disabled. Upon recovery after the age of 50, the benefit continues as the greater of the member's disability benefit or
service retirement benefit.

LEOFF Plan 2 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service.

Plan 2 members are eligible for retirement at the age of 53 with five years of service, or at age 50 with 20 years of service.
Plan 2 members receive a benefit of 2 percent of the FAS per year of service (the FAS is based on the highest
consecutive 60 months), actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor option. Members who retire prior to the age
of 53 receive reduced benefits. If the member has at least 20 years of service and is age 50, the reduction is 3 percent for
each year prior to age 53. Otherwise, the benefits are actuarially reduced for each year prior to age 53. A cost-of-living
allowance is granted (based on the Consumer Price Index), capped at 3 percent annually.

LEOFF Plan 2 provides disability benefits. There is no minimum amount of service credit required for eligibility. The Plan 2
benefit amount is 2 percent of the FAS for each year of service. Benefits are reduced to reflect the choice of survivor
option and for each year that the member's age is less than 53, unless the disability is duty-related. If the member has at
least 20 years of service and is age 50, the reduction is 3 percent for each year prior to age 53.

A disability benefit equal to 70 percent of their FAS, subject to offsets for workers’ compensation and Social Security
disability benefits received, is also available to those LEOFF Plan 2 members who are catastrophically disabled in the line
of duty and incapable of future substantial gainful employment in any capacity. Effective June 2010, benefits to LEOFF
Plan 2 members who are catastropl abled include payment of eligible health care insurance premiums.

Members of LEOFF Plan 2 who leave service because of a line of duty disability are allowed to withdraw 150 percent of
accumulated member contributions. This withdrawal benefit is not subject to federal income tax. Alternatively, members of
LEOFF Plan 2 who leave service because of a line of duty disability may be eligible to receive a retirement benefit of at
least 10 percent of FAS and 2 percent per year of service beyond five years. The first 10 percent of the FAS is not subject
to federal income tax.
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LEOFF Plan 2 retirees may return to work in an eligible position covered by another retirement system, choose
membership in that system and suspend their pension benefits, or not choose membership and continue receiving
pension benefits without interruption.

A one-time duty-related death benefit is provided to the estate (or duly designated nominee) of a LEOFF Plan 2 member
who dies as a result of injuries or illness sustained in the course of employment, or if the death resulted from an
occupational disease or infection that arose naturally and proximately out of the member’s covered employment, if found
eligible by the Department of Labor and Industries.

Benefits to eligible surviving spouses and dependent children of LEOFF Plan 2 members killed the course of

employment include the payment of eligible health care insurance premiums.

Legislation passed in 2009 provides to the Washington-state-registered domestic partners of LEOFF Plan 2 members the
same treatment as married spouses, to the extent that the treatment is not in conflict with federal laws.

LEPFF members meeting specific eligibility requirements have options available to enhance their retirement benefits.
Some of these options are available to their survivors.

There are 374 participating employers in LEOFF. Membership in LEOFF consisted of the following as of the latest
actuarial valuation date for the plans of June 30, 2012:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits 10,189
Terminated Plan Members Entitled to But Not Yet Receiving Benefits 689
Active Plan Members Vested 14,273
Active Plan Members Nonvested _2,633

Total 27,784

Employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the Office of the State Actuary to fully fund the plans.
Starting on July 1, 2000, Plan 1 employers and employees will contribute zero percent as long as the plan remains fully
funded. Plan 2 employers and employees are required to pay at the level adopted by the LEOFF Plan 2 Retirement
Board.

The Legislature, by means of a special funding arrangement, appropriated money from the state General Fund to
supplement the current service liability and fund the prior service costs of Plans 1 and 2 in accordance with the
requirements of the Pension Funding Council and the LOFF Plan 2 Retirement Board. However, this special funding
situation is not mandated by the state constitution and this funding requirement could be returned to the employers by a
change of statute. For DRS' fiscal year 2013, the state contributed $5.4 million to LEOFF Plan 2.

The methods used to determine the contribution rates are established under state statute in accordance with chapters
41.26 and 41.45 of the RCW.

The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of current-year covered payroll, as of December 31, 2013,
were as follows:

LEOFF Plan 1 LEOFF Plan 2

Employer* 0.18% 5.23%**
Employee 0.00% 8.41%
State N/A 3.36%

*The employer rates include the employer administrative expense fee currently set at 0.18%.
** The employer rate for ports and universities is 8.59%.

Both City and its employees made the required contributions. The City’s required contributions for the years ended
December 31 were:
LEOFF Plan 1 LEOFF Plan 2

2013 $0 $1,798,219
2012 0 1,759,338
2011 22 1,695,890
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3. POLICE OFFICERS AND FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUNDS

The City administers two single employer defined benefit pension plans, Police Pension Fund and Fire Pension Fund.
These funds were established by the City in compliance with requirements of the Revised Code of Washington 41.20 and
41.18. The plans are limited to police officers, firefighters and their beneficiaries for individuals employed before March 1,
1970, the effective date of LEOFF. The LEOFF laws were subsequently amended by the Pension Reform Act, which took
effect October 1, 1977. Through the LEOFF Act, the state undertook to provide the bulk of police and fire pensions;
however, the municipalities continue to be responsible for all or part of pension benefits for employees hired before March
1, 1970, as discussed later. The plans are closed plans that pro i al benefits, some of which can be
in excess of LEOFF benefits.

Benefit Proy ns

The LEOFF Act requires a varying obligation of the City for benefits paid to police officers and firefighters.

e Pension and medical expenses for police officers and firefighters retired prior to March 1, 1970, continue to be
paid in their entirety by the City under the old pension laws.

. Police officers and firefighters hired before, but not retired on March 1, 1970, received at retirement the greater
of the pension benefit provided under the old pension laws and under the LEOFF Act. Any excess of the old
benefit over the LEOFF benefit is provided by the City. The City also pays the reasonable cost of necessary
medical expenses of the retiree for life.

e For police officers and firefighters hired on or after March 1, 1970, and prior to October 1, 1977, the City is
obligated for lifetime medical expenses only. The LEOFF system pays the entire retirement allowance.

*  Palice officers and firefighters hired on or after October 1, 1977, are covered entirely by the LEOFF system with
no City obligation for either retirement allowance or medical expenses.

There were no changes in benefit provisions in the current year.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Police and Fire plans are shown as trust funds in the financial statements of the City. The financial statements are
prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the
time liabilities are incurred. The City follows GASB Statement No. 50, “Pension Disclosures,” which amends GASB
statements No. 25, “Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures” and GASB Statement
No. 27, “Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers.” As such, we will be reporting funding
progress of the pensions, as required.

As of December 31, 2013, the Firefighters Pension fund had an investment portfolio with fair value of $2,017,067, which
was invested in U.S. Governmental Agencies, a Corporate Bond, and in Municipal Bonds on behalf of the Firemen’s
Pension Fund. In addition to these investments, the Firefighters Pension fund had cash and cash equivalents invested in
the City's internal investment pool totaling $5.4 million. Investments in the City’s internal investment pool are invested in
the Washington State Treasurer Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), a Rule 2a-7 money market type fund with an
average portfolio maturity of less than 91 days, the Clark County Local Government Investment Pool, US Agencies and in
Municipal Bonds. All investments are valued at fair value. The Police Pension fund reported no investments at December
31, 2013, but did have $1,492,837 invested in the City’s internal investment pool. Investments are reported at fair value.

The City does not hold an investment in any one corporation or organization exceeding 5% of net position available for
benefits. Additionally, the City does not have any long-term contract for contributions and any amounts outstanding at the
report date.

Contributions and Reserves

Each Plan receives funding as detailed in section A of this note. Funding for the Police Pension Fund comes from annual
transfers from the General Fund that are budgeted and approved by Council. Sources of funding for the Firefighters
Pension Fund include donations, distributions from the state from fire insurance premium collections, and a property tax
levy of up to $.45 per $1,000 of assessed valuation. Milliman Consultants and Actuaries completed actuarial studies of
the two funds as of December 31, 2013. The General Fund is responsible for the costs of administering the plans.
Obligations for medical expenses are funded for the most part by group insurance. There have been no required
employee contributions to the plans since March 1, 1970. As of December 31, 2013, the Police Pension Funds and the
Firefighters Pension Fund reported net position reserved for payment of future claims of $1,510,727 and $7,387,981
respectively.
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Police and Fire Pension Funds Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

e Pension Fund:

Police

Pension Fire Pension
Amortized of Unfunded Actuarial Liability (UAAL) $ 87,859 $ (31,476)
Interest to December 31, 2013 3,295 (1,180)
Actuarial Required Contribution (ARC) 12/31/13 91,154 (32,656)
Interest on Net Pension Obligation (NPO) (60,357) (154,105)
Adjustment to Net Pension Obligation (120,069) (306,563)
Annual Pension Cost (APC) 150,866 119,802
Employer Contributions 479,260 864,488
Increase (Decrease) in NPO (328,394) (744,686)
Net Pension Obligation (Asset) January 1, 2013 (1,609,529) (4,109,468)
Net Pension Obligation (Asset) December 31, 2013 $ (1,937,923) $ (4,854,154)

The negative net pension obligation is a result of the City over paying its required annual pension cost; the resulting net
pension asset has been recorded in the Governmental Activities, Statement of Net Pos

Three Year Trend Information

Police Pension Fund:

Contribution as a Net Pension
Annual Pension Cost Percentage of Obligation
Fiscal Year Ending (APC) APC (Asset)
December 31, 2013 3$ 150,866 318% $  (1,937,923)
December 31, 2012 214,112 221% (1,609,529)
December 31, 2011 203,747 212% (1,349,638)
Firefighters Pension Fund:
Contribution as a Net Pension
Annual Pension Cost Percentage of Obligation
Fiscal Year Ending (APC) APC (Asset)
December 31, 2013 $ 119,802 722% $ (4,854,154)
December 31, 2012 221,638 346% (4,109,468)
December 31, 2011 198,816 438% (3,565,100)

GASB 50 requires that the current funded status of the plan is shown, so that users of the financial statements can
determine if the funding status is improving or worsening over time. These amounts are shown in thousands below:
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Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Actuarial % of
Value of Lial Li Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
January 1, 2013 $ 1,220 $ 2398 $ 1,178 51% $ - N/A
January 1, 2011 774 3,074 2,300 25% - N/A
January 1, 2009 569 4,784 4,215 12% 149 2829%
Fire Pension Fund:
Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Actuarial % of
Value of Liabi i Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
January 1, 2013 $ 6,978 $ 6,556 $ (422) 106% $ - N/A
January 1, 2011 6,491 7,895 1,404 82% - N/A
January 1, 2009 6,225 10,043 3,818 62% - N/A

Trend information gives an indication of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.
Six-year trend information is presented as required supplementary information following the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

Actuarial assumptions are shown below:

Police Pension Fire Pension
Valuation Date 1/1/2013 1/1/2013
Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal
30 Year closed period 30 Year closed period as
Amortizaton Method as of 1/1/2001 of 1/1/2001
Remaining Amortization Period 18 Years 18 Years
Asset Valuation Method Fair Value Fair Value
Actuarial Assumptions
Investment Rate of Return 3.75% 3.75%
Projected Salary Increases 3.50% 3.50%
Inflation Rate 2.50% 2.50%
Cost of Living Adjustments Varies* Varies*

*Under the Police and Fire Pension fund requirements of state law, most adjustments are based on the change in salary
for the rank of the members held at retirement or based on the Consumer Price Index. Adjustments are determined in
accordance with RCW 41.18.150 and RCW 41.26.

Separate financial statements are not issued for the police and fire pension plan. The statement of net position and the
statement of changes in fiduciary net assets for the police and fire pension plans can be found in the Fiduciary Fund
Section of these financial statements.
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G. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS

Plan Descri

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note V.F.3, the City administers two single employer defined benefit plans
covering postretirement healthcare and long term care accordance with state statute to retired police and fire
employees who are ble under the Police Relief and Pension Fund and Firefighter's Pension Fund through Law
Enforcement Officers & Fire Fighters Plan 1(LEOFF-1). The activity of the plan is reported in the City's Police and Fire
Pension Trust Funds. LEOFF retirement benefit provisions are established in state statute and may be amended only by
the State Legislature. A separate audited GAAP-basis Postemployment benefit plan report is not available.

Membership:

Membership in this program includes Plan 1 participants of LEOFF who joined the system by September 30, 1977.
Currently, 122 retirees meet those eligibility requirements. This is considered a closed group with no new members.
There were no active employees who had not retired as of December 31, 2013.

Funding Policy:

ity reimburses 100 percent of the amount of validated claims for medical and hospitalization costs incurred by
eligible retirees. The City pays for the retiree’s monthly insurance premium and also picks up the balance owing after
insurance and Medicare payments are made. The pension board performs an annual survey to determine the limit of
optical and chiropractic care to be covered. The City also reimburses a monthly fixed amount equal to the Medicare
premium for each retiree eligible for Medicare. The methods used to determine the contribution rates are established
under state statute in accordance with chapters 41.26 and 41.45 of the RCW.

Under RCW law, medical, hospital, and nursing care are covered as long as a disability exists for any active fire fighter or
police hired prior to March 1, 1970.

Employer contributions are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. Expenditures for postretirement health in 2013 were
$1,576,597.

Annual OPEB costs and Net OPEB Obligation:

The city’s annual other post employment benefit (OPEB) cost for each plan is calculated based on the annual required
contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with GASB Statement 45. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize
any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The city's annual OPEB
cost for the current year and the related information for each plan are as follows:

Fire
Annual required contribution $ 1,089,685 $ 1,776,560
Interest on net OPEB obligation 71,270 109,383
Adjustment to annual required contribution (117,090) (179,705)
Annual OPEB cost 1,043,865 1,706,238
Contributions made (556,218) (1,020,379)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 487,647 685,859
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 1,900,544 2,916,881
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 2,388,191 $ 3,602,740

The city's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation
for 2013 and the two preceding years for each were as follows:

Annual OPEB Percentage of OPEB Net OPEB

Year Ended Cost Cost Contributed obligation
Police December 31, 2013 $ 1,043,865 53% $ 2,388,191
December 31, 2012 1,050,073 54% 1,900,544
December 31, 2011 1,061,545 56% 1,419,719
Fire December 31, 2013 $ 1,706,238 60% $ 3,602,740
December 31, 2012 1,608,675 69% 2,916,881
December 31, 2011 1,624,007 63% 2,421,977

Funding Status and Funding Progress:

The actuarial updates on the funding status is as follows:

Police:
Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Actuarial percentage of
Value of Liabilities Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Date Assets (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
January 1, 2013 $ - $ 17,048 0% N/A N/A
January 1, 2011 - 17,272 0% N/A N/A
January 1, 2009 - 14,518 14,518 0% N/A N/A
Fire:
Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Actuarial percentage of
Value of Liabilities Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Date Assets (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
January 1, 2013 $ - $ 27,794 0% N/A N/A
January 1, 2011 - 26,545 0% N/A N/A
January 1, 2009 - 21,587 21,587 0% N/A N/A

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2013 OPEB actuarial valuations include techniques that are designed to
estimate the future experience of the members, reduce short term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets, consistent with the long term perspective of the calculations. In the January 1, 2013 actuarial valuation,
the entry age normal cost method was used. The assumptions included a 3.75% investment rate of return, a medical
inflation rate that ranges between 5.4-7.5% over the next 16 years, and a long-term care inflation rate of 4.75% for both
plans. The plans unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized over 30 years as a level percentage of projected
payrolls on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2012 is twenty-four years.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of the reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, service
retirement, disability, mortality and healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision, as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements presents the results of OPEB
valuations as of December 31, 2013 and looking forward, the schedule of funding progress will eventually provide
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. Calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under the
terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the
employer and the plan members to that point.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear
trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets in increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

H. POLLUTION REMEDIATION OBLIGATION

Dry cleaning solvent had been dumped down a catch basin on a regular basis which subsequently caused
perchloroethylene (PCE) to leak into the aquifer at Water Station No.4. The City is using aeration towers to treat this
ground water. The towers remove trace volatile organic compounds, and carbon dioxide which occurs naturally. The
environmental liability is expected to cost $420,000 over the next 20 years, with a current portion of $21,000. This
estimate is based on prior year actual costs, and is subject to changes in price, technology or changes in applicable laws
and regulations.
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I. EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

Effective January 1, 1997, the City and Clark County entered into an interlocal agreement for the operation of a
consolidated parks department and joint administration of a parks impact fee (‘PIF”) program. The agreement was
renewed on several occasions, as recently as December 31, 2012. In June 2013, the County exercised its unilateral right
pursuant to the interlocal agreement to terminate the agreement effective December 31, 2013. Pursuant to the terms of
the interlocal agreement the City held park impact fee money for both the City and the County. The City has recorded the
return of the park impact fee owed to the County in the amount of $10,698,996 as an Extraordinary item related to
contract termination.

J. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

The City has recorded prior period adjustments (PPA), which includes:
Government-wide : Governmental Activities (not affecting the Fund Statements)

Capital asset corrections $ 61,518
$ 61,518
Government-wide : Governmental Funds
Non-Major
[e i hl Internal Service
General Fund Fire Fund Capital Funds Funds Total
Recording of revenue and expenses in correct period  $ 2,702,164 $ - $ (30,128) $ (118,498) $ (9.028) $ 2,544,510
Recording of revenue and expense transactions in
correct fund (210,225) 775 (30,259) 11,205 (228,504)
$ 2,491,939 $ 775 $ (60,387) $ (107,293) $ (9,028) $ 2,316,006
Combined Government Wide Prior Period Adjustments $ 2,377,524
Government-wide : Business Type Activities
Non-Major
Enterprise
Water Sewer Fund Parking Funds Total
Recording of liabilities, revenue and expenses in
correct period $ (25,184) $ - $ (703,092 $ (728,276)
Correction to estimate of pollution remediation - -
Recording of revenue and expense transactions in
correct fund 31,790 (16,725) 15,065
Capital asset corrections (122,649) (656,208) (88,181) (867,038)
5 (116,043) $ (672933) $___ (791,273) $___ (1,580,249)
Ct Unit - D Authority
Recording of liabilities in correct period $ (195,799)

K. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The City has evaluated events subsequent to the fiscal year-end December 31, 2013, and has identified no events that, if
disclosed, would influence the readers’ opinion concerning these financial statements.
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CITY OF VANCOUVER

Required Supplementary Information
Police and Fire Pension Funds
December 31, 2013

GASB Statement No. 25 and 27
Schedule of Funding Progress
(in thousands)

Six year trend Information

Unfunded
Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued Liabilities Covered  of Covered
Retirement System Date Assets Liabilities (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll Payroll
Police Relief and Pension Fund 1/1/2013  $ 1,220 $ 2,398 $ 1,178 51% $ - N/A
1/1/2011 774 3,074 2,300 25% - N/A
1/1/2009 569 4,784 4,215 12% - N/A
1/1/2007 498 3,973 3,475 13% - N/A
1/1/2005 344 3,781 3,437 9% - N/A
1/1/2003 468 3,760 3,292 12% - N/A
Fireman's Pension Fund 1/1/2013  $ 6,978 $ 6,556 $ (422) 106% $ - N/A
1/1/2011 6,491 7,895 1,404 82% - N/A
1/1/2009 6,225 10,043 3,818 62% - N/A
1/1/2007 5,458 9,505 4,047 57% - N/A
1/1/2005 5,620 9,224 3,604 61% - N/A
1/1/2003 5,993 9,233 3,240 65% - N/A
* Information unavailable
GASB Statement No. 25
Schedule of Employer Contributions #
Six year trend Information
Police
Auction Annual
Actual Income / Fire Required Percentage of
Fiscal Year **Employer Insurance Contribution ARC
Retirement System Ending Contribution Premiums (ARC) Contributed
Police Relief and Pension Fund 12/31/2013  $ 477,774 $ 1,486 $ 91,154 526%
12/31/2012 471,529 2,474 169,291 280%
12/31/2011 431,680 1,256 169,291 256%
12/31/2010 480,192 889 291,698 165%
12/31/2009 377,246 2,124 291,698 130%
12/31/2008 437,206 1,167 251,853 174%
Fireman's Pension Fund 12/31/2013  $ 692,667 $ 171,821 $ (32,656) N/A
12/31/2012 609,258 156,748 103,240 742%
12/31/2011 684,858 160,196 103,240 819%
12/31/2010 555,028 160,133 264,222 271%
12/31/2009 684,887 143,225 264,222 313%
12/31/2008 860,815 151,037 293,278 345%

** Employer contributions for pensions are total contributions to the Fund net of disbursements from the Fund
for medical expenses under RCW 41.26.150 and administrative expenses.

Prior information used to determine funding requirements for Police Relief and Pension and Firefighters' Pension
Funds do not meet the parameters for actuarial calculations for defined benefit pension plans and so historical data
prior to 1997 is not shown. The City's plan is valued every two years..
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CITY OF VANCOUVER
Required Supplementary Information City of Vancouver

Police and Fire OPEB Pension Funds Notes to Required Supplementary Information
December 31, 2013

Police Pension Fire Pension
Schedule of Funding Progress
(in thousands)
Six year trend * .
Valuation Date 1/1/2013 1/1/2013
Unfunded Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal Entry age normal
Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued Liabilities Funded Covered of Covered 30-year, closed 30-year, closed
Retirement System Date Assets Liabilities (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll Amortization Method as of 01/01/01 as of 01/01/01

Police Relief and Pension Fund 1/1/2013  $ - $ 17,048 $ 17,048 0% N/A N/A

1/1/2011 - 17,272 17,272 0% N/A N/A Remaining Amortization Period 18 years 18 years

1/1/2009 - 14,518 14,518 0% N/A N/A

1/1/2007 - 9,734 9,734 0% N/A N/A Asset Valuation method Fair Value Fair Value
Fireman's Pension Fund 1/1/2013  $ - $ 27794 $ 27,794 0% N/A N/A Actuarial Assumptions:

1/1/2011 - 26,545 26,545 0% N/A N/A

1/1/2009 - 21,587 21,587 0% N/A N/A Investment rate of return 3.75% 3.75%

1/1/2007 - 16,244 16,244 0% N/A N/A

Projected Salary Increases 3.50% 3.50%
Includes Inflation at 2.50% 2.50%

* This is the fourth year of OPEB implementation. The actuarial updates on this information is done on a biennial basis.

*Under the Police and Fire Pension funds requirement of State law, most adjustments are based on the change in
salary for the rank of the members held at retirement or based on the Consumer Price Index. Adjustments are
determined in accordance with RCW 41.18.150, RCW 41.20 and RCW 41.26.
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CITY OF VANCOUVER
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Department of Homeland Security:
Passed through Clark County:
Non-Profit Security Program
Non-Profit Security Program
Total CFDA

Passed through Cowiitz County Fire District 2:
Port Security Grant Program

Passed through Maritime Fire & Safety Association:
Port Security Grant Program

Passed through Merchants Exchange of Portland:
Port Security Grant Program
Total CFDA

Passed through Clark County:
Homeland Security Grant Program

Passed through Washington State Military Department:
Homeland Security Grant Program

CITY OF VANCOUVER
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

97.008  UA10-170
97.008  UA11-170
97.008

97.056  EMW-2011-PU-K00274-S01

97.056  2010-PU-TO-K052

97.056  2009-PU-T9-K050
97.056

97.067  EM00220057

97.067  E13-187

Passed through Clark Regional Emergency Services Agency:

Homeland Security Grant Program
Total CFDA

Passed through Portland Office of Emergency Management:
Metropolitan Medical Response System Grant Program

Passed through Washington State Miltary Department:
Buffer Zone Protection Program (BZPP)

Assistance to Firefighters Grant
Assistance to Firefighters Grant
Assistance to Firefighters Grant
Total CFDA

97.067  E11-108
97.067

97.071  10-181

97.078  E11-274

97.044  EMW-2010-FH-00862
97.044  EMW-2011-FP-00744
97.044  EMW-2012-FO-02851
97.044

Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) ~ 97.083  EMW-2008-FF-00494

Department of Justice, Office of Community Oriented P

Total Department of Homeland Security:

icing Services (COPS)

ARRA - Public Safety Partnership & Community Policing Grants ~ 16.710  2009-RJ-WX-0086

Total Department of Justice, Office of Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS)

Department of Justice:
Passed through Clark County
ARRA - Recovery Act-Edward Byme Memorial JAG
ARRA - Recovery Act-Edward Byme Memorial JAG
Total CFDA

16.804  2009-SB-B9-1974
16.804  Program Income
16.804

Total Department of Justice:

TOTAL FEDERAL EXPENDITURES

Table 20
Page 1 of 2
Grantor/ Direct Indirect Total Foot-
Pass-Through Grantor CFDA Other Identification Federal Federal Federal Note
Program Title Number Number Ref.
Department of Agriculture:
Passed through Department of Natural Resources:
Cooperative Forestry Assistance 10664 IA-13-397/K244-10-DG-010 3,450
Total Department of Agriculture: 3,450 3,450
Department of Commerce:
Investments for Public Works and Economic D Facilities 11.300 $  2466,601
Total Department of Commerce: 2,466,601 2,466,601
Department of Housing and Urban Development:
lement Grants 14218  B-10-MC-53-0013 $ 2,924
lement Grants 14218  B-11-MC-53-0013 363,635
lement Grants 14218  B-12-MC-53-0013 414,511
lement Grants 14218  B-13-MC-53-0013 218,950
Community Development Block Grants/Entitiement Grants 14218  Program Income 157,281 3
Total CFDA 14.218 1,157,301
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14239 M-10-MC-53-0208 40,201
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14239 M-11-MC-53-0208 161,306
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14239 M-12-MC-53-0208 183,412
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14239 M-13-MC-53-0208 13,931
14.239  Program Income 33,052 3
Total CFDA 14.239 431,902
Congressional Grants / Neighborhood Initiatives Grants 14251 B-09-NI-WA-0010 884,928
CDBG/Section 108 Loan Guarantees 14248  B-06-MC-53-0013 1,496,000 a
Total Department of Housing and Urban Development: 3,970,131 3,970,131
Department of Justice:
Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies and Enforcement of Protection
Orders 16590  2012-WE-AX-0023 87,540
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607  2011-BOBX-1105-8372 938
Public Safety Partnership & Community Policing Grants 16710  2010-CS-WX-0015 92,845
Congressionally Recommended Awards 16753 2009-D1-BX-0217 80,943
Congressionally Recommended Awards 16753  2010-DD-BX-0508 42,970
Total CFDA 16.753 123,913
Passed through Clark County:
Drug Court Discretionary Grant Program 16585  2010-DC-BX-0097 17,213
Passed through Clark County:
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16588  F-12-31103-073 9,371
Passed through Clark County:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16738 2010-DJ-BX-0198 56,831
16738  2012-DJ-BX-0405 36,397
Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16738 Program Income 581 3
Total CFDA 16.738 93,809
Total Department of Justice: 305,236 120,393 425,629
Department of Transportation
Airport Improvement Program 20106  3-53-0139-008 9,371
Airport Improvement Program 20106  3-53-0139-009-2013 293,439
Total CFDA 20.106 302,810
Passed through Washington State Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction 20205  HSIP-4242(025) 29,465
Highway Planning and Construction 20205  POMVIP-000S(230) 6,199
Highway Planning and Construction 20205  STPUL-4221(004) 3,964
Highway Planning and Construction 20205  CM-4401(006) 36
Highway Planning and Construction 20205  CM-9906(025) 18,494
Highway Planning and Construction 20205  CM-4451(013) 15,685
Highway Planning and Construction 20205  HSIP-000S(314) 16,496
Highway Planning and Construction 20205  HSIP-4280(020) 2,970
Highway Planning and Construction 20205  STPE-4228(001) 86,684
Highway Planning and Construction 20205  CM-9906(041) 6,932
Highway Planning and Construction 20205  STPUL-4421(003) 908,675
Highway Planning and Construction 20205  CM-4451(012) 5,611
Highway Planning and Construction 20205  STPUL-4266(002) 69,255
Highway Planning and Construction 20205  STPUL-4254(005) 76,714
Highway Planning and Construction 20205  CM-1350(021) 164,077
Highway Planning and Construction 20205  STPUL-1350(017) 139
Highway Planning and Construction 20205  CM-1350(022) 107,564
Total CFDA 20.205 1518,960
Passed through Washington Association of Sheriffs & Police Chiefs:
State and Community Highway Safety 20600  Traffic Safety Equipment Grant 799
Passed through State of Washington Traffic Safety Commission:
Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures Incentive Grants 20601  DUI Patrol 6,937
Passed through State of Washington Traffic Safety Commission:
Occupant Protection Incentive Grants 20602 Safety Belt Patrol 272
Total Department of Transportation 302,810 1526,968 1829778
Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through Oregon Health & Science University:
Occupational Safety and Health Program 93262 AHPSMO0020VPD 1523
Total Department of Health and Human Services: 1523 1523
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Table 20
Page 2 of 2
979 6
59,268 6
60,247
5,733
8,417
2,236,957
2,251,107
33,744
83,394
66,049
183,187
24,593
1,395
890,167
80,000
237,400
1,207,567
55,513
1,263,080 2,520,529 3,783,609
432,987 5
432,987 432,987
51,957 5
24 3
51,981
51,981 51,981
12,965,689
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NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

NOTE 4

NOTE 5

NOTE 6

Schedule of Federal Awards

This schedule contains information about expenditures of federal grant awards
to help the reader understand the contributions the City receives
from the Federal Government.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) Table 20

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND STATE/LOCAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The Schedule of Financial Assistance is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the City's financial
statements. The City uses the modified accrual basis of accounting.

PROGRAM COSTS
The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only federal grant portions of the program
costs. Entire program costs, including the City's portion may be more than shown.

PROGRAM INCOME

Revolving Loan - The City has a revolving loan program for low income housing. Under this federal grant,
repayments to the City are considered program revenues (income) and loans of such funds to eligible
recipients are considered expenditures.

Interest Earnings - The City has awards under the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program,
where the City receives the full cash award at the beginning of the grant. Interest earned on the unspent
portion of the award is considered program revenues (income) and are considered expenditures.

EFEDERAL LOANS

The City was approved by the Department of Housing and Urban Development to receive a loan under the
Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) - Section 108 Loan Guarantees program to be used in
conjunction with the CDBG/Brownfields Economic Development Initiative (BEDI) grant. The amount listed
loan includes proceeds received during the year. The liability for this loan is reported in the City's financial
statements as a component of long-term debt.

AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT (ARRA) OF 2009

The City has received Federal awards made under the Recovery Act which have been identified separately
on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA). These awards are entered by CFDA number
and have included the prefix "ARRA" to identify the name of the Federal program.

NONCASH AWARDS - EQUIPMENT

The City received equipment and supplies that were purchased with federal Homeland Security funds
by the City of Portland, Oregon. The amount reported on the schedule is the value of the property

on the date it was received by the City and priced by the City of Portland, Oregon.

Washington State Auditor's Office
82

ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR'S OFFICE

The State Auditor's Office is established in the state's Constitution and is part of the executive
branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the citizens of Washington and
serves four-year terms.

We work with our audit clients and citizens as an advocate for government accountability. As an
elected agency, the State Auditor's Office has the independence necessary to objectively perform
audits and investigations. Our audits are designed to comply with professional standards as well
as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state, and local laws.

The State Auditor's Office employees are located around the state to deliver services effectively
and efficiently.

Our audits look at financial information and compliance with state, federal and local laws on the
part of all local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of
higher education. In addition, we conduct performance audits of state agencies and local
governments and fraud, whistleblower and citizen hotline investigations.

The results of our work are widely distributed through a variety of reports, which are available
on our Web site and through our free, electronic subscription service.

We take our role as partners in accountability seriously. We provide training and technical
assistance to governments and have an extensive quality assurance program.

State Auditor Troy Kelley

Chief of Staff Doug Cochran

Director of Performance and State Audit Chuck Pfeil, CPA
Director of Local Audit Kelly Collins, CPA
Deputy Director of State Audit Jan M. Jutte, CPA, CGFM
Deputy Director of Local Audit Sadie Armijo

Deputy Director of Local Audit
Deputy Director of Performance Audit
Deputy Director of Quality Assurance
Deputy Director of Communications
Public Records Officer

Main number

Toll-free Citizen Hotline

Website
Subscription Service

WWW.S30.Wa.gov
portal.sao.wa.gov/saoportal/Login.aspx

Mark Rapozo, CPA
Lou Adams, CPA
Barb Hinton
Thomas Shapley
Mary Leider

(360) 902-0370
(866) 902-3900




